

1975 Senate Bill 755

Date published: May 4, 1976
Vetoed overruled published: June 22, 1976

CHAPTER 224, Laws of 1975
(Vetoed in Part)

AN ACT to amend and revise chapter 20 of the statutes, and to make diverse other changes in the statutes relating to state finances and appropriations, constituting the budget review bill and making appropriations.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1b. 11.30 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 93, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

11.30 (2) The source of all printed advertisements, billboards, handbills, sample ballots, paid television and radio advertisements and other communications intended for political purposes shall clearly appear thereon. In the case of a communication in support of or in opposition to a specific candidate the communication must contain the name of the candidate and be identified by the words "Paid for by" followed by the name of the individual, treasurer or other authorized agent of a the candidate ~~making the actual payment for~~ on whose behalf the communication is made. Communications made by a candidate who is serving as his or her own treasurer need contain only the words "Paid for by" followed by the name and address of the candidate. A voluntary committee or individual under s. 11.06 (7) shall also in every communication in support of or in opposition to a candidate affirm that the committee or individual is the sole source of the communication and that it is made without the encouragement, direction or control of the candidate who is being supported or opposed. In any other communication intended for political purposes the name of the group, committee or other sponsoring organization making the actual payment for the communication, its chief executive officer must be stated. An individual shall also state his or her name in making such communications. Communications under this section by a personal campaign committee may identify the committee or any bona fide subcommittee thereof. This subsection does not apply to the transmittal of personal correspondence which is not reproduced by machine for distribution. No person may publish or

disseminate, or cause to be published or disseminated any communication in violation of this subsection.

SECTION 1c. 13.09 of the statutes is amended to read:

13.09 Joint committee on finance. A joint standing committee, to be called the joint committee on finance and to consist of 14 members, 5 from the senate and 9 from the assembly, shall be appointed ~~at the commencement of each term of the legislature. The method of appointment of members in each house shall be governed by the rules thereof.~~ The chairmen as are members of other standing committees. The cochairmen may appoint a subcommittee on small appropriations and claims consisting of members chosen from the committee membership. The subcommittee shall meet and hold hearings at the direction of the committee and report its recommendations to the committee. The subcommittee may act on bills not exceeding \$10,000 and claims not exceeding \$2,500.

SECTION 1d. 13.101 (10) of the statutes is created to read:

13.101 (10) The committee shall receive a report and recommendation from the secretary of administration in March of the even-numbered year relating to rental rates for state-owned housing as required under s. 16.004 (8) and, following its review, the committee shall approve a rental rate structure to govern rental rates for state-owned housing for the subsequent 2-year period beginning July 1 of such even-numbered year.

SECTION 1f. 13.45 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.45 (4) ORGANIZATION. (intro.) Unless otherwise provided by law, and except as provided in sub. (4m), every legislative committee or committee on which there are legislative members selected by either house or the officers thereof shall:

SECTION 1g. 13.45 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:

13.45 (4m) COCHAIRMEN OF JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEES. Every joint standing, statutory, special or other joint committee shall be chaired jointly by a senator and a representative to the assembly appointed as are other members of the joint committee.

SECTION 1h. 13.47 (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.47 (2) DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE. The committee, in groups or individually as assigned by the ~~chairman~~ cochairmen with the consent of the committee, shall visit all institutions and office buildings owned or leased by the state and the capitol building and inspect the grounds and the buildings thereon. Each member shall participate in the groups to which he or she is assigned, but if the appointed member of the state building commission is unable to participate in a specific visit he or she shall appoint an alternate member, selected from his or her house of the legislature, to participate in his or her place. It shall thoroughly inspect the state buildings or grounds and shall have free access to any part of such state buildings or the surrounding grounds and all persons therein in order to make such examination as it sees fit of the conditions found.

(3) VISITS TO INSTITUTIONS RECEIVING STATE FUNDS. The committee, in groups or individually as assigned by the ~~chairman~~ cochairmen with the consent of the committee, may visit any institution, program or organization in this state in which the state directly or indirectly has provided financial support. Upon request of the committee, any such institution, program or organization shall allow the committee to examine its records.

SECTION 1j. 13.50 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.50 (1m) OFFICERS. The officers of this committee shall be a senate chairman and vice chairman, an assembly chairman and vice chairman and a secretary. The senate chairman and vice chairman shall be selected as are chairmen and vice chairmen of senate standing committees. The assembly chairman and vice chairman

shall be appointed by the speaker. ~~The senate chairman or the assembly chairman shall preside, respectively, over the meetings of the committee depending on which house of the legislature referred to the committee the proposal then under consideration.~~ The secretary shall be elected by the committee from among its nonlegislator members.

SECTION 1k. 13.52 (1m) and (5) (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.52 (1m) OFFICERS. The officers of this committee shall be a senate chairman and vice chairman, an assembly chairman and vice chairman and a secretary. The senate chairman and vice chairman shall be selected as are chairmen and vice chairmen of senate committees. The assembly chairman and vice chairman shall be appointed by the speaker. ~~The senate chairman or the assembly chairman shall preside, respectively, over the meetings of the committee depending on which house of the legislature referred to the committee the proposal then under consideration.~~ The secretary shall be elected by the committee from among its nonlegislator members.

(5) (b) Hold such hearings as are required to elicit information required to make its reports. Any member is empowered to administer oaths and examine witnesses. By subpoena, issued over the signature of the ~~chairman~~ cochairmen and served in the manner in which circuit court subpoenas are served, it may summon and compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of records necessary or convenient to be examined or used by them in carrying out their functions. Any subpoenaed witness who fails to appear, refuses to answer inquiries, or fails or refuses to produce records within his or her control when demanded shall be reported by the committee to the circuit court of Dane county, whose duty it is to compel obedience to any such subpoena by attachment proceedings for contempt as in case of disobedience of the requirements of a subpoena issued from said court or a refusal to testify therein.

SECTION 1L. 13.53 of the statutes is created to read:

13.53 Joint legislative audit committee. (1) CREATION. There is created a joint legislative audit committee to consist of 8 members, 4 from the senate and 4 from the assembly, appointed as are members of the standing committees in the respective houses at the commencement of each term of the legislature. The members appointed from each house shall consist of 2 members chosen from the party having the greatest number of members and 2 members chosen from the party having the 2nd greatest number of members in that house. Each house shall designate a cochairperson. The method of appointment of the cochairperson and other members in each house shall be governed by the rules thereof. The committee shall be staffed in the same manner as are other standing committees of the legislature. The committee shall meet as often as may be necessary during and between legislative sessions to perform its duties and functions.

(2) RESPONSIBILITIES. The joint legislative audit committee shall have advisory responsibilities for the legislative audit bureau. The committee's responsibility is subject to general supervision of the joint committee on legislative organization. The joint legislative audit committee may:

(a) Evaluate the qualifications of the candidates for the position of state auditor and make recommendations to the joint committee on legislative organization.

(b) Study and review the postaudit or other reports submitted by the legislative audit bureau, confer with the state auditor and assistants and with other legislative committees in regard to such reports and, when necessary, confer with representatives of the state agency audited in order to obtain full and complete information in regard to any fiscal transactions and governmental operations within the state.

(c) Refer to the legislature or to an appropriate standing committee information that, in its opinion, warrants action by the legislature or by the committee. It may

request from a standing committee information on such action as is taken. The committee shall seek the advice of the appropriate standing committees with respect to the program portion of an audit relating to a state department or agency which is within the purview of such committee.

(3) **POSTAUDIT REPORT CONSIDERATION.** (a) In any instance in which a postaudit report of the legislative audit bureau cites cases of improper payments; inadequate accounting, operating, or administrative system controls, procedures, or related records; inaccuracies; waste or extravagance; unauthorized or unintended activities or programs; or other deficiencies required by statute to be reported, the head of the state department or agency to which the audit report pertains shall, within a time period specified by the committee, advise the cochairpersons of the committee, the chairperson of the joint committee on legislative organization and to each appropriate standing committee of any remedial actions taken or to be taken on matters cited in the report. Where such advice is not forthcoming from the head of the state department or agency within the time period specified by the committee, or where the committee determines that suitable action has not been taken, the committee may report the matter immediately to the joint committee on legislative organization and to each appropriate standing committee.

(b) The committee may, in any case, propose specific corrective action to remedy undesirable practices, including changes in applicable laws, rules and procedures, but with respect to the program portion of audit, it shall first seek the advice of the appropriate standing committees which have purview over the state department or agency under review. If the committee introduces a bill, it shall be referred to the appropriate standing committee. The appropriate standing committees may propose corrective legislation wherever they find that the program portion of the audit indicates that a law is not being implemented in the manner intended by the legislature when the law was enacted.

(c) Each appropriate standing committee, and the joint legislative audit committee, may hold a hearing on the contents of a postaudit report by the legislative audit bureau. An appropriate standing committee may request the joint legislative audit committee to hold such a hearing. Nothing in this paragraph precludes joint hearings by 2 or more committees.

(4) **FISCAL AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS.** The committee may at any time, without regard to whether the legislature is then in session, request the joint committee on legislative organization to investigate any matter within the scope of a postaudit completed or being conducted by the legislative audit bureau. It may also request investigation and consideration of any matter relative to the expenditures and revenues as well as the fiscal and performance activities of state departments and agencies pursuant to the objectives of the committee and the legislative audit bureau.

(5) **INTERFERENCE; SPECIAL DUTIES.** No member of the joint legislative audit committee, the joint committee on legislative organization or other member of the legislature may interfere in any way with the state auditor in the conduct of audit examinations. The state auditor shall carry out the auditor's professional responsibilities in accordance with accepted professional auditing standards and shall conduct examinations within the framework of the ethics of the auditing profession. This subsection does not preclude an individual legislator, a standing committee or the joint legislative audit committee from requesting the joint committee on legislative organization to direct the state auditor to undertake specific audits. All such requests shall be reviewed by the joint committee on legislative organization before such committee directs the state auditor to conduct such audits. The joint committee on legislative organization may consult with the joint legislative audit committee and the legislative audit bureau prior to giving its directions to the state auditor. Nothing in

Vetoed
in Part

this subsection precludes the joint committee on legislative organization from instructing the state auditor to undertake ~~special~~ examinations of specific activities ~~of government~~ when such committee deems it to be necessary.

SECTION 1m. 13.56 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.56 (1) CREATION. There is created a legislative joint committee for review of administrative rules, consisting of 4 senators and 5 representatives to the assembly appointed as are standing committees in the respective houses. The 2 major political parties shall be represented in the membership from each house. ~~The chairmanship shall be alternated between the 2 houses every 2 years and the chairman shall be elected at the committee's first meeting in each odd-numbered year~~ The committee shall have a cochairperson from each house selected from the majority party in each house. The committee shall meet at the call of one of its chairman chairpersons or upon a call signed by 2 of its members or signed by 5 members of the legislature.

SECTION 1n. 13.90 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.90 (5) Select the director of each bureau. The appointment of each director shall be made without regard to political affiliation in order to safeguard the nonpartisan character of each legislative service bureau. In the case of the state auditor, the joint legislative audit committee shall make recommendations for the approval of the joint committee on legislative organization. The committee shall designate an employe of each bureau to exercise the powers and authority of each bureau director in case of his absence or disability.

SECTION 1p. 13.90 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.90 (7) Supervise the development of programs for computer use and approve and monitor computer operations in the legislative process. All contracts for legislative computer equipment and services shall be signed by the ~~chairman~~ cochairmen.

SECTION 1q. 13.94 (intro.) and (1) (intro.) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.94 Legislative audit bureau. (intro.) There is created a bureau to be known as the "Legislative Audit Bureau," headed by a chief known as the "State Auditor" outside the classified service. The bureau shall be strictly nonpartisan. Subject to s. 16.30 (4) (a) and (f), the state auditor or his designated employes shall at all times with or without notice have access to all ~~state~~ state departments and to any books, records or other documents maintained by such ~~agencies~~ departments and relating to their expenditures, revenues, operations and structure. In the discharge of any duty imposed by law, the state auditor may subpoena witnesses, administer oaths and take testimony and cause the deposition of witnesses to be taken as prescribed for taking depositions in civil actions in circuit courts.

(1) (intro.) DUTIES OF THE BUREAU. The legislative audit bureau shall be responsible for conducting postaudits of the accounts and other financial records of ~~state agencies~~ departments to assure that all financial transactions have been made in a legal and proper manner. In connection with such postaudits, the legislative audit bureau shall review the performance and program accomplishments of the ~~agency~~ department during the fiscal period for which the audit is being conducted to determine whether the ~~agency~~ department carried out the policy of the legislature and the governor during the period for which the appropriations were made. In performing postaudits under this subsection, the legislative audit bureau shall not examine issues related to academic freedom within the university of Wisconsin system. A postaudit shall not examine into or comment upon the content of the various academic programs, including degree requirements, majors, curriculum or courses within the university of Wisconsin system, nor shall any such postaudit examine into the manner in which individual faculty members or groups of faculty members conduct their instructional,

research or public service activities. This subsection does not preclude the bureau from reviewing the procedures by which decisions are made and priorities set in the university of Wisconsin system, or the manner in which such decisions and priorities are implemented within the university of Wisconsin system, in so far as such review is not inconsistent with s. 36.09. The legislative audit bureau shall audit the fiscal concerns of the state as required by law. To this end, it shall:

SECTION 1r. 13.94 (1) (b) and (e) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.94 (1) (b) Audit the records of every ~~state~~ department at least once each ~~3~~ 5 years and, in conjunction therewith, reconcile the records of the department audited with those of the department of administration. Within 30 days after completion of any such audit, the bureau shall file with the joint legislative audit committee, the appropriate standing committees of the legislature, the joint committee on legislative organization, the governor, the department of administration, the legislative reference bureau, the joint committee on finance, the legislative fiscal bureau and the department audited, a detailed report thereof, including its recommendations for improvement and efficiency and including specific instances, if any, of illegal or improper expenditures.

(e) Make such special examinations of the accounts and financial transactions of any department, agency or officer as the ~~governor or~~ [governor or] legislature or joint committee on legislative organization directs. Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 1s. 13.94 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.94 (1) (g) Require each department ~~of state government~~ to file with the bureau on or before September 1 of each year a report on all receivables due the state as of the preceding June 30 which were occasioned by activities of the reporting department. Said report shall show the aggregate amount of such receivables according to fiscal year of origin and collections thereon during the fiscal year preceding the report. The state auditor may require any department to file with ~~his~~ the bureau a detailed list of the receivables comprising the aggregate amounts shown on the above indicated reports.

SECTION 1t. 13.94 (1) (h) and (i) of the statutes are amended to read:

13.94 (1) (h) Disseminate information concerning ~~state government~~ department accounting, auditing and fiscal matters.

(i) Prepare a statement of recommendations submitted in each audit report pertaining to ~~state government~~ department operations, which statement shall be available to any person upon request.

SECTION 1tm. 13.94 (1) (m) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

13.94 (1) (m) May contract for the services of such independent professional or technical experts as deemed necessary to carry out the statutory duties and functions of the bureau within the limits of the amount provided under s. 20.765 (3) (c); and, in the case of postaudits involving the performance and program accomplishments of a department, shall contract for the services of such subject matter and program specialists from any state or federal agency or public institution of higher learning as deemed necessary by the joint committee on legislative organization.

SECTION 1u. 13.94 (3) (d) and (4) of the statutes are created to read:

13.94 (3) (d) Execute such directions and requests as may be given by the joint committee on legislative organization pursuant to its statutory responsibility.

(4) SCOPE OF AUTHORITY. In this section, "department" means every state department, board, commission or independent agency; and includes the Wisconsin

health facilities authority, the Wisconsin housing finance authority and the Wisconsin solid waste recycling authority.

SECTION 14. 14.22 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

14.22 Appointments subject to confirmation. (1) Whenever the governor is authorized to make any nomination to office for appointment by and with the advice and consent of the senate, and the senate is not in actual session at the time such nomination is submitted to the senate, the nomination shall be referred to the appropriate standing committee of the senate.

Vetoed
in Part

(2) If the committee to which such nomination is referred recommends approval of the appointment, or if it takes no action thereon within 30 days after receipt of notice of the nomination by the chief clerk of the senate, the governor's appointment shall be as valid and effectual from the time when so made until 20 days after commencement of the next actual session of the senate as if the governor possessed the absolute power of appointment.

(3) If the committee recommends disapproval of the appointment and if, within 10 days of the committee's action, the governor does not withdraw such nomination, the senate shall within 30 days of the committee's action meet and approve or disapprove the appointment.

(4) If the committee recommends disapproval of the governor's appointment, the appointee shall serve until the senate has approved or disapproved the appointment under sub. (3).

SECTION 2. 14.38 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

14.38 (9) FURNISH CERTIFIED COPIES. Make a copy of any law, resolution, deed, bond, record, document or paper deposited or kept in his or her office, upon request therefor, attach thereto his or her certificate, with the great greater or lesser seal affixed, and collect therefor 25 50 cents per folio page and \$2 for such certificate; if such copies are not to be certified then collect therefor the fee of 50 cents per page a reasonable fee to pay for continued operation of reproduction equipment; also to record any document authorized or required by law to be recorded in his or her office, and to charge therefor a fee of 25 cents per folio. The fee for certified copies of appointments, certificates of incorporations or amendments, licenses of foreign corporations, or similar certificates, and for certificates as to results of search of the records and files of his or her office, when a printed form is used, shall be \$3, but when a specially prepared form is required the fee shall be \$4. The minimum fee for any certificate under his hand and seal shall be \$3. Telegraphic reports as to results of record searches shall be \$2 plus the cost of the telegram.

SECTION 2b. 15.347 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.347 (1) (title) WISCONSIN CITIZENS ENVIRONMENTAL COUNCIL. There is created in the department of natural resources a natural beauty Wisconsin citizens environmental council. The council shall consist of one senator and 2 representatives to the assembly appointed as are members of standing committees in the respective houses, 4 members representing the departments of natural resources, transportation and local affairs and development and the university of Wisconsin extension appointed respectively by the heads of the departments and the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system to serve at the pleasure of the appointing authority; and 6 citizen members appointed by the governor to serve 3-year terms so staggered that 2 citizen posts on the council shall expire each year.

SECTION 2bm. 15.347 (4) (intro.), (a) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.347 (4) (intro.) SCIENTIFIC AREAS PRESERVATION COUNCIL. There is created in the department of natural resources a scientific areas preservation council. ~~The council shall consist of a representative of each~~ consisting of the following representatives:

(a) ~~The Two from the~~ department of natural resources, appointed by the board of natural resources, one to serve as secretary.

(b) ~~The Four from the~~ university of Wisconsin system, appointed by the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system.

SECTION 2c. 15.347 (4) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 2cm. 15.347 (4) (d) to (f) of the statutes are renumbered 15.347 (4) (c) to (e) and amended to read:

15.347 (4) (c) ~~The One from the~~ department of public instruction, appointed by the state superintendent.

(d) ~~The One from the~~ Milwaukee public museum; appointed by its board of directors.

(e) ~~The private colleges in this state,~~ Three appointed by the council of the Wisconsin academy of sciences, arts and letters, at least one representing the private colleges in this state.

SECTION 2d. 16.004 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

16.004 (8) REVIEW OF RENTALS FOR STATE-OWNED HOUSING. The secretary shall establish and maintain a system relating to the rentals charged for state-owned housing and shall review the system for possible changes every 2 years and shall submit a recommendation to the joint committee on finance in March of each even-numbered year. Such system shall also include a procedure for review of the need to retain state-owned housing units and possible disposition of such units. Recommendations regarding the disposition of any housing units shall be submitted to the building commission.

SECTION 2h. 16.086 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.086 (1) (e) *Maintenance provisions.* The compensation plan shall also include the approved schedule of allowable charges for the deductions from the pay of employees who are furnished meals, wholesale provisions, ~~rooms, apartments and houses~~ and other maintenance provisions. Where allowances such as laundry, ~~or meals or lodging~~ are provided any classified employe or an employe and his ~~or her~~ family, and such allowance in kind is included as a part of the compensation, the appointing authority or department head in addition shall pay in cash the value of the food during the vacation period or noncumulative leave of absence, if not so utilized, to such an employe.

SECTION 2m. 16.086 (3) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

16.086 (3) (e) *University of Wisconsin system faculty and academic staff employes.* The secretary, after receiving recommendations from the board of regents, shall submit to the joint committee on employment relations a proposal for adjusting compensation and employe benefits for employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m). The proposal for such pay adjustments may contain recommendations for across-the-board pay adjustments, merit or other adjustments and employe benefit improvements. Except for the requirement for advice and counsel from the personnel board and recommendations by the director, par. (b) and sub. (1) (bf) shall apply to the process for approval of all pay adjustments for employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m). The proposal as approved by the joint committee on employment relations and the governor shall be based upon a percentage

of the budgeted salary base for employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m) to be appropriated under s. 20.865 (1) (ci) and (d). The amount included in the proposal for merit, ~~the associated fringe benefit costs~~ and adjustments other than across-the-board pay adjustments, shall be available for discretionary use by the board of regents.

SECTION 3. 16.295 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 3m. 16.31 (1) and (3) (c) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

16.31 (1) Whenever a conservation warden, conservation patrol boat captain, conservation patrol boat engineer, state forest ranger, conservation field employe of the department of natural resources who is subject to call for fire control duty, member of the state patrol, state motor vehicle inspector, lifeguard, investigator employed by the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice, special tax agent, state drivers' license examiner, member of the state fair police department, university of Wisconsin system policeman and other state facilities policeman and patrolman, security officer, watchman, engineer, engineering aid, building construction superintendent, fire watchman employed at the Wisconsin veterans home, or guard or institutional aid or a state probation and parole officer or any other employe whose duties include supervision and discipline of inmates or wards of the state at a state penal institution, including central state hospital or the state Ethan Allen school ~~for boys~~ or while on parole supervision outside of the confines of the institutions, or supervision of persons placed on probation by a court of record, or supervision and care of patients at a state mental institution, and university hospitals suffers injury while in the performance of his or her duties, as defined in subs. (2) and (3); or any other state employe who is ordered by his or her appointing authority to accompany any employe listed in this subsection while such listed employe is engaged in the duties defined in sub. (3), or any other state employe who is ordered by his or her appointing authority to perform the duties, when permitted, in lieu of such listed employe and while ~~he is~~ so engaged in the duties defined in sub. (3), suffers injury as defined in sub. (2) ~~he the employe~~ shall continue to be fully paid by ~~his the~~ employing department upon the same basis as ~~he was~~ paid prior to the injury with no deduction from sick leave credits, compensatory time for overtime accumulations or vacation. Such full pay shall continue, while ~~he the employe~~ is unable to return to work as the result of the injury, or until the termination of his or her employment upon recommendation of the appointing authority. At any time during the employe's period of disability the appointing authority may order physical or medical examinations to determine the degree of disability at the expense of the employing department.

(3) (c) (intro.) A guard, institution aid, or other employe at the university of Wisconsin hospitals or at state penal and mental institutions, including central state hospital or the state Ethan Allen school ~~for boys~~ and state probation and parole officers, at all times while:

SECTION 4. 16.54 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

16.54 (9) The department shall coordinate the development of a statewide indirect cost allocation plan to be used by all state agencies as part of their indirect cost allocation plans prepared as part of the federal grant application process.

SECTION 5. 16.62 of the statutes, as renumbered by chapter 41, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

16.62 Records management service. (1) The department shall establish and maintain a records management service:

(a) To advise and assist state agencies in the establishment and operation of records management programs through the issuance of standards and procedures and provision of technical and management consulting services.

(b) To operate a state records center and a central microfilm facility for state agencies and to develop rules as necessary for efficient operation of the facilities.

(c) To periodically audit state agencies' records management programs and recommend improvements in records management practices.

(2) The department shall develop, in consultation with the public records board, guidelines for the retention of records including, but not limited to, minimum and maximum retention periods for records, and guidelines to minimize unnecessary records storage.

(3) The department may establish user charges for records storage and retrieval services, with any moneys collected to be credited to the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (i). Such charges shall be structured to encourage efficient utilization of the services.

SECTION 5m. 16.75 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.75 (1) ~~All materials, supplies, equipment and contractual services except as otherwise provided in subs. (3) and (7), when the estimated cost exceeds \$3,000, shall be purchased from the lowest responsible bidder. (a) All orders awarded or contracts made by the department for all materials, supplies, equipment and contractual services, except as otherwise provided in subs. (3) and (7), shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, taking into consideration the location of the institution or agency, the quantities of the articles to be supplied, their conformity with the specifications, the purposes for which they are required and the date of delivery, but preference shall always be given to materials, supplies and provisions, equipment and contractual services of Wisconsin producers, distributors, suppliers and retailers. Bids shall be received only in accordance with such standard specifications as are adopted by the department as provided in this subsection. Any or all bids may be rejected. Each bid, with the name of the bidder, shall be entered on a record, and each record with the successful bid indicated shall, after the award or letting of the contract, be opened to public inspection. Due~~

~~(b) When the estimated cost exceeds \$10,000, due notice inviting proposals bids shall be published as a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, and the bids shall not be opened until at least 7 days from the last day of publication. The official advertisement shall give a clear description of the article materials, supplies, equipment or service to be purchased, the amount of the bond or check to be submitted as surety with the bid and the date of public opening.~~

~~(c) When the estimated cost is \$10,000 or less, the lowest responsible bidder shall be selected in accordance with simplified bidding procedures established by the department for such contracts.~~

~~SECTION 5p. 16.78 of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~16.78 Warehouses. The department of administration may establish necessary warehouses wherein it shall be permitted to in which it may store such staple and standard articles as are needed by various state officers. The department or its designees may sell at their total cost, including cost of handling, such stored articles to municipalities. For the purpose of this section "municipalities" has the meaning designated in s. 66.29 (1) (b).~~

~~SECTION 5z. 17.20 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:~~

~~17.20 (2) INTERIM VACANCIES; TERMS. When the senate is not in actual session, vacancies occurring in the office of any officer normally nominated by the governor,~~

Vetoed
in Part

~~and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, shall be filled in accordance with s. 14.22. Any appointment subject to confirmation by the senate shall be in full force until acted upon by the senate, and when confirmed by the senate shall continue for the residue of the unexpired term. Any appointment made under this subsection on the days specified in s. 13.02 (1) for organization of a new legislature shall be invalid, but may be renewed after the executive office has been officially notified by a joint resolution that the new legislature has been organized.~~

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 7. At the appropriate place in the schedule in section 20.005 of the statutes, insert the following amounts for the purposes indicated:

			1975-76	1976-77
Vetoed in Part	20.255	Public instruction, department of		
	(1)	EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES		
	(am)	Wisconsin special olympics	GPR A	-0-
				20,000
	20.370	Natural resources, department of		
	(1)	FORESTRY, WILDLIFE AND RECREATION		
	(em)	Park land acquisition and development	GPR B	-0-
				250,000
	(5)	FIELD SERVICES		
	(v)	Repair and maintenance	SEG B	-0-
				100,000
	20.435	Health and social services, department of		
	(4)	FAMILY SERVICES		
	(da)	Nursing home appeals board	GPR A	180,000
	(8)	GENERAL ADMINISTRATION		
	(b)	Medicaid management study	GPR A	-0-
				200,000
	20.505	Administration, department of		
	(5)	SPECIAL AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES		
	(f)	Commission on state-local relations and financing policy	GPR A	-0-
				130,000
	20.545	Local affairs and development, department of		
	(3)	EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RECOVERY ASSISTANCE		
	(c)	Disaster recovery aids	GPR B	3,000
				-0-
	20.575	Secretary of state		
	(1)	GENERAL ADMINISTRATION		
	(g)	Agency collections	PR A	0
				9,100

SECTION 7d. 20.115 (4) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 20.370 (6) (f) and amended to read:

20.370 (6) (f) *Lease rental payments—Olympic ice rink.* From moneys allocated under ~~s. 20.370 sub.~~ (7) (a), a sum sufficient for the payment of rentals on leases and subleases previously entered into pursuant to ~~under~~ s. 22.41 for the Olympic ice rink.

SECTION 7f. 20.115 (4) (f) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is renumbered 20.370 (1) (fp) and amended to read:

20.370 (1) (fp) *Olympic ice rink repair and maintenance.* Biennially, from moneys allocated under ~~s. 20.370 sub.~~ (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the repair, maintenance, operation and improvement of the Olympic ice rink.

SECTION 7m. 20.115 (4) (g) of the statutes is renumbered 20.370 (1) (g).

SECTION 7p. 20.115 (4) (h) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.115 (4) (h) *State fair.* All moneys received for or on account of the state fair, state fair park or other events for general program operations. ~~The state fair park board may authorize the transfer of funds from this appropriation to the appropriation made by par. (g) to supplement the operations of the Olympic ice rink, but any such transfers shall be reported to the joint committee on finance prior to the closing of each fiscal year.~~ Any surplus of unexpended receipts on June 30 of each year shall be transferred to the appropriation under par. (i).

SECTION 8. 20.235 (1) (fa) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (fa) *Student loan interest.* A sum sufficient for interest on investments under s. 25.17 (3) (bc) and (bf) if the amounts appropriated under ~~par-~~ pars. (gm), (h) and (m) are insufficient.

SECTION 8a. 20.235 (1) (ff) of the statutes is created to read:

20.235 (1) (ff) *Interest payments.* A sum sufficient for interest on loans assigned, sold or conveyed, if the amounts under pars. (ha) and (ma) are insufficient to provide interest due on the payment date at the interest rate stated on the loan notes assigned, sold or conveyed, interest to be computed on the unpaid principal balance of the loans, computed as of January 1 and July 1 of each year and payable within 90 days thereafter.

SECTION 8b. 20.235 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (g) *Student loans.* The principal repaid on student loans made under ss. 39.32 and 49.42, 1963 stats., other than principal repaid on loans assigned, sold or conveyed, and all moneys received as an advance from the investment board, under s. 25.17 (3) (bf), to be used for additional loans under s. 39.32, for repurchase of loans assigned, sold or conveyed and for repayment of advances by the investment board. Moneys credited to the higher educational aids board as a result of investments shall be considered under this appropriation as repayments. The amount of advances to the higher educational aids board charged against the authorization under s. 25.17 (3) (bf) shall be decreased by the amount of any repayments to the investment board under this appropriation. Advances repaid to the investment board shall be reappropriated to the higher educational aids board for the purpose of providing additional loans subject to s. 25.17 (3) (bf) 2. Principal repayments on loans assigned, sold or conveyed shall be repaid under this appropriation. The state auditor may annually audit the portfolio of student loans and notes thereon in the possession of the higher educational aids board and report his or her determination of the current condition of the student notes receivable portfolio to the investment board, the joint committee on finance, the higher educational aids board and the department of administration.

SECTION 8c. 20.235 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (h) *Student interest payments.* All moneys received as interest on loans made under ~~s. ss.~~ 39.32 and 49.42, 1963 stats., except for moneys received as interest on loans assigned, sold or conveyed, for the payment of interest under s. 25.17 (3) (bf).

SECTION 8d. 20.235 (1) (ha) of the statutes is created to read:

20.235 (1) (ha) *Student interest.* All moneys received as interest on loans made under s. 39.32 which have been assigned, sold or conveyed, for the payment of interest on loans assigned, sold or conveyed.

SECTION 9. 20.235 (1) (k) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (k) *Write-off of defaulted student loans.* All moneys originally appropriated for student loans other than moneys advanced from the investment board, and other than moneys resulting from assignment, sale or conveyance of student loans, for write-off of defaulted student loans made under s. 49.42, stats. 1963, and s. 1963 stats., and ss. 39.32 and 39.34.

SECTION 9b. 20.235 (1) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (m) *Federal interest payments.* All moneys received as interest payments from the federal government under P.L. 89-287 and P.L. 89-329, as amended, except for moneys received as interest payments on loans assigned, sold or

conveyed, for the payment of interest under s. 25.17 (3) (bf).

SECTION 9c. 20.235 (1) (ma) of the statutes is created to read:

20.235 (1) (ma) *Federal interest*. All moneys received as interest payments from the federal government under P.L. 89-287 and P.L. 89-329, as amended, on loans assigned, sold or conveyed for the payment of interest on loans assigned, sold or conveyed.

SECTION 10b. 20.245 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.245 (1) (c) (title) *Utilities and heat*. A sum sufficient to reimburse the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system for utilities and heat supplied the historical society.

SECTION 10c. 20.250 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

Partial
Veto
Overruled

20.250 (1) (a) *General program operations*. The amounts in the schedule for medical education, teaching and research as provided under s. 39.155. Of the amounts appropriated under this paragraph, \$149,600 in 1975-76 and \$158,100 in 1976-77 shall be used to fund the family practice program under s. 39.155 and \$75,000 in 1976-77 shall be used to fund the program involving the transfer of residents of this state from foreign medical schools.

SECTION 10m. 20.255 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (d) *State aids for handicapped children*. ~~A sum sufficient~~ The amounts in the schedule for the payment of aids under ss. 115.88 (1) to (7) and 118.255.

~~SECTION 10s. 20.255 (1) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:~~

Vetoed
in Part

~~20.255 (1) (dm) *Wisconsin special olympics*. The amounts in the schedule to provide funding for the Wisconsin special olympics, incorporated, to be used to reduce or eliminate fees paid by mentally retarded children and adults who participate in physical education events held by the Wisconsin special olympics, incorporated.~~

SECTION 12. 20.255 (1) (fc) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (fc) *Cooperative educational service agencies*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of a maximum of \$38,300 in 1975-76 and \$39,300 annually thereafter to each cooperative educational service agency, for the current operational expenses of these agencies and an amount not to exceed \$116,000 in 1975-76 and \$124,100 annually thereafter to reimburse the agencies for agency school committee expenses under s. 116.52 (3). In addition, from funds available under this appropriation, the state superintendent may provide aid to school districts and cooperative educational service agencies for the development of data processing services on a regional basis. In addition, from funds available under this appropriation, the state superintendent shall pay an additional amount not to exceed \$22,700 to the agencies for agency school committee expenses incurred during 1973-74 but paid during 1975-76.

SECTION 13m. 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

20.285 (1) (a) *General program operations*. 1. The amounts in the schedule for the purpose of the educational and related programs which are further allocated by organizational cluster as follows: [See Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 1 following]

Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 1:

Organizational Cluster

		1975-76	1976-77
Doctoral	GPR	119,685,700	120,201,400
	Academic fees	39,262,000	39,334,500
	Subtotal	(158,947,700)	(159,535,900)
Nondoctoral campuses	GPR	92,346,500	92,512,200
	Academic fees	32,597,100	32,597,100
	Subtotal	(124,943,600)	(125,109,300)
Center system	GPR	9,277,300	9,320,400
	Academic fees	2,740,400	2,740,500
	Subtotal	(12,017,700)	(12,060,900)
Extension	GPR	15,055,500	15,081,700
	Academic fees	720,000	720,000
	Subtotal	(15,775,500)	(15,801,700)
Central administration Systemwide	GPR	3,905,400	3,908,300
	GPR	-	-
	Academic fees	15,287,300	16,456,300
Total	Subtotal	(12,014,800)	(13,753,900)
	GPR	236,997,900	238,321,600
	Academic fees	90,606,800	91,848,400
Grand Total		327,604,700	330,170,000

2. Transfers between the above allocations are permitted under s. 16.50. In addition, transfers between subprograms shall be reported quarterly to the department of administration. Funds for these subprograms shall be allocated as follows: [See Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 2 following]

Figure 20.285 (1) (a) 2:

Subprograms

		1975-76	1976-77
Instruction	GPR	105,865,400	105,994,900
	Academic fees	90,606,800	91,848,400
	Subtotal	(196,472,200)	(197,843,300)
Research	GPR	15,749,000	15,757,100
Public service	GPR	11,669,200	11,751,400
Academic support	GPR	25,142,700	25,319,000
Student and auxiliary services	GPR	16,903,600	16,986,500
Institutional support	GPR	61,668,000	62,512,700
Total	GPR	236,997,900	238,321,600
	Academic fees	90,606,800	91,848,400
	Grand Total	327,604,700	330,170,000

SECTION 15d. 20.285 (2) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

20.285 (2) (f) *Expenditure of program revenue.* Subject to approval under s. 16.50, the board of regents may:

1. Expend revenues from the appropriations under sub. (1) (im), (iz) and (n) in excess of the amounts appropriated in the most recent biennial and annual review budget acts under sub. (1) (im), (iz) and (n) except that the board of regents shall obtain prior approval of the joint committee on finance if total expenditures, not including any amounts for approved compensation adjustments, from the combined appropriations under sub. (1) (im), (iz) and (n) would exceed the amounts appropriated in the most recent biennial and annual review budget acts under sub. (1) (im), (iz) and (n) plus one percent of the combined total of the amounts appropriated in the most recent biennial and annual review budget acts under sub. (1) (a), (im), (iz) and (n); and

2. Carry forward prior year balances from the appropriations under sub. (1) (im), (iz) and (n) except that the board of regents shall obtain prior approval from the joint committee on finance if the total of unencumbered balances to be carried forward from the appropriations under sub. (1) (im), (iz) and (n) would exceed an amount equal to one percent of the combined total of the amounts appropriated in the most recent biennial and annual review budget acts under sub. (1) (a), (im), (iz) and (n).

SECTION 15m. 20.285 (2) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

20.285 (2) (g) *Program revenue reporting.* 1. The board of regents shall report the following data to the joint committee on finance regarding the appropriations under sub. (1) (im) and (n):

- a. Balances, including any carryover balances.
- b. Receipts.
- c. Expenditures.
- d. Encumbrances.
- e. Detailed other commitments.
- f. Projected year end status for each of the items in subd. 1. a to e.

2. For the appropriation under sub. (1) (im), the board shall submit the required reports to the committee on April 15 and November 15 of each year. For the appropriations under sub. (1) (n) the board shall submit the required reports to the committee every month whenever the legislature has under consideration a bill introduced under s. 16.47 (1) or 16.475 and at all other times on a quarterly basis.

SECTION 16. 20.292 (1) (u) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.292 (1) (u) *Driver education, local assistance.* ~~All moneys~~ The amounts in the schedule received from the allocation made under s. 20.395 (1) (q), to be distributed to vocational, technical and adult education districts for operating driver training programs under ss. 38.28 (2) (c) and 121.15.

SECTION 17. 20.370 (1) (em) of the statutes is created to read:

20.370 (1) (em) *Park land acquisition and development.* Biennially from the moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the acquisition and development of state park lands under s. 27.01.

SECTION 17a. 20.370 (3) (vp) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (3) (vp) *Aids — snowmobile enforcement.* ~~The~~ From the moneys allocated for law enforcement aids to counties as authorized under s. 350.12 (4) (a) 4, a sum sufficient not to exceed \$100,000 annually to be used exclusively for the enforcement of ch. 350.

SECTION 17b. 20.370 (3) (wd) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (3) (wd) *Boat law enforcement — state.* ~~From~~ Annually, from the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, the amounts in the schedule for boat law enforcement by the state.

SECTION 17c. 20.370 (3) (we) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (3) (we) *Boat safety training.* ~~From~~ Annually, from the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, the amounts in the schedule for boat safety training.

SECTION 17d. 20.370 (3) (wf) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (3) (wf) *Boat safety aids.* From the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, an amount not to exceed \$200,000 annually for the payment of state aids under s. 30.79, after first deducting the amounts appropriated under pars. (wd) and (we) and sub. (8) (w).

SECTION 17g. 20.370 (5) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (5) (c) (title) *Wisconsin citizens environmental council.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the operations of the ~~natural beauty~~ Wisconsin citizens environmental council under s. 144.76.

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 17m. 20.370 (5) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

~~20.370 (5) (g) Pamphlets and publications. All moneys received from fees collected by the department under s. 29.21 to be used to offset costs associated with the conservation bulletin or other publications which the department may issue under s. 29.21.~~

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 18. 20.370 (5) (v) of the statutes is created to read:

20.370 (5) (v) *Repair and maintenance.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the improvement, repair and maintenance costs of district and area structures and buildings under the control of the department.

SECTION 19. 20.370 (6) (em) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed.

SECTION 19m. 20.370 (7) (a) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (7) (a) *General program operations.* (intro.) The unencumbered balance under s. 20.370 (7) (a), 1973 stats., on June 30, 1975, and as an annual appropriation on July 1, 1975, and on each July 1 thereafter, an amount equal to .0165% of the current equalized value of all taxable property in this state for an outdoor recreation program. The natural resources board may allocate the remaining funds in general accordance with s. 23.30 to the appropriations specified under subs. (1), (5), (6) and (8), ~~20.115 (4) (d) and (f) and ss. 20.245 (1) (d) and (f) and 20.395 (4) (a).~~

SECTION 19p. 20.370 (8) (w) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.370 (8) (w) *Boat registration.* All Annually, from the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, the amounts in the schedule for boat registration ~~except the amounts appropriated under sub. (3) (wd) for boat law enforcement by the state, and sub. (3) (we) for boat safety training and licensing costs.~~

SECTION 20. 20.395 (1) (q) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.395 (1) (q) *State agency assistance.* The amounts ~~needed for the administration, regulation and promotion of transportation. From this appropriation the amounts~~ in the schedule shall, to be allocated in accordance with ss. 20.115 (1) (q), 20.135 (2) (q), 20.155 (1) (u), 20.255 (1) (q) and (r), 20.285 (1) (x), 20.292 (1) (u), 20.355 (1) (u), 20.505 (3), 20.525 (2) (q), 20.566 (1) (u) and 20.765 (2) (u).

SECTION 21. 20.395 (1) (qb) 2 (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.395 (1) (qb) 2 (intro.) On June 30, 60% of the amount remaining from highway fund revenues collected by the division of motor vehicles of the department of transportation, department of revenue and public service commission after deducting the amount appropriated from the highway fund by subd. 1 and subs. (1) (q), (qa) and (qc) to (qg), (2) (q), (4) (q) 2 to 6 and (qa) to (r), (5) (q), (7) (u) to (w) and (8) ~~(q) and (qa).~~ The amounts determined under subs. 1 and 2 shall be used to supplement payments under par. (qa) as follows:

SECTION 21m. 20.395 (2) (q) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.395 (2) (q) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for administering the transportation registration, licensing, inspection and enforcement program, and to compensate for services performed, as determined by the secretary of transportation, by any county providing registration services on and after the effective date of this act (1975). Of the amount appropriated under this paragraph, the department may maintain a contingent fund, not to exceed \$4,000, for establishing change funds in the amount deemed necessary by the department.

SECTION 22. 20.435 (4) (da) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (4) (da) *Nursing home appeals board*. The amounts in the schedule for the execution of functions under s. 49.45 (6m) (e). Of the amount in the schedule for fiscal year 1976-77, no more than \$420,000 may be expended prior to January 1, 1977.

SECTION 23. 20.435 (4) (p) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 82, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.435 (4) (p) *Social security federal aids; grants and administration*. All federal moneys received for meeting costs of county administered public assistance programs under s. 49.52, state administered programs under s. 49.50 (7), the county costs of the child support and establishment of paternity program under s. 46.25 and the cost of care for children under s. 49.19 (10) (d).

SECTION 23m. 20.435 (4) (pm) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 82, laws of 1975, is renumbered 20.435 (4) (kk).

SECTION 23t. 20.435 (4) (ps) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (4) (ps) *Nursing home appeals board*. All federal moneys received for the execution of functions under s. 49.45 (6m) (e).

SECTION 24. 20.435 (5) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.435 (5) (d) *Workshop for the blind*. The amounts in the schedule for general program operations of the workshop for the blind. ~~Of the amounts in the schedule, \$70,000 shall be earmarked for nonrecurring capital expenditures for improvement of the workshop production equipment.~~

SECTION 24m. 20.435 (8) (b) and (p) of the statutes are created to read:

20.435 (8) (b) *Medicaid management study*. The amounts in the schedule, less any amounts in excess of \$200,000 charged to the appropriation under par. (p), for the general program operations of the medicaid management study created under chapter _____ (this act), laws of 1975, section 145h (12).

(p) *Federal aid — medicaid management study*. All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for the medicaid management study created under chapter _____ (this act), laws of 1975, section 145h (12).

SECTION 25. 20.435 (8) (q) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (8) (q) *Federal aid — local assistance*. All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for local assistance.

SECTION 26. 20.445 (1) (x) 9 of the statutes is created to read:

20.445 (1) (x) 9. There is appropriated, from the unemployment reserve fund's employment security administrative financing account created by s. 108.161, to the administration fund created by s. 108.20, for use on employment security building projects in accordance with those sections, \$500,000 of the amounts credited to that employment security administrative financing account which are unobligated and available for obligation under s. 108.161. The amounts appropriated by this subdivision for the construction of employment security buildings are available for obligation solely within the 2 years after the effective date of this act (1975).

SECTION 27. 20.455 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.455 (4) (b) *Training aids*. ~~The Biennially, the~~ amounts in the schedule for the purpose of matching federal aids to be used to reimburse law enforcement agencies for training of law enforcement personnel.

SECTION 27m. 20.465 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.465 (1) (f) (title) *Fuel and utilities*. A sum sufficient to pay for the use of electricity, water, sewage service and gas and to pay the cost of fuel used for heating of

military buildings under the control of the department ~~and, including~~ the freight and local hauling charges ~~thereon where applicable.~~ Coal or fuel oil purchases under this paragraph shall be purchased under s. 16.71 (4). Payments for coal purchased under this paragraph shall be made as provided in s. 16.91.

SECTION 28. 20.485 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.485 (1) (c) (title) *Fuel and utilities.* A sum sufficient to pay for the use of electricity, to cover the cost of gas for cooking and to cover the cost of coal or other fuels used for space heating at the Wisconsin veterans home, including freight charges and local hauling charges where applicable. Coal or fuel oil purchases under this paragraph shall be purchased ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 16.71 (4). Payments for coal purchased hereunder shall be made as provided in s. 16.91.

SECTION 29. 20.505 (5) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

20.505 (5) (f) *Commission on state-local relations and financing policy.* The amounts in the schedule for the general program operations of the commission on state-local relations and financing policy.

SECTION 30. 20.545 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.545 (1) (c) (title) *Winterization matching funds.* ~~The Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for supplemental interim funding of high priority planning and administration functions of community action agencies in this state, which because of federal funding reductions would be severely reduced or eliminated to match federal funding for low- and moderate-income home winterization.~~ The board on governmental operations joint committee on finance shall approve an expenditure plan of the amount appropriated under this paragraph. Funds may be spent from this appropriation only if they are in accord with the approved expenditure plan.

SECTION 32. 20.545 (3) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

20.545 (3) (c) *Disaster recovery aids.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to provide the required state share of aids payable to individuals under federal disaster recovery programs.

SECTION 33. 20.545 (4) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

20.545 (4) (g) *Program services.* All moneys received for services provided to carry out the purposes of the programs.

SECTION 34. 20.575 (1) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

20.575 (1) (g) *Agency collections.* Annually, the amounts in the schedule from the moneys received by the office as fees or other charges for photocopying, microfilm copying, sale of books and other such services provided in carrying out the functions of the office. All unencumbered balances shall lapse to the general fund annually on June 30.

SECTION 35. 20.865 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 81, laws of 1975, and by the supreme court order dated February 17, 1975, effective January 1, 1976, is amended to read:

20.865 (1) (a) *Judgments.* A sum sufficient to pay the amounts due under ~~ss. 21.13, 59.31, 285.05 (5), 285.06, 286.43 and chapter 582, laws of 1911.~~

SECTION 35d. 20.865 (1) (ci) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.865 (1) (ci) *University system faculty and academic pay adjustments.* A sum sufficient to pay the cost of pay adjustments ~~and associated fringe benefit costs~~ approved by the legislature or the joint committee on employment relations under s. 16.086 (3) (e) for university of Wisconsin system employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m).

SECTION 36. 20.866 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 26, 39 and 40, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.866 (1) (u) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient from moneys appropriated under ss. 20.115 (4) (j), 20.225 (1) (c), 20.245 (1) (e), 20.250 (1) (e), 20.255 (2) (c), 20.285 (1) (d) and (gb), 20.370 (6) (b), and (d) and (em), 20.395 (1) (ra), (rb), (rc) and (rd), 20.435 (2) (ee) and (3) (e), 20.465 (1) (d), 20.485 (1) (f) and (3) (t) and 20.710 (1) (a) and (i) and (3) (a), (b), (g) and (h) for the payment of principal and interest on public debt acquired in accordance with ch. 18.

SECTION 37. 20.866 (2) (v) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.866 (2) (v) *Health and social services; mental health facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule for the department of health and social services to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or extend mental health facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$22,622,600~~ \$23,622,600 for this purpose.

SECTION 37a. 20.866 (2) (zn) of the statutes, as created by chapter 26, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.866 (2) (zn) *Veterans affairs; self-amortizing mortgage loans.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to the department of veterans affairs for the purchase of mortgages and mortgage notes covering loans made to veterans under s. 45.79 (6) (a). The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$300,000,000~~ \$380,000,000 for this purpose.

SECTION 37m. 20.903 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.903 (2) ANTICIPATION OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Program revenue continuing appropriations may be encumbered and moneys expended therefrom in an amount not exceeding the total of the unencumbered appropriation balance plus accrued accounts receivable outstanding, plus inventories and work in process, but not in excess of the amount allotted by the department of administration, without violating sub. (1). In addition, the appropriation under s. 20.505 (1) (i) may be encumbered and moneys expended therefrom in an additional amount not exceeding the depreciated value of motor vehicles financed through such appropriation for fleet operations, without violating sub. (1). The secretary of administration may require such statements of outstanding accounts receivable as he or she deems necessary before allotting sums in excess of the unencumbered appropriation balance. For the purposes of this subsection only, the secretary shall consider as accrued accounts receivable on each June 30, the federal aid funds allotted and \$8,000,000 of the revenues from imposts which the department of transportation has obligated ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 84.01 (20).

SECTION 37t. 20.916 (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.916 (3) FURNISHING OF GROUP TRANSPORTATION TO PLACE OF WORK. The department of health and social services and the department of natural resources may, with the approval of the governor and the department of administration, provide group transportation, in the absence of convenient and public scheduled transportation, for employees to and from the Mendota and Winnebago mental health institutes, the ~~northern, central and southern colonies and training schools centers for the developmentally disabled, the Wisconsin home for women, the Wisconsin school for boys at Wales Taycheedah correctional institution, the Ethan Allen school and the Wisconsin correctional institution at Fox Lake~~ in the case of employees of the department of health and social services, and to and from its temporary branch offices

located at the Nevin fish hatchery grounds in the case of employes of the department of natural resources. Any employe, if injured while being so transported, shall be deemed to have been in the course of his or her employment.

SECTION 38. 20.920 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.920 (1) (a) "Department" means the department of health and social services, department of public instruction, board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system, state fair park board and department of veterans affairs.

SECTION 39. 20.920 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.920 (2) (b) By the procedure provided in par. (a) the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system and the several institutions under its control and the state fair park board may use money in the respective contingent funds to pay bills of \$500 or less which allow the taking of a discount if paid in 30 days or less and for the payment of necessary expenses which must be met by the payment of cash.

SECTION 39k. 20.923 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

20.923 (2) (a) The annual salary for each of the following positions shall be set at the midpoint of the assigned salary range for its respective executive salary group in effect at the time of taking the oath of office, except as provided in pars. (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) and shall become effective immediately for all incumbent constitutional and other elected state officials, subject to article IV, section 26 of the Wisconsin constitution and for any subsequently elected official who takes his or her oath following August 5, 1973, except that such annual salary shall not include the additional one percent increase provided for nonrepresented state employes in 1976-77 by chapter _____ (this act), laws of 1975, section 145f.

SECTION 39m. 20.923 (4) (b) 1 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 39n. 20.923 (4) (c) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (4) (c) 1. Agriculture, department of; divisions of administration, meat inspection, food and standards, marketing, plant ~~industries~~ industry and trade: administrators.

SECTION 40. 22.13 (2) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

22.13 (2) (o) Provide personnel management consultative assistance to towns, villages, cities and counties and may provide such assistance to other local public bodies, boards, commissions, departments or agencies.

SECTION 41a. 23.09 (2) (d) 6 of the statutes is created to read:

23.09 (2) (d) 6. For preservation of any species defined in s. 29.415 (2).

SECTION 41m. 25.01 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 25.01 (2) (a).

SECTION 41n. 25.01 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

25.01 (2) (b) The board of commissioners of public lands may authorize investment of any of said funds in loans to students under s. 39.32 through assignment, sale or conveyance of such loans to the board of commissioners by the higher educational aids board. Such investments shall be guaranteed under rules established under s. 39.33. The responsibility and right to authorize such loans and for collection of interest and principal on such loans assigned, sold or conveyed to the board of commissioners shall rest with the higher educational aids board. Interest and principal payments from such loans shall be received from the appropriations under s. 20.235 (1) (ff), (g), (ha) and (ma), interest to be computed on the unpaid principal balance of the loans at the interest rate stated on the loan notes assigned, sold or conveyed, computed as of January 1 and July 1 of each year and payable within 90 days

thereafter. All notes assigned, sold or conveyed shall be held for the commissioners by the higher educational aids board.

SECTION 41o. 25.01 (4) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

25.01 (4) PREFERENCES. So far as practicable investments in student loans through assignment, sale or conveyance of such loans by the higher educational aids board shall be supplied before any other loan or investment authorized by this section is made.

SECTION 41p. 25.02 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.02 (3) INTEREST RATES. All loans shall bear interest at a rate not less than 2% payable annually, except that investments in student loans made under s. 25.01 (2) (b) shall bear interest at an annual rate not less than 7%.

SECTION 41q. 25.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

25.04 Date when interest and principal become due. The annual interest and instalments of principal of all loans from the trust funds, excluding interest and instalments of principal from investments in student loans made under s. 25.01 (2) (b), shall be payable into the state treasury with other state taxes, or on or before August 15 of each year in accordance with s. 74.03.

SECTION 41r. 29.21 of the statutes is amended to read:

29.21 Publications. The department may issue pamphlets and bulletins, and may also issue a publication or magazine at such stated intervals as they may determine, all pertaining to fish and game, forests, parks and other kindred subjects of general information and may sell subscriptions thereto. ~~Provided, however, that in case a publication or magazine is issued under the authority thereof, the same must be self-sustaining, and no moneys, except from the receipts therefrom, shall ever be used therefor; and provided further that in case said publication or magazine shall not be so self-sustaining, or shall cease so to be, the same shall thereupon cease to be issued.~~

SECTION 41rd. 32.185 of the statutes is created to read:

32.185 Condemnor. "Condemnor", for the purposes of ss. 32.19 to 32.27, means any municipality, board, commission, public officer or corporation vested with the power of eminent domain which acquires property for public purposes either by negotiated purchase when authorized by statute to employ its powers of eminent domain or by the power of eminent domain.

SECTION 41rh. 32.19 (2) (a) 4 of the statutes is amended to read:

32.19 (2) (a) 4. An individual not a member of a family, except that 2 or more tenant occupants of the same dwelling unit shall be considered as one person.

SECTION 41rm. 32.19 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

Vetoed
in Part

32.19 (3) (intro.) RELOCATION PAYMENTS. Any condemnor which proceeds with the acquisition of real and personal property for ~~public purposes of any project for which the power of condemnation~~ [of any project for which the power of condemnation] ~~under this chapter may be exercised,~~ [may be exercised,] shall make fair and reasonable relocation payments to displaced persons, business concerns and farm operations under this section. ~~The following items shall be compensable in eminent domain proceedings where shown to exist.~~ Payments shall be made as follows:

SECTION 41s. 36.09 (1) (j) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

36.09 (1) (j) The board shall establish salaries for persons not in the classified staff prior to July 1 of each year for the next fiscal year, and shall designate the effective dates for payment of the new salaries. In the first year of the biennium, payments of the salaries established for the preceding year shall be continued until the

biennial budget bill is enacted. If the budget is enacted after July 1, payments shall be made following enactment of the budget to satisfy the obligations incurred on the effective dates, as designated by the board, for the new salaries, subject only to the appropriation of funds by the legislature and s. 20.865 (5). This paragraph shall not limit the authority of the board to establish salaries for new appointments. The board shall not increase the pay of employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m) under this paragraph unless it conforms to the proposal as approved under s. 16.086 (3) (e) or is authorized by the board to correct salary inequities under par. (h) or to fund job reclassifications.

SECTION 41t. 36.11 (17) of the statutes is created to read:

36.11 (17) **SABBATICAL LEAVE FOR INSTRUCTIONAL FACULTY.** The board may grant sabbatical leave of up to one year to instructional faculty, in order to recognize and enhance teaching efforts and excellence, under rules and procedures adopted by the board, subject to the following conditions:

(a) Sabbatical leave may be granted only to those faculty members who have completed 6 or more years, or the equivalent, of full-time instructional service in the system.

(b) Only one sabbatical leave may be granted for each 6 years of full-time instructional service in the system with preference given to those who have been making significant contributions to teaching and have not had a leave of absence, regardless of source of funding, in the previous 4 years.

(c) Sabbatical leave shall be granted for the purposes of enhancing teaching, course and curriculum development, ~~research or other scholarly pursuits~~ within the field of expertise of the faculty member taking such leave. **Vetoed in Part**

(d) Sabbatical leave shall be approved by appropriate faculty and administrative committees.

(e) A faculty member shall receive compensation while on sabbatical leave, but such compensation, when combined with outside compensation earned while on leave, shall not exceed the full compensation normally received from the system.

(f) The faculty member taking a sabbatical leave shall agree to return to the institution from which leave was granted for at least one year after the termination of the sabbatical or return any compensation received from the system during the sabbatical.

(g) Funding for the sabbatical leave program shall be provided from the existing general operations appropriation for the system.

(h) The number of instructional faculty eligible for sabbatical leave during the academic year shall not exceed 1 1/2% of the total unclassified faculty positions authorized to the university of Wisconsin system.

(i) The sum of the general purpose revenue portions of compensation amounts paid to individuals in the year prior to their receiving sabbatical leaves under this subsection shall not exceed \$200,000.

SECTION 41w. 36.39 of the statutes is created to read:

36.39 Complimentary and reduced price tickets prohibited. Complimentary and reduced price tickets to any system athletic event for which an admission fee is normally charged are prohibited with the following exceptions:

(1) Reduced price tickets for minors and students;

(2) Complimentary and reduced price tickets required by rules of intercollegiate athletic conferences in which the system participates; and

(3) Complimentary and reduced price tickets for individuals who perform duties directly related to the conduct of the athletic event for which they are issued.

SECTION 42. 38.24 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

38.24 (1) (b) *Postsecondary and vocational-adult programs.* Uniform fees based on not less than 9.5% of the combined estimated statewide operational cost of postsecondary, exclusive of collegiate transfer, and vocational-adult programs. The board shall maintain statewide uniformity in the program fees charged for postsecondary and vocational-adult credits. Students 62 years old and over shall be exempted from program fees under this paragraph in vocational-adult programs. Students enrolled in adult high school, adult basic education and English as a 2nd language courses shall be exempted from program fees under this paragraph.

SECTION 42b. 38.24 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

Vetoed in Part 38.24 (1) (c) *Materials fees.* Establish uniform definitions and guidelines for the assessment of materials fees against all students, including tuition exempted students under par. (b), to cover the cost of consumable materials in addition to program fees and shall approve or disapprove the charges made by district boards.

SECTION 42c. 38.24 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

38.24 (1) (d) *Programs for inmates.* Fees, for vocational programs offered to inmates by the division of corrections in cooperation with a district board, not more than ~~7%~~ 9.5% of the actual operational costs of the program in which the inmate is enrolled that are incurred by the vocational district.

SECTION 42d. 38.26 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 42e. 38.28 (2) (b) 4 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

38.28 (2) (b) 4. The board shall make such adjustments in aid payments during the fiscal year as are necessary to reflect more current data under sub. (1m) and s. 20.292 (1) (d). Final adjustments of state aid payments, on the basis of actual enrollments and costs, shall be made from the following year's aid appropriation under s. 20.292 (1) (d).

SECTION 42g. 38.51 (8) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.51 (8) (b) *Solicitor's permit.* The application for a solicitor's permit shall be made on a form furnished by the board and shall be accompanied by a fee ~~of \$5 set by the board, not to exceed \$50,~~ and a surety bond acceptable to the board in the sum of \$1,000. Such bond may be continuous and shall be conditioned to provide indemnification to any student suffering loss as the result of any fraud or misrepresentation used in procuring his or her enrollment or as a result of the failure of the school to faithfully perform the agreement made with ~~him~~ the student by the the solicitor, and may be supplied by the solicitor or by the school itself as a blanket bond covering each of its solicitors in the amount of \$1,000. Upon approval of a permit the board shall issue an identification card to the solicitor giving his or her name and address, the name and address of ~~his~~ the employing school, and certifying that the person whose name appears on the card is authorized to solicit students for the school. A permit shall be valid for one year from the date issued. Liability of the surety on the bond for each solicitor covered thereby shall ~~in no event not~~ exceed the sum of \$1,000 as an aggregate for any and all students for all breaches of the conditions of the bond. The surety of a bond may cancel the same upon giving ~~30 days~~ days' notice in writing to the board and thereafter shall be relieved of liability for any breach of

condition occurring after the effective date of the cancellation. An application for renewal shall be accompanied by a fee of ~~\$5 set by the board, not to exceed \$50~~, a surety bond if a continuous bond has not been furnished, and such information as the board requests of the applicant.

SECTION 42h. 38.51 (10) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.51 (10) (b) *Application.* Application for initial approval of a school or a course of instruction, renewal of approval ~~which has lapsed for more than 30 days, of a school~~ or reinstatement of approval of a school or course of instruction which has been revoked shall be made on a form furnished by the board and shall be accompanied by a fee of ~~\$100 set by the board, not to exceed \$500~~, and such other information as the board deems necessary to evaluate the school in carrying out the purpose of this section.

SECTION 42i. 39.155 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is renumbered 39.155 and amended to read:

39.155 Medical college of Wisconsin; state aid and tuition policies. Effective July 1, 1977, all funds appropriated to the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. under s. 20.250 (1) (a) except for funds provided for the family practice program and foreign medical student transfer programs, shall be based on a per capita formula for an amount for each Wisconsin resident student enrolled at the college. A student's qualification as a resident of this state shall be determined by the higher educational aids board using the same procedure established under s. 39.46 (4) so far as applicable.

Partial
Veto
Overrule

SECTION 42j. 39.155 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed.

SECTION 42m. 39.28 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

39.28 (4) The board may assign, sell, convey or repurchase student loans made under s. 39.32 subject to prior approval by the joint committee on finance.

SECTION 42o. 39.30 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.30 (3) **BASIS OF GRANTS.** (intro.) Effective income and the grant to be paid for each semester shall be determined as follows: under pars. (a) to (i) for a full-time resident student except for a full-time resident student registered as a freshman after August 1, 1976, as a freshman or sophomore after August 1, 1977, as a freshman, sophomore or junior after August 1, 1978, as a freshman, sophomore, junior or senior after August 1, 1979.

SECTION 42p. 39.30 (3) (g) and (h) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 42q. 39.30 (3) (i) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

39.30 (3) (i) The schedule for grants for each semester or term of attendance shall be as follows for a full-time resident student except for a full-time resident student registered as a freshman after August 1, 1976, as a freshman or sophomore after August 1, 1977, as a freshman, sophomore or junior after August 1, 1978, as a freshman, sophomore, junior or senior after August 1, 1979:

Effective Income	Maximum grant each semester of study
\$ 0-6,000	\$500
6,001-8,000	400
8,001-10,000	300
10,001-12,000	200
Over 12,000	None

SECTION 42r. 39.30 (3) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

39.30 (3) (j) 1. The grant to be paid to a full-time resident student registered as a freshman after August 1, 1976, as a freshman or sophomore after August 1, 1977, as

a freshman, sophomore or junior after August 1, 1978, as a freshman, sophomore, junior or senior after August 1, 1979, shall be determined under subsds. 2 to 7.

2. From the total tuition charged the student by the institution, subtract the amount of the resident academic fee charged at the Madison campus of the university of Wisconsin system.

3. Divide the amount determined in subd. 2 by the student's total cost of attending the postsecondary institution.

4. Multiply the percentage calculated in subd. 3 times the student's expected family contribution which has been determined using the same analysis as that used to determine the expected family contribution of students applying for Wisconsin higher education grants under s. 39.435.

5. Subtract the amount determined in subd. 4 from the amount determined in subd. 2 to arrive at the amount of the grant. The amount of the grant shall not exceed \$750 per semester, or a prorated amount in the case of a quarter or trimester institution, or \$1,500 per academic year.

6. The grant under this paragraph for any semester or term shall not be more than that portion of a student's tuition and instruction-related fees exceeding the resident academic fee at the Madison campus of the university of Wisconsin system.

7. The board shall establish criteria for the treatment of financially independent students which are consistent with procedures in subsds. 2 to 6.

SECTION 42t. 39.32 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.32 (7) The board may write off defaulted student loans made pursuant to this section or made prior to July 1, 1966, under s. 49.42, 1963 stats., from moneys other than advances from the investment board originally appropriated for student loans, and from moneys other than moneys resulting from assignment, sale or conveyance of student loans.

SECTION 43. 39.34 (4) of the statutes, as created by chapter 118, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

39.34 (4) The student shall pay no interest on the loan while enrolled as an undergraduate medical student and 7% during the repayment period which begins 9 to 12 months after the student graduates or discontinues to be an enrolled undergraduate medical student.

SECTION 43m. 39.435 (5) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

39.435 (5) The board shall ensure that grants are made available for handicapped students attending private or public institutions in this ~~or other states~~ state who are deaf or hard of hearing or visually handicapped and who demonstrate need. Grants may also be made available to such handicapped students attending private or public institutions in other states under criteria established by the board. In determining the financial need of these students special consideration shall be given to their unique and unusual costs.

SECTION 44. 40.165 of the statutes is amended to read:

40.165 Graduate assistant's health insurance coverage. The board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system, working with the group insurance board, shall establish a health insurance plan for graduate assistants within the system who are employed on a one-third full-time basis, or more and for other such employes-in-training who are employed on at least a one-third full-time basis as are designated by the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system. The group insurance board shall take any action deemed advisable and not specifically prohibited or delegated to some other governmental agency to carry out the purpose of this section. The state contribution

toward such coverage shall be not more than the percentage of premium paid by the state for employe's health insurance coverage under s. 40.16 (2).

SECTION 45. 41.02 (12) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

41.02 (12) (o) Who have been or will be appointed by the university of Wisconsin system under s. 36.19 as student assistants or employes-in-training.

SECTION 45m. 41.07 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

41.07 (1) (e) Employes of the Wisconsin housing finance authority, the Wisconsin health facilities authority, and the Wisconsin solid waste recycling authority are state employes for purposes of subchs. II and VI of ch. 40, subch. I of ch. 41 and s. 16.30 (2) and (2m).

SECTION 46. 42.35 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

42.35 (5) Persons who have been or will be appointed by the university of Wisconsin system under s. 36.19 as student assistants or employes-in-training shall not come under the provisions of the state teachers retirement system.

SECTION 47. 42.49 (16) of the statutes is created to read:

42.49 (16) WITHDRAWAL PROVISIONS FOR UNIVERSITY SYSTEM EMPLOYES-IN-TRAINING. Persons appointed prior to July 1, 1976, to positions covered by s. 42.35 (5) may withdraw the employe's prior contributions to the state teachers retirement system upon application consistent with s. 42.245 (4).

SECTION 48. 45.351 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 94, laws of 1975, is amended as follows:

45.351 (2) (a) The department may lend any veteran not more than \$3,000 to be used for the purchase of a business or business property or the repairing or adding to his or her home or business property, the construction of a garage, the education of himself the veteran or his or her children or to provide essential economic assistance, where the veteran's need is established to the satisfaction of the department and he or she is unable to meet that need from his or her own resources or available credit upon manageable terms. ~~The veteran must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the department under policy guidelines established by the board evidence of unsuccessful efforts to obtain available credit upon manageable terms.~~ The department may prescribe loan conditions, but the interest rate shall be 3% per annum and the term shall not exceed 15 years. Loan expense may be charged to the veteran. The department may execute necessary instruments, collect interest and principal, compromise indebtedness, sue and be sued, post bonds and write off indebtedness which it deems uncollectible. Where any loan under this section is secured by a real estate mortgage, the department may exercise the rights of owners and mortgagees generally and the rights and powers set forth in s. 45.72. Interest and repaid principal shall be paid into the veterans trust fund. The department may lend not more than \$3,000 to any veteran's surviving spouse, whether remarried or not, or to the parent of any deceased veteran's children for the education of his such minor or dependent children if such surviving spouse or parent is a resident of and living in this state on the date of application.

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 49. 45.37 (4) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 94, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

45.37 (4) (b) *Basis for eligibility of non-veterans.* Spouses, surviving spouses and parents derive their eligibility from the eligibility of the veteran upon whose service it is based. Surviving spouses and parents of eligible veterans shall not be eligible except for those admitted prior to the effective date of this act (1975) or unless the home's overall occupancy level is below an optimal level as determined by

the board.

SECTION 49b. 45.396 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

45.396 Correspondence courses and part-time classroom study. Any veteran upon the completion of any correspondence courses or part-time classroom study from the university of Wisconsin system, from any other institution of higher education located in this state which is accredited by the north central association of colleges and secondary schools or from any vocational, technical and adult education school receiving aids from the board of vocational, technical and adult education or from any public or private high school, taken upon authorization of the department of veterans affairs, may be reimbursed in whole or in part for the cost of such courses, including necessary textbooks, by the department upon presentation to the department of a certificate from the school indicating that ~~he~~ the veteran has completed the courses and stating the cost of such courses and necessary text books. Benefits granted under this section shall be paid out of the appropriation under s. 20.485 (2) (um). Enrolled part-time classroom study or direct correspondence courses from a qualified educational institution may be authorized and the veteran reimbursed in whole or in part by the department when such courses are related to one's occupational, professional or educational objectives, and to the extent that payment or reimbursement is not available from any other sources, or, in cases where reimbursement is not specifically for fees and textbooks, to the extent that such reimbursement is insufficient to cover all educational costs. Such reimbursement may not exceed the cost of tuition, fees and textbooks. Part-time study during a regular college semester, trimester or quarter shall be defined as enrollment by a graduate student in courses for which no more than 7 semester or the equivalent trimester or quarter credits will be given upon satisfactory completion, or enrollment by an undergraduate student in courses for which no more than 11 semester or the equivalent trimester or quarter credits will be given upon satisfactory completion. Any veteran or eligible dependent who has obtained a master's degree or its equivalent shall not be eligible for grants under this section. Any veteran or eligible dependent who has obtained at least a baccalaureate degree or its equivalent but not a master's degree or its equivalent shall not be eligible for grants offered under this section if he or she has remaining federal veterans administration education benefits. However, any veteran or eligible dependent who has obtained at least a baccalaureate degree or its equivalent and who has remaining federal veterans administration education benefits or who has obtained a master's degree or its equivalent may be reimbursed in whole or in part for the cost of courses in which such person was enrolled before July 31, 1975, where applications for the reimbursement of the cost of such courses were received by the department before July 31, 1975, and, in the case of enrolled part-time classroom study courses, where such courses were satisfactorily completed on or before August 31, 1975. For the purpose of this section any student who has received a baccalaureate degree shall be deemed to be a graduate student whether he or she is taking graduate or undergraduate courses.

SECTION 49c. 45.73 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.73 (2) ALLOCATION OF LIMITED LOAN RESOURCES. If the department estimates that applications for loans under this subchapter will exceed the moneys available for such loans, the department shall give priority to the most necessitous cases and take all action necessary to spread the available moneys among the maximum possible number of veterans. The board on veterans affairs shall establish procedures whereby veterans of the Viet Nam era, as defined in s. 45.71 (16) (a) 9, receive first priority.

SECTION 49d. 45.74 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 26, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

45.74 (1) ANNUAL INCOME LIMITATION. (a) The annual income of the person and the person's spouse exceeds \$20,700; and

(b) The annual income of the person, excluding the annual income of the person's spouse, exceeds \$18,000.

SECTION 49e. 45.74 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.74 (5) COST OF HOUSING. Either the total cost of the housing accommodation including garage, but excluding land and other nonhousing improvements thereon, exceeds 2 times ~~his~~ the person's annual income or the total cost of the housing accommodation, including garage, land and other nonhousing improvements thereon exceeds 2.5 times ~~his~~ the person's annual income, whichever ~~he~~ the person elects. In the case of an improvement loan, the total cost of the housing accommodation and garage means the original cost plus improvements less normal depreciation. However, the total cost of the housing accommodation including garage, land and other nonhousing improvements thereon shall not exceed \$40,000 in the case of a loan granted for the purchase of an existing housing accommodation or \$45,000 in the case of a loan granted for the construction of a new housing accommodation or for the purchase of a new, previously unoccupied housing accommodation.

SECTION 49f. 45.76 (1) (a) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

45.76 (1) (a) 1. A mobile home or real property on which a mobile home is to be situated, but only if the veteran has available and applies on the total cost of such property, an amount equivalent to at least 20% of such total cost.

SECTION 49h. 45.80 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 26, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

45.80 (2) (d) ~~He~~ The person is a veteran as defined in s. 45.35 or is the unmarried spouse of a deceased veteran or the minor or dependent child of such veteran.

SECTION 50m. 46.03 (1) and (16) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

46.03 (1) INSTITUTIONS GOVERNED. Maintain and govern the Mendota and the Winnebago mental health institutes, the central state hospital, the Wisconsin correctional reception and treatment center, the Wisconsin state prison, the Wisconsin correctional institution, the Wisconsin state reformatory, the ~~Wisconsin home for women~~ Taycheedah correctional institution, the Wisconsin correctional camp system, the Wisconsin ~~correctional~~ treatment institution, the ~~Wisconsin~~ Ethan Allen school ~~for boys~~, the Kettle Moraine correctional institution, the Lincoln ~~boys hills~~ school, the Black River camp, the Wisconsin workshop for the blind and the ~~northern, central and southern colonies and training schools~~ centers for the developmentally disabled.

(16) DRIVERS' EDUCATION. The department shall establish a drivers' education program in the ~~Wisconsin Ethan Allen school for boys~~ to provide drivers' education to inmates of the institution who are about to become eligible to qualify for an operator's license.

SECTION 51. 46.03 (18) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 82, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

46.03 (18) (a) The department shall establish a uniform system of fees for services provided or purchased by the department, a county department of public welfare or a board under s. 51.42 or 51.437, except for services provided to courts, for provision of child support and paternity establishment services or for outreach, information and referral services, or where as determined by the department, a fee is administratively unfeasible or would significantly prevent accomplishing the purpose of the service. ~~All fees paid and collected for services provided or purchased by the~~

~~department, or a county department of public welfare shall be deposited in the general fund as a general fund receipt with the exception of medical assistance payments for care at the state colonies. Fees collected by a county department of public welfare shall be applied by such department to cover the cost of such services.~~

SECTION 51m. 46.03 (21) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

46.03 (21) (a) County welfare departments organized under s. 46.22 and 49.51, mental health boards organized under s. 51.42, and developmental disability boards organized under s. 51.437 shall annually submit a coordinated comprehensive program plan and budget for services directly provided or purchased. Such plans and budgets shall include provisions for services to persons identified as having long-term or recurrent mental illness, as defined by the department. Such coordinated plans and budgets shall be prepared in accordance with ss. 46.22 (4) (j) and (5m) (c), 49.51 (3) (c) and (4) and 51.42 (8) (a) and be submitted to the department by September 30 of each calendar year.

SECTION 52. 46.042 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.042 (3) CHARGES. ~~The state shall bear the full cost of care and treatment of patients except that the individual or his or her parents or guardians shall contribute to the cost of treatment up to a maximum of \$60 per month based on the ability to pay as determined by the department.~~

SECTION 52m. 46.10 (8m) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

46.10 (8m) (a) Deduct 100% of all moneys collected on or after January 1, 1975, from the chargeable cost of care at the mental health institutes, central state hospital and the ~~colonies~~ centers for the developmentally disabled;

SECTION 52n. 46.21 (10) of the statutes is created to read:

Partial Veto Overruled 46.21 (10) AUDIT. (a) The county board of supervisors in counties having a population of 500,000 or more shall direct, at least once every 3 years, a total program audit of the county welfare department to be conducted by the state legislative audit bureau. The audit shall include program, fiscal, compliance and management elements and shall be directed toward the following:

Partial Veto Overruled 1. Examination of procedures for applying for and receiving all grants and services administered by the county welfare department;

Partial Veto Overruled 2. A general examination of the efficiency and effectiveness with which all programs are administered by the county welfare department;

Partial Veto Overruled 3. A measurement of how effectively the goals and objectives of these programs are being met by the county welfare department, including a determination of whether the department has considered alternatives which might yield the desired results at a lower cost; and

4. An examination of whether financial operations are properly conducted, whether the county welfare department's financial and accounting reports are fairly presented, and whether the department has complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations of the state and federal governments governing the programs under its administration.

Partial Veto Overruled (b) The cost of the audit shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (3) (c).

Partial Veto Overruled (c) The state legislative audit bureau shall consult with the county audit department and the state department of health and social services during the performance of the audit in order to incorporate the findings of these agencies into the audit report required under par. (a).

(d) Upon completion of the audit report, the legislative audit bureau shall notify the legislature, the county board of supervisors and the secretary of health and social services that copies of the report are available on request.

Partial
Veto
Overrule

SECTION 52p. 46.22 (5) (a) 2 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

46.22 (5) (a) 2. State institutions. Mendota mental health institute, Winnebago mental health institute, Wisconsin general hospital, Wisconsin orthopedic hospital for children, ~~southern colony and training school, central colony and training school, northern colony and training school~~ centers for the developmentally disabled, central state hospital and ~~Wisconsin school for boys~~ Ethan Allen school.

SECTION 53. 46.23 (5) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

46.23 (5) (e) The board shall submit annually to the department a program plan and budget for services authorized in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The plan and budget shall specify the services to be provided and shall indicate the number of staff and cost for each service and program of the board. The department shall review and approve the boards' annual program plan and budget. The department shall ensure efficient management and administration of those programs and services so that the program and expenditure funds comply with federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. The approved plan and budget of all boards shall not exceed the available amount of federal and state funds. The department shall reimburse each board for such approved plans and budgets from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (2) (b) and (o) and (4) (df), (dh) and (p).

SECTION 54. 48.58 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

48.58 (2) A county shall be reimbursed by the state for 50% of the allowable per capita cost of care of the children who are in a children's home under sub. (1) (a), (b) and (c). Reimbursement under sub. (1) (c) shall be limited to the first 30 days of care. Allowable cost shall be determined according to s. 46.037. Payment shall be made from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (b).

SECTION 54g. 49.10 (12) (f) 1 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

49.10 (12) (f) 1. Public. Wisconsin state prison; Wisconsin correctional institution; Wisconsin state reformatory; ~~Wisconsin home for women; Wisconsin school for boys~~ Taycheedah correctional institution; Ethan Allen school; county jails or houses of correction; ~~northern Wisconsin, southern Wisconsin and central Wisconsin colonies and training schools~~ centers for the developmentally disabled; Mendota, ~~and Winnebago and Central~~ mental health institutes; central state hospitals ~~hospital~~; Wisconsin school for visually handicapped; Wisconsin school for the deaf; federal, state, county or municipal hospitals, asylums, infirmaries, tuberculosis sanatoriums or homes for the aged; veterans' hospitals, domiciliaries and homes.

SECTION 54h. 49.177 (2) (b), as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is renumbered 49.45 (12) (a) and amended to read:

49.45 (12) (a) To assure that patients in a public medical institution or any accommodated person, having a monthly income exceeding the payment rates established under s. 1611 (e) of federal Title XVI, has certain income available for his personal needs, such individuals may retain ~~unearned~~ [unearned] income in an ~~the~~ amount equal to the minimum income allowed under applicable federal regulations ~~under Title XIX. Individuals participating in work therapy activities may retain earned income in an amount determined by application of income exclusions as provided under federal Title XVI of \$35.~~ under Title XIX. Individuals participating in work therapy activities may retain earned income in an amount determined by application of income exclusions as provided under federal Title XVI of \$35. Income in excess of that allowed shall be

Vetoed
in Part

applied toward the cost of care in the facility.

SECTION 54m. 49.177 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.177 (4) (c) Agreements made under this subsection or modifications to such agreements require prior approval by the joint committee on finance. Prior approval will be deemed to be given if within 21 calendar days following the department filing a proposed modification with the joint committee on finance, the committee has not scheduled a public hearing or executive session to review the proposed modification.

SECTION 55. 49.19 (4) (g) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

49.19 (4) (g) Aid shall be granted to a mother and fetus who is otherwise eligible under this section during the period extending from 6 months before to 6 months after the birth of her child, ~~providing if~~ she has resided in the state for one year immediately preceding the birth of the child or in the case of an unborn child for one year immediately preceding the application, and if her financial circumstances are such as to deprive either the mother or child of proper care. Notwithstanding the foregoing a mother who has resided in this state for one year immediately preceding her departure from this state and has returned to this state within one year may be granted such aid if otherwise eligible. The aid allowed under this paragraph may be given in the form of supplies, nursing, medical or other assistance in lieu of money. ~~No aid shall be granted for unborn children under this section. The mother and fetus shall count as one person in determining family size for grant determination.~~

SECTION 55m. 49.19 (13) of the statutes is created to read:

49.19 (13) When an agency proposes action to terminate, discontinue, suspend or reduce assistance to a recipient under this section such agency shall provide at least the 10-day minimum notice required under federal Title IV.

SECTION 55p. 49.30 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

49.30 Funeral expenses. On the death of a beneficiary of benefits under federal Title XVI or s. 49.177 or 49.46, if the estate of the deceased is insufficient to pay the funeral and burial expenses and the actual cemetery charges, such expenses and charges shall be paid under this section by the county responsible for the burial of the recipient to such persons as the county agency directs. The For purposes of state reimbursement, the funeral and burial expenses for the deceased may not exceed \$300 except in unusual circumstances approved by the department. The state shall reimburse the county, for funeral and burial expenses, the lesser of \$300 or the amount of such expenses not paid by the estate of the deceased and other persons. The In addition, the state shall reimburse the county fully for actual cemetery charges paid under this section.

SECTION 56. 49.45 (2) (a) 9 and 10 of the statutes are created to read:

Vetoed in Part 49.45 (2) (a) 9. Periodically set forth conditions of participation and reimbursement in a contract with ~~each~~ provider of service under this section.

10. Recover reimbursement made in violation of the conditions of participation and reimbursement set forth under subd. 9 and other applicable rules and regulations.

SECTION 56m. 49.45 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

49.45 (3) (e) For hospital costs, reimbursement may be prospectively determined by the department or determined pursuant to a contract under s. 146.60.

SECTION 57. 49.45 (6m) (b) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

49.45 (6m) (b) Such charges for ancillary materials and services as would be incurred by a prudent buyer may be included as an adjustment to the rate determined

by par. (a) when so determined by the department. The department may promulgate rules setting forth conditions and limitations to this paragraph.

SECTION 58. 49.45 (6m) (c) 3 of the statutes is created to read:

49.45 (6m) (c) 3. Provide, upon request, cost information relating to the overall financial operation of the facility, including, but not limited to wages and hours worked, costs of food, housekeeping, maintenance and administration.

SECTION 59. 49.45 (6m) (d) 4 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

49.45 (6m) (d) 4. ~~Conduct an annual~~ Periodically audit of all nursing homes and intermediate care facilities receiving funds under this paragraph, and recover payments made where the home is not meeting the conditions under which the reimbursement was made as specified in par. (c) 1 and 2. Erroneous information provided under par. (c) 3 shall constitute grounds for recovery.

SECTION 59g. 49.45 (6m) (e) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

49.45 (6m) (e) (intro.) The governor shall appoint an appeal board, consisting of 9 members for 2-year terms. Members shall include 3 representatives of the nursing home industry, consisting of one member each from the Wisconsin association of nursing homes, the Wisconsin association of municipal homes and the Wisconsin association of homes for the aging, and 6 individuals who through their experience and training are knowledgeable in the determination of wage rates and labor markets, the nursing care and needs of the individuals, and the interest of the general public. The appeal board shall review petitions from nursing homes providing skilled, intermediate, limited and personal care, for modifications to any reimbursement rate under this subsection for such homes. Upon the findings and recommendations of the appeal board, the secretary of health and social services shall grant such modifications, within the limits of the amount provided under s. 20.435 (4) (da), which may exceed maximums under this section but may not exceed any applicable federal maximums. The board may, upon the presentation of facts, recommend modifications of a home's care rate where demonstrated substantial inequities exist taking into account uniform criteria including the following, without limitation because of enumeration:

SECTION 59m. 49.45 (12) (b) to (d) of the statutes are created to read:

49.45 (12) (b) Withdrawals of funds from a resident's personal fund account under par. (a) shall be documented as to the amount and purpose of the expenditure, and such documentation shall be maintained in the resident's records. This requirement shall apply to all withdrawals except those made by the resident. A resident may choose to retain control of his or her own funds and in so doing relieves the facility of the responsibility to document expenditures of such funds which are not entrusted to the facility.

(c) Upon the death of the resident, the facility shall transfer the balance of the resident's account under par. (a) to the executor of the resident's estate for distribution according to ch. 852 or 853. The department shall promulgate rules for such transfer of funds. No facility, nor its employes or representatives, may benefit from the distribution of such funds unless specifically named in the resident's will which is admitted to probate.

(d) 1. The department shall accept from any person a verified complaint concerning any violation of this subsection. The department shall forward to the accused within 10 days a copy of such complaint. The department, upon such investigation as it deems necessary, may dismiss the complaint or may find probable cause to believe that a violation of this subsection has occurred.

2. If the department finds probable cause to believe that a violation of this subsection has occurred, it may assess a forfeiture of not less than \$25 nor more than \$500 for each occurrence, and in addition may order that any amount illegally charged against a resident's account be restored. The department shall immediately inform the complainant and respondent of any such decision and the amount of forfeiture or repayment, if any. If the department is not notified in writing that a party wishes to contest a decision within 15 working days after the parties are informed of such decision, the department's determination shall be deemed final and may not be appealed to a court.

3. The department shall inform the nursing home administrators examining board of all decisions made under this paragraph.

4. The department's determination of serious misconduct under this subsection shall be cause for terminating the facility's participation in the state-funded portion of the medical assistance program under ss. 49.45 to 49.47.

SECTION 60. 50.06 (6) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

50.06 (6) (g) The reimbursement by the state under pars. (a) to (f) shall apply only until the appropriation under s. 20.435 (1) (c) is totally expended.

SECTION 60d. 51.215 (title) and (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

51.215 (title) Transfer of mentally ill children from ethan allen school. (1) When the physician of the ~~Wisconsin~~ Ethan Allen school ~~for boys~~, or a psychiatrist of the department, reports in writing to the superintendent of the school that any person confined therein is, in his or her opinion, mentally ill, the superintendent shall make a written report to the department. Thereupon the department may transfer the person to a state hospital for the mentally ill. The department may order the return of the person to the school if, before the expiration of his the commitment, it is satisfied that he or she has recovered.

~~SECTION 60m. 51.42 (8) (e) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read.~~

Vetoed
in Part

~~51.42 (8) (e) If any funds appropriated under s. 20.435 (2) (b) remain unallocated after application of the formula set forth in pars. (a) to (d), such funds shall be distributed by the department to boards established under s. 51.42 or 51.437, or both, for programs reflecting exceptional need, including additional family care programs beyond the amounts allocated under pars. (a) to (d) and including programs for the treatment of the long-term mentally ill and for specialized or innovative programs defined according to written criteria determined by the department.~~

SECTION 60t. 51.42 (8) (h) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

51.42 (8) (h) Each board established under either s. 51.42 or 51.437, or both shall apply all funds it receives under pars. (a) to (d) to provide the services enumerated in ss. 51.42 (5), 51.437 (2) and 51.45 (2) (h) to meet the needs for service quality and accessibility of the persons in its jurisdiction, except that the board may pay for inpatient treatment only with funds designated by the department for this purpose. This board may expand programs and services with county and other local or private funds at the discretion of the board. Moneys collected under s. 46.10 shall be applied to cover the costs of primary services, exceptional and specialized services or to reimburse supplemental appropriations funded by counties. Boards shall include 100% of collections made by the department under s. 46.10 on or after January 1, 1975, for care in county hospitals, as revenues on their grant-in-aid expenditure reports to the department.

~~SECTION 60v. 51.42 (10) (f) of the statutes is created to read:~~
~~51.42 (10) (f) Assist boards or groups of boards in planning and developing a continuum of programs and services for the care and treatment of persons with long-term or recurrent mental illness.~~

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 61. 51.44 of the statutes is created to read:

51.44 Outpatient treatment facility determination. Any facility may apply to the department for determination of whether such facility is an outpatient treatment facility, as defined in s. 632.89 (1) (a). The department shall charge a fee of \$25 for each such determination.

SECTION 62. 52.37 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

52.37 (3) All of the foregoing matters shall be ascertained and fixed by the court and, together with such attorneys' fees as have been allowed, shall be inserted in the judgment, with an order directed to the clerk of the court to file with the state registrar of vital statistics a certified copy of all judgments determining the paternity of the child, and a report showing the name, date and place of birth of the child and the name, color, residence, age, birthplace and occupation of the father of the child. The registrar shall thereupon issue a new certificate, pursuant to and in accordance with the judgment of the court. Such new certificate shall be issued substantially in accordance with the provisions of ss. ~~69.33~~ 69.24 (1) (e) and ~~69.24 (1) (e)~~ 69.33 and the clerk of the court shall collect a fee of ~~\$1~~ \$4 which shall be transmitted to the ~~bureau of vital statistics~~ department. Judgments entered upon agreement of the parties shall conform to the above unless the parties are unable to agree as to the paternity of the child, when such adjudication may be omitted.

SECTION 62d. 53.01 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

53.01 Names of prisons. The penitentiary at Waupun is named "Wisconsin State Prison". The correctional treatment center at Waupun is named "Wisconsin Correctional Treatment Institution". The medium security penitentiary near Fox Lake is named "Wisconsin Correctional Institution". The penitentiary at Taycheedah is named "~~Wisconsin Home for Women~~ Taycheedah correctional institution". The penitentiary at Green Bay is named "Wisconsin State Reformatory". The medium security penitentiary at Plymouth is named "Kettle Moraine Correctional Institution". The institutions named in this section, the Wisconsin correctional camp system and the Wisconsin correctional reception and treatment center, when established pursuant to under s. 46.043, are state prisons.

SECTION 62f. 53.02 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

53.02 (3) (title) TAYCHEEDAH CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION. For all purposes of discipline and for judicial proceedings, the ~~Wisconsin home for women~~ Taycheedah correctional institution and the precincts thereof shall be deemed to be in Fond du Lac county, and the courts of that county shall have jurisdiction of all crimes committed within the same. Every activity conducted under the jurisdiction of and by such ~~home~~ correctional institution, wherever located, is a precinct of the ~~home~~ correctional institution; and each precinct is part of the ~~home~~ correctional institution.

SECTION 62m. 53.02 (4d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

53.02 (4d) (title) WISCONSIN TREATMENT INSTITUTION. For all purposes of discipline and for judicial proceedings, the Wisconsin ~~correctional~~ treatment institution and the precincts thereof shall be deemed to be in Dodge county, and the courts of that county shall have jurisdiction of all crimes committed within the same. Every activity

conducted under the jurisdiction of and by the Wisconsin ~~correctional~~ treatment institution, wherever located, is a precinct of the institution; and each precinct is part of the institution.

SECTION 62p. 53.05 of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

53.05 Wisconsin treatment institution. A section of central state hospital shall be designated a correctional treatment facility for the social rehabilitation and treatment of substance abuse of inmates transferred from Wisconsin state prisons. This section shall be administered by the department and shall be known as the Wisconsin treatment institution. The department shall ensure that the patients at central state hospital and the inmates at the treatment institution:

(1) Have access to all those facilities which are available at the hospital and institution and are necessary for the treatment and rehabilitation programs designed by the department.

(2) Are housed on separate wards.

SECTION 62v. 53.21 of the statutes is created to read:

53.21 Vocational education program in auto body repair at the Wisconsin state reformatory. (1) The department may maintain and operate a vocational education program in auto body repair at the Wisconsin state reformatory. Notwithstanding s. 56.06, in connection with the vocational education program the reformatory may receive from licensed automobile dealers and regularly established automobile repair shops vehicles to be repaired, painted or otherwise processed by residents enrolled in the program.

(2) Prices for repairing, painting or otherwise processing vehicles in the program shall be fixed as near as possible to the market value of the labor and materials furnished. Proceeds received from the repairing, painting or other processing of vehicles shall be deposited as provided in s. 20.435 (3) (h) and shall be available to the reformatory to purchase materials, supplies and equipment necessary to operate the vocational education program in auto body repair.

SECTION 63. 54.17 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

54.17 (6) After July 1, 1977, the department shall maintain full separation of criminal and youthful offenders.

SECTION 63g. 56.01 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 41, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

56.01 (1) The department may establish industries and purchase machinery and raw materials for the employment of inmates in the state prisons, in manufacturing articles for the state and its political divisions and any tax-supported institution or agency and for sale thereof to other states or political divisions thereof or to the United States and shall fix the price of all produce as near the market price as possible. In fixing the price of motor vehicle license plates and highway signs and markers to this state or any division thereof the value of labor of each prisoner employed at such work shall be calculated at the rate of \$2 per day. The term "manufacturing" includes reprocessing, repairing, salvaging, servicing and storing; and supplies, materials and equipment may be reconditioned for sale under s. 16.72. The department may also operate a central warehouse and central generating station with the employment of prisoners to supply its institutions. ~~The department may also maintain an auto shop in connection with the auto school at the reformatory and may receive from licensed automobile dealers and regularly established automobile repair shops vehicles to be repaired, painted or otherwise processed by inmates enrolled in said school, and shall fix the price of such work as near as possible to the market value of the labor and materials furnished.~~

SECTION 63m. 57.07 (title) and (1) of the statutes are amended to read:

57.07 (title) Paroles for female inmates of the state prisons. (1) Without regard to the minimum terms prescribed by s. 57.06 (1) (a), the department may parole female prisoners in the ~~home for women~~ state prisons whenever suitable employment has been secured for them, unless otherwise provided by the department, and their conduct for a reasonable time has satisfied the department that they will be law-abiding, temperate, honest and industrious. ~~But persons~~ Persons serving life sentences shall be subject to s. 57.06 (1) (a).

SECTION 64. 59.07 (20) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.07 (20) **CIVIL SERVICE SYSTEM.** Establish a civil service system of selection, tenure and status, and the system may be made applicable to all county personnel, except the members of the board, constitutional officers, members of boards and commissions and judges. The system may include also uniform provisions in respect to classification of positions and salary ranges, ~~pay roll~~ payroll certification, attendance, vacations, sick leave, competitive examinations, hours of work, tours of duty or assignments according to earned seniority, employe grievance procedure, disciplinary actions, layoffs and separations for cause subject to approval of a civil service commission or the board. The board may request the assistance of the department of ~~administration and pay therefor, pursuant to s. 16.295~~ local affairs and development and pay for such services, under s. 22.13 (2) (o).

SECTION 64m. 59.07 (93) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.07 (93) (title) **SENIOR CITIZEN PROGRAMS; APPROPRIATION.** Appropriate funds for the purpose of promoting and assisting county commissions on aging and senior citizens clubs and organizations within the county in their organization and activities. A county may cooperate with any private agency or group in such work.

SECTION 65. 59.967 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.967 (1) Any county in this state may enact an ordinance for the establishment, maintenance and operation of a comprehensive unified local transportation system, the major portion of which is or is to be located within or the major portion of the service of which is or is to be supplied to the inhabitants of such county, and which system is used or to be used chiefly for the transportation of persons and freight.

SECTION 65m. 59.968 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.968 (4) (intro.) Acquire a transportation system by purchase, condemnation under s. 32.05 or otherwise and provide funds for the operation and maintenance of such a system. "Transportation system" means all land, shops, structures, equipment, property, franchises and rights of whatever nature required for transportation of passengers ~~for hire or freight~~ within the county, or contiguous or cornering counties, including, without limitation, street railways, elevated railroads, subways, underground railroads, motor vehicles, trackless trolley busses, motor busses and any combination thereof, and any other form of mass transportation. Such acquisition and operation within contiguous or cornering counties shall be subject to chs. 193 and 194 and whenever the proposed operations into or within such contiguous or cornering counties would be competitive with the urban or suburban operations of another existing common carrier of passengers or freight, the county shall coordinate proposed operations with such carrier to eliminate adverse financial impact for such carrier. This coordination may include, but is not limited to, route overlapping, transfers, transfer points, schedule coordination, joint use of facilities, lease of route service and acquisition of route and corollary equipment. If such coordination does not result in mutual agreement, the proposals shall be submitted to the public service commission for arbitration. The following forms of transportation are excepted from the definition of "transportation system":

SECTION 65r. 59.968 (7m) of the statutes is created to read:

59.968 (7m) A county may contract under s. 66.30 to establish a joint transit commission with other municipalities as defined under s. 66.30 (1).

SECTION 65t. 59.968 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.968 (8) Subsections (4) to ~~(7)~~ (7m) shall only apply if a county board by a two-thirds vote of its membership so authorizes.

SECTION 66. 60.175 (5), (5m) (b) and (7) (intro.) and (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 80, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

60.175 (5) In any town where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the ~~town's~~ town actual town population increase and the amount by which the town's population would have increased if the town's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year of levy and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this subsection.

(5m) (b) The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall ~~accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order~~ be filed with the department of revenue.

(7) (intro.) If the town board desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this section, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official town newspaper. ~~The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this section. the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this section shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, the town may increase its levy in such amount above the limitations specified in this section and shall notify the secretary department of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy department.~~

(a) The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the town board be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for town purposes for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy ~~certified~~ allowed by the state?

SECTION 68. 61.46 (3) (e), (em) 2 and (g) (intro.) and 1 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 80, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

61.46 (3) (e) In any village where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the ~~village's~~ village actual village population increase and the amount by which the village's population would have increased if the village's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year of levy and

the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) 2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order be filed with the department of revenue.

(g) (intro.) If the village board desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official village newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection. the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, the village may increase its levy in such amount above the limitations specified in this subsection and shall notify the secretary department of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy department.

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the village board be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy certified allowed by the state?

SECTION 70. 62.12 (4m) (e), (em) 2 and (g) (intro.) and 1 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 80, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

62.12 (4m) (e) In any city where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the city's actual city population increase and the amount by which the city's population would have increased if the city's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year of levy and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) 2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order be filed with the department of revenue.

(g) (intro.) If the common council desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official city newspaper. The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection. the question of the proposed amount of

increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, the city may increase its levy ~~in such amount~~ above the limitations specified in this subsection and shall notify the ~~secretary~~ department of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the ~~secretary~~, ~~on or before March 1 following the levy~~ department.

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the common council be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy ~~certified~~ allowed by the state?

SECTION 72. 65.07 (2) (e), (em) 2 and (g) (intro.) and 1 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 80, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

65.07 (2) (e) In any city where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the city's actual city population increase and the amount by which the city's population would have increased if the city's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year of levy and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) 2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall ~~accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order~~ be filed with the department of revenue.

(g) (intro.) If the common council desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class I notice under ch. 985 in the official city newspaper. ~~The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection.~~ the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, the city may increase its levy ~~in such amount~~ above the limitations specified in this subsection and shall notify the ~~secretary~~ department of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the ~~secretary~~, ~~on or before March 1 following the levy~~ department.

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the common council be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy ~~certified~~ allowed by the state?

SECTION 73. 65.90 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 73m. 66.605 of the statutes is amended to read:

66.605 Special assessments. Notwithstanding any other statute, the due date of any special assessment levied against property abutting on or benefited by a public improvement may be deferred on such terms and in such manner as prescribed by its

governing body while no use of the improvement is made in connection with the property ~~except in cities of the first class the deferment shall extend only while the property remains unplatted and is used by the owner for farming or agricultural purposes. Such special assessment must be paid within 10 years of the date of the resolution making the levy, unless provision is made to pay the assessment by~~ may be paid in instalments in which case the assessment shall be paid within the time prescribed by the governing body. Any such special assessment shall be a lien against the property from the date of the levy.

SECTION 74. 66.943 (1), (3) (b) and (10) of the statutes are amended to read:

66.943 (1) Any city in this state may enact an ordinance for the establishment, maintenance and operation of a comprehensive unified local transportation system, the major portion of which is or is to be located within or the major portion of the service of which is or is to be supplied to the inhabitants of such city, and which system is used or to be used ~~chiefly~~ for the transportation of persons or freight.

(3) (b) "Comprehensive unified local transportation system" means a transportation system comprised of motor bus lines and any other local public transportation facilities or freight transportation facilities, the major portions of which are within the city.

(10) Any city or village may by contract under s. 66.30 establish a joint municipal transit commission with the powers and duties of city transit commissions under this section. Membership on such a joint transit commission shall be as provided in the contract established thereunder.

SECTION 75. 69.24 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

69.24 (1) (a) A fee of \$4 for the search of the files. If a record is located, no additional fee is required for issuance of ~~a~~ the first certified copy. The department may set additional fees, not to exceed \$2 for each additional copy after the first copy.

SECTION 76m. 70.111 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.111 (3) BOATS. Watercraft employed regularly in interstate traffic. Watercraft ~~belonging to nonresidents of this state and laid up for repairs. All pleasure watercraft belonging to Wisconsin residents and used by members of a family exclusively used~~ for recreational purposes.

SECTION 77. 70.62 (4) (e), (em) 2 and (g) (intro.) and 1 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39 and 80, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

70.62 (4) (e) In any county where the population has increased at a rate greater than the statewide rate of population growth, the amount of increase allowed may be further increased by an amount equal to the previous year's levy divided by the previous year's population multiplied by the difference between the ~~county's~~ actual county population increase and the amount by which the county's population would have increased if the county's population had increased at the statewide rate of population growth. Population growth shall be measured between the year of levy and the previous year. Population estimates determined under s. 16.96 (2) (c) shall be used in this paragraph.

(em) 2. The amount needed for increased operating and debt service cost of compliance with written lawful orders by this state, an adjoining state, the United States, or any agency or subdivision thereof, for air and water pollution abatement, solid waste, or waste treatment facilities. Copies of such orders shall accompany the application along with a signed statement from the state or federal agency administering the air or water pollution abatement, solid waste or waste treatment

~~facilities programs stating it believes that the amount for which the municipality or county is applying is a reasonable estimate of the cost to meet the order be filed with the department of revenue.~~

(g) (intro.) If the county board desires to increase its tax levy above the limitations specified in this subsection, it shall publish such intent in a class II notice under ch. 985 in the official county newspaper. ~~The notice shall include a statement of the purpose and the amount of the proposed levy and the amount by which it wishes to exceed the limits imposed by this subsection.~~ the question of the proposed amount of increase in levy above the limitations specified in this subsection shall be submitted to a referendum at a spring election, general election or special election. If the increase is approved at the referendum, the county may increase its levy ~~in such amount above the limitations specified in this subsection~~ and shall notify the secretary department of revenue of such increase, on a form provided by the ~~secretary, on or before March 1 following the levy department.~~

1. The question presented to the electors shall be in substantially the following form:

Should the county board be authorized to adopt a property tax levy for this year which is in excess of the maximum levy ~~certified~~ allowed by the state?

SECTION 77d. 70.995 (1) (d) 25 of the statutes is amended to read:

70.995 (1) (d) 25. The ~~grinding of optical lenses, the performance of dental laboratory work and the making of blueprints.~~

SECTION 77m. 71.01 (4) (a) 10 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.01 (4) (a) 10. By subtracting any net business loss carry-forward permissible under s. 71.06, but no loss incurred by any insurance company in 1971 or any prior year may be carried forward; ~~and, and any such loss, not incurred in 1971 or any prior year, sustained by a nonprofit service plan of sickness care under ch. 148, dental care under s. 447.13, prepaid optometric service plans under s. 449.15 or prepaid prescription plans under s. 450.13 shall be treated as a net business loss of the successor service insurance corporation under ch. 613 operating by virtue of s. 148.03, 447.13, 449.15 or 450.13.~~

SECTION 78. 71.01 (4) (a) 11 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 79. 71.01 (4) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.01 (4) (g) For purposes of this subsection, "internal revenue code" means the federal internal revenue code as effective November 5, 1971, except that for taxable year 1976 and subsequent years "internal revenue code" means the federal internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1975, or such code as subsequently amended or changed by ~~Congress~~ the U.S. congress and effective for the taxable year for federal income tax purposes, at the option of the insurance company; and "life insurance" includes annuities.

SECTION 80. 71.02 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.02 (1) (a) "Net income" means, for corporations, "gross income" less allowable deductions, except that for taxable years 1972, 1973, 1974 and 1975 for a corporation or common law trust which qualifies as a regulated investment company or real estate investment trust under the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1972, "net income" means the federal regulated investment company taxable income or the federal real estate investment trust taxable income of such corporation or trust as determined under the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1972, and except that for taxable year 1976 and subsequent years, for a corporation or common law trust which qualifies as a regulated investment company or real estate investment trust under the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1975,

“net income” means the federal regulated investment company taxable income or the federal real estate investment trust taxable income of such corporation or trust as determined under the internal revenue code as amended to December 31, 1975.

SECTION 81. 71.02 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

71.02 (2) (b) ~~“Internal 1. For the taxable year 1975, “internal revenue code”~~ means the federal internal revenue code in effect on December 31, 1974. Amendments to the internal revenue code ~~which became effective enacted~~ after December 31, 1974, shall not apply to this subsection with respect to the taxable year 1975.

2. For the taxable year 1976 and thereafter, “internal revenue code” means the federal internal revenue code in effect on December 31, 1975. Amendments to the internal revenue code enacted after December 31, 1975, shall not apply to this subsection with respect to the taxable year 1976 and thereafter.

SECTION 82. 71.03 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

71.03 (2) (e) All amounts received in accordance with s. 13.123 (1) (a) which are spent for the purposes specified in s. 13.123 (1) (a). In this chapter, the place of residence of a member of the state legislature within the legislative district which the member represents shall be considered the member's home.

SECTION 82m. 71.03 (2) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

71.03 (2) (f) Dividends received by a Wisconsin holding company from a regulated corporation having 80% or more of its total combined voting power of all classes of stock owned by the Wisconsin holding company receiving the dividends. For the purposes of this paragraph, “regulated corporation” means a corporation whose business is regulated by a federal or state regulatory agency specifically created to regulate such business, and which business is subject to limitations, restrictions or approvals by such agency as to the kind of entity under which business shall be conducted, the manner in which distributions or transfers of assets may be made by such entity, and the prices or rates to be charged for, or the manner in which, services or products are furnished to the public. For purposes of this paragraph, “Wisconsin holding company” means a corporation which has a Wisconsin apportionment fraction of 95% or more under s. 71.07.

SECTION 83. 71.04 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.04 (2) Other ordinary and necessary expenses actually paid within the year out of the income in the maintenance and operation of its business and property, including with respect to the calendar year 1963 and corresponding fiscal years and prior calendar and fiscal years, but not thereafter a reasonable allowance for depreciation by use, wear and tear of property from which the income is derived; and in the cases of mines and quarries an allowance for depletion of ores and other natural deposits on the basis of their actual original cost in cash or the equivalent of cash; and including also interest and rent paid during the year in the operation of the business from which its income is derived, except interest paid on money borrowed or interest on notes or securities issued by a corporation to purchase its own capital stock; provided if, the payor reports the amount so paid, together with the names and addresses of the parties to whom interest or rent was paid as provided in s. 71.10 (1). Such ordinary and necessary expenses do not include money or the value or cost of property given to or spent on behalf of a public official. In this subsection, “public official” includes any elected or appointed official, any candidate for public office and any employe of the United States or of any state or a political subdivision thereof.

SECTION 84m. 71.05 (1) (b) 6 of the statutes is created to read:

71.05 (1) (b) 6. Any amount deducted under section 404 of the internal revenue code, as amended to December 31, 1975, if the contribution to the individual retirement plan is made for the 1975 taxable year not later than the time prescribed by law for filing the returns for the 1975 taxable year, including extensions thereof.

SECTION 84n. 71.06 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

71.06 Corporation business loss carry forward. (1) For calendar or fiscal years ending on or after July 31, 1976, a corporation may offset against its Wisconsin net business income any Wisconsin net business loss sustained in any of the next 5 preceding income years to the extent not offset by other items of Wisconsin income in the loss year and by Wisconsin net business income of any year between the loss year and the income year for which an offset is claimed. For purposes of this section Wisconsin net business income or loss shall consist of all the income attributable to the operation of a trade or business in this state, less the business expenses allowed as deductions under s. 71.04. The Wisconsin net business income or loss of corporations engaged in business within and without the state shall be determined under s. 71.07 (2), (3) or (5). Nonapportionable losses having a Wisconsin situs under s. 71.07 (1m) shall be included in Wisconsin net business loss; and nonapportionable income having a Wisconsin situs under s. 71.07 (1m), whether taxable or exempt, shall be included in other items of Wisconsin income and Wisconsin net business income for purposes of this section.

(2) The addition to and deductions from income of urban transit companies under s. 71.18 (1) shall also be used in determining the Wisconsin net business loss of such companies to be offset against the Wisconsin net business income as determined under s. 71.18 for purposes of this section.

(3) For insurance companies subject to taxation under this chapter, Wisconsin net business loss shall be determined under s. 71.01 (4), except that s. 71.01 (4) (a) 7, 9, 10 and 11 may not apply.

SECTION 84r. 71.07 (1m) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

71.07 (1m) CORPORATIONS. Income or loss from business, not requiring apportionment under sub. (2), (3) or (5), shall follow the situs of the business from which derived. Income or loss derived from rentals and royalties from real estate or tangible personal property, or from the operation of any farm, mine or quarry, or from the sale of real property or tangible personal property shall follow the situs of the property from which derived, except that gains or losses realized on disposals of real property or tangible personal property used in the production of business income shall follow the situs of the business. Income from personal services performed by employees of corporations, and from patents, copyrights, trademarks, tradenames, plans, specifications, blueprints, processes, techniques, formulae, designs, layouts, patterns, drawings, manuals and technical know-how shall be deemed business income and shall follow the situs of the business. Gain or loss by a corporation on redemption of its own bonds shall be deemed business income or loss and shall follow the situs of the business, and a corporation's bond premium or discount shall be deemed business loss or income and shall follow the situs of the business. All other income or loss, including income or loss derived from land contracts, mortgages, stocks, bonds and securities or from the sale of similar intangible personal property, shall be deemed business income or loss and shall follow the situs of the business, except that such income or loss of a personal holding company shall follow its residence. For purposes of this subsection, "personal holding company" means "personal holding company" as defined in section 542 of the internal revenue code in effect on December 31, 1974. Interest received on state and federal tax refunds when the tax refunded was on business income or

property shall be deemed income from business and shall follow the situs of the business from which derived.

SECTION 85. 71.07 (7) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.07 (7) (d) With respect to taxable years beginning after December 31, 1972, the situs of income received by a trustee, which income, under ~~the provisions of the internal revenue code~~, is taxable to the grantor of the trust or to any person other than the trust, shall be determined as if such income had been actually received directly by such grantor or such other person, without the intervention of the trust. ~~If any such income received by a trustee is subject to a state income tax imposed by any other state, the amount of such state income tax imposed by such other state shall be a credit against the Wisconsin income tax imposed upon that income, up to but not exceeding the amount of the Wisconsin income tax on such income. Income received by a trust the situs of which is in Wisconsin which is taxable to a non-Wisconsin grantor under the internal revenue code shall not be subject to Wisconsin income tax.~~

SECTION 86. 71.10 (10) (a) and (bn) of the statutes are amended to read:

71.10 (10) (a) Except as provided in ~~s. ss.~~ 71.04 (15) and 71.11 (21) (g) 2, the provisions for refunds and credits provided in this subsection shall be the only method for the filing and review of claims for refund of income and surtaxes, and no person ~~shall be allowed to may~~ bring any action or proceeding ~~whatever~~ for the recovery of such taxes other than ~~is as~~ as provided in this subsection.

(bn) With respect to income taxes, franchise taxes and surtaxes assessed or based on incomes received in the calendar year 1962 or corresponding fiscal year, and subsequent years, except as otherwise provided in par. (e) and s. 71.11 (21) (g) 2, refunds may be made if the claim therefor is filed within 4 years of the date the tax return was filed, but for purposes of this paragraph a return filed before the last day prescribed by law for the filing ~~thereof of the return~~ shall be considered as filed on such last day and no refund may be made of any income taxes withheld and paid or declared and paid with respect to which a tax return was not filed when due unless claim therefor is filed within 4 years of the date such return was due.

SECTION 87. 71.11 (21) (d) and (g) of the statutes are amended to read:

71.11 (21) (d) The limitation periods provided in ~~par. (bm) this subsection~~ may be extended by written agreement between the taxpayer and the department of revenue ~~or the assessor of incomes~~ entered into prior to the expiration of ~~said such~~ such limitation periods or any extension ~~thereof of such limitation periods~~. Paragraph (cm) shall not apply to any assessment made in any such extended period.

(g) Notwithstanding any other limitations expressed in this chapter, an assessment or refund may be made if:

1. If notice thereof of assessment is given within 6 years after a return was filed, if the taxpayer reported for taxation on his or her return less than 75% of the net income properly assessable, except that no assessment of additional income may be made under this paragraph for any year beyond the period specified in par. (bm) unless the aggregate of the taxes on the additional income of such year is in excess of \$100.

SECTION 88. 71.11 (21) (g) 2 of the statutes is created to read:

71.11 (21) (g) 2. If notice of assessment or refund is given to the taxpayer within 90 days of the date on which the department receives a report from the taxpayer under sub. (21m) or within such other period specified in a written agreement entered into prior to the expiration of such 90 days by the taxpayer and the department. If the taxpayer does not report to the department as required under sub. (21m), the department may make an assessment against the taxpayer after discovery by the

department of the requirement of such reports within 10 years after the date on which the tax return is filed. This 10-year time limitation shall not apply to assessments made under par. (c).

SECTION 89. 71.11 (21m) of the statutes is created to read:

71.11 (21m) INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS AND AMENDED RETURNS. If the amount of taxable income for any year of any taxpayer as reported to the internal revenue service is changed or corrected by the internal revenue service or other officer of the United States, such taxpayer shall report such changes or corrected income to the department within 90 days after its final determination and shall concede the accuracy of such determination or state how the determination is erroneous. Such changes or corrections need not be reported unless they affect the amount of income reportable or tax payable under this chapter. Any taxpayer filing an amended return with the internal revenue service, or with another state if there has been allowed a credit against Wisconsin taxes for taxes paid to that state, shall also file, within 90 days of such filing date, an amended return with the department if any information contained on the amended return affects the amount of income reportable or tax payable under this chapter.

SECTION 90. 71.11 (21n) of the statutes is created to read:

71.11 (21n) ADDITIONAL ASSESSMENTS AGAINST DISSOLVED CORPORATION. If all or substantially all of the business or property of a corporation is transferred to one or more persons and the corporation is liquidated, dissolved, merged, consolidated or otherwise terminated, any tax imposed by this chapter on such corporation may be assessed and collected as prescribed in this section against the transferee or transferees of such business or property. Notice shall be given to such transferee or transferees under sub. (22) within the time specified in sub. (21) irrespective of any other limitations imposed by law. If such corporation has dissolved, such notice may be served on any one of the last officers or members of the board of directors of such corporation.

SECTION 91. 71.13 (3) (b) and (4) (a) and (b) of the statutes, as affected by the supreme court order dated February 17, 1975, as effective January 1, 1976, are amended to read:

71.13 (3) (b) The sheriff shall, within 5 days after the receipt of the warrant, file with the clerk of the circuit court of his or her county a copy ~~thereof~~ of such warrant, unless the taxpayer makes satisfactory arrangements for ~~the~~ payment ~~thereof~~ with the department, in which case, the sheriff shall, at the direction of the department, return such warrant to it. The clerk shall docket the warrant as required by s. 806.11, and ~~thereupon upon docketing~~ the amount of such warrant, together with interest required by sub. (1) ~~become a lien upon the real property of the taxpayer against whom it is issued in the same manner as a judgment duly docketed in the office of such clerk shall be considered in all respects as a final judgment creating a perfected lien upon the taxpayer's right, title and interest in all of the real and personal property of the taxpayer against whom it is issued in the county where the warrant or duplicate copy of the warrant is docketed. Such perfected lien shall not give the state priority over preexisting lienholders.~~ The clerk of circuit court shall accept, file and docket such warrant without prepayment of any fee, but ~~he~~ the clerk shall submit a statement of the proper fee semiannually to the department covering the periods from January 1 to June 30 and July 1 to December 31. The fees shall then be paid by the state as provided by par. (g), but the fees provided by s. 59.42 (8) for filing and docketing such warrants, and a filing fee of \$1 for filing satisfactions of such warrants, shall be added to the amount of the warrant and collected from the taxpayer when satisfaction or release is presented for entry. In counties ~~wherein~~ where the clerk is compensated otherwise than by salary the fees may be paid by the state as provided by par. (g) and

added to the amount of the warrant and collected as ~~herein provided in this paragraph.~~ The sheriff shall be entitled to the same fees for executing upon ~~said such~~ warrant as upon an execution against property issued out of a court of record, to be collected in the same manner. Upon the sale of any real estate the sheriff shall execute a deed of the same, and the taxpayer shall have the right to redeem the real estate as from a sale under an execution against property upon a judgment of a court of record.

(4) (a) Any taxpayer who is unable to pay the full amount of his or her delinquent income taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest~~ may apply to the department of revenue ~~in the case of corporations and to the assessor of incomes in the case of other persons~~ to pay such taxes ~~with interest and penalties, costs, penalties and interest~~ in instalments. Such application shall contain a ~~sworn~~ statement of the reasons such taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest~~ cannot be paid in full and shall set forth the plan of instalment payments proposed by the taxpayer. Upon approval of such plan by ~~the assessor of incomes or the department~~ and the payment of instalments in accordance therewith collection proceedings with respect to such taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest~~ shall be withheld; but on failure of the taxpayer to make any instalment payment, the department shall proceed to collect the unpaid portion of such taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest~~ in the manner provided by law. ~~Each instalment when made shall be applied first in discharging penalty and interest and other lawful charges accrued to the date of payment and the balance applied on the principal of the tax, and additional interest shall be computed only on the principal amount of the tax remaining due.~~

(b) Any taxpayer may petition the department of revenue ~~in the case of corporations or the assessor of incomes in the case of other persons~~ to compromise his or her delinquent income taxes including the ~~costs, penalties and interest thereon.~~ Such petition shall set forth a sworn statement of the taxpayer and shall be in such form as the department shall prescribe and the department ~~or assessor~~ may examine the petitioner under oath concerning the matter. ~~The assessor, in case the petition is to him, shall indorse on said petition his recommendations concerning such compromise and shall transmit the same to the department of revenue.~~ If the department finds that the taxpayer is unable to pay the taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest~~ in full it shall determine the amount of taxes ~~he the taxpayer~~ is able to pay and shall enter an order reducing such taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest~~ in accordance ~~therewith~~ with such determination. Such order shall provide that such compromise shall be effective only if paid within 10 days. The department or its collection agents upon receipt of such order, ~~a copy of which in case of persons other than corporations shall be forwarded to the assessor,~~ shall accept payment in accordance ~~therewith~~ with the order. Upon payment the department or the assessor shall thereupon enter the unpaid portion of the principal amount of such taxes on the next credit roll and make appropriate record of the unpaid amount of penalties, costs, and interest accrued to the date of such order. If within 3 years of the date of such compromise order the department ~~or assessor~~ shall ascertain that the taxpayer has an income or property sufficient to enable ~~him~~ the taxpayer to pay the remainder of the tax including ~~costs, penalty and interest~~ the department shall reopen said matter and order the payment in full of such taxes, ~~costs, penalties and interest.~~ Before the entry of such order a notice shall be sent to the taxpayer by ~~registered~~ certified mail advising of the intention of the department of revenue to reopen such matter and fixing a time and place for the appearance of ~~such~~ the taxpayer if he or she desires to be heard in regard thereto ~~a hearing~~. Upon entry of such order the department of revenue shall, ~~in the case of persons other than corporations, forward a copy to the assessor and the department or assessor shall make an entry of the principal amount of such taxes, penalties, costs and interest ordered to be paid on the delinquent roll and such taxes shall be immediately due and payable upon entry upon such the roll and shall thereafter be subject to the interest provided by subsection sub. (1), and the department shall immediately proceed to collect the same~~

together with the unpaid portion of penalty, costs, and interest accrued to the date of the compromise order.

SECTION 92. 71.13 (4) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

71.13 (4) (g) All payments made on delinquencies shall be applied first in discharging costs, penalties and interest and the balance applied on the principal of the tax.

SECTION 93. 71.135 of the statutes is amended to read:

71.135 (title) Withholding by employer of delinquent tax of employe. (1) ~~Any assessor of incomes of the~~ The department ~~or his authorized representative~~ may give notice to any employer deriving income having a taxable situs in Wisconsin this state (regardless of whether any such income is exempt from taxation) to the effect that an employe of such employer is delinquent in a certain amount with respect to state ~~income~~ taxes, including penalties, interest and costs. Such notice may be served by ~~registered~~ certified mail, or by delivery by an employe of the department of revenue. Upon receipt of such notice of delinquency, ~~such the~~ employer shall withhold from compensation due or to become due to ~~such the~~ employe, the total amount shown by the notice. ~~The assessor of incomes or his authorized representative, in his discretion,~~ department may arrange between the employer and ~~such the~~ employe for a withholding of an amount not less than 10 ~~per cent~~ % of the total amount due the employe each pay period, until the total amount as shown by the notice, plus interest ~~thereon~~, has been withheld. ~~In no event shall the~~ The employer shall not withhold more than 25 ~~per cent~~ % of the compensation due any employe for any one pay period, except that, if the employe leaves the employ of the employer or gives notice of his or her intention to do so, or is discharged for any reason, the employer shall withhold the entire amount otherwise payable to such employe, or so much thereof as may be necessary to equal the unwithheld balance of the amount shown in the notice of delinquency, plus delinquent interest ~~thereon~~. In crediting amounts withheld against delinquent ~~income~~ taxes of an employe, the department shall apply amounts withheld in the following order: costs, penalties, delinquent interest, delinquent ~~income~~ tax. The "compensation due" any employe for purposes of determining the 25 ~~per cent~~ % maximum withholding for any one pay period shall include all wages, salaries and fees constituting gross income under s. 71.03 (1) (a) when paid to an employe, less ~~only~~ amounts payable ~~therefrom~~ pursuant to a garnishment action with respect to which the employer was served prior to ~~his~~ being served with the notice of delinquency and any amounts covered by any irrevocable and previously effective assignment of wages, of which amounts and the facts relating ~~thereto~~ to such assignment the employer shall give notice to the department within 10 days after service of the notice of delinquency.

(2) In any case in which the employe ceases to be employed by the employer before the full amount set forth in a notice of delinquency, plus delinquent interest ~~thereon~~, has been withheld by the employer, the employer shall immediately notify the ~~assessor of incomes~~ department in writing of the termination date of the employe and the total amount withheld.

(3) The employer shall, on or before the last day of the next month ~~next succeeding after~~ every calendar quarter, remit to the ~~office of the assessor of incomes~~ department the amount withheld during the calendar quarter. Any amount withheld from an employe by an employer shall immediately be a trust fund for ~~the this~~ state of ~~Wisconsin~~. Should any employer, after notice, wilfully fail to withhold in accordance with the notice and this section, or wilfully fail to remit any amount withheld, as required by this section, such employer shall be liable for the total amount set forth in the notice together with delinquent interest ~~thereon~~ as though the amount shown by the notice was due by such employer as a direct obligation to the state ~~of~~ for delinquent ~~income~~ taxes, and may be collected by any means provided by law including

the means provided for the collection of delinquent income taxes. However, no amount required to be paid by an employer by reason of his or her failure to remit ~~pursuant to under~~ this section may be deducted from the gross income of such employer, ~~pursuant to under~~ either s. 71.04 or 71.05. Any amount collected from the employer for failure to withhold or for failure to remit ~~pursuant to under~~ this section shall, ~~for purposes of distribution, be treated~~ be credited as a tax, costs, penalties and interest paid by the employe.

(4) ~~The provisions of subs. Subsections~~ (1) to (3) shall ~~be applicable apply~~ in any case in which the employer is the United States or any instrumentality thereof ~~or the state of Wisconsin this state~~ or any municipality or other subordinate unit thereof except those provisions imposing a liability on the employer for failure to withhold or remit. But an amount equal to any amount withheld by any municipality or other subordinate unit of ~~the this state of Wisconsin pursuant to under~~ this section and not remitted to the ~~assessor of incomes department~~ department as required by this section shall be retained by the state treasurer from funds otherwise payable to any such municipality or subordinate unit, and transmitted instead to the ~~assessor of incomes department,~~ upon certification by the secretary of revenue.

(5) The department ~~of revenue~~ shall refund to the employe excess amounts withheld from the employe under this section.

(6) Employers required to withhold delinquent taxes, penalties, interest and costs ~~pursuant to under~~ this section shall ~~in no case not~~ be required to withhold amounts other than the total amounts certified to such employers by the department and ~~in no case shall such employers shall not~~ be required to compute interest, costs or other charges to be withheld.

SECTION 94. 72.86 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

72.86 (4) APPLICABLE INCOME TAX PROVISIONS. All provisions of income tax statutes not in conflict with this subchapter on the following subjects apply to the administration of this subchapter: assessment, hearing and appeal procedures (including ss. 73.01 and 73.015), preparation of assessment and tax rolls, certification of taxes due and corrections thereof, collection (including s. 71.135) and refund procedures.

SECTION 94m. 73.10 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

73.10 (5) The department shall inquire into the system of accounting of public funds in use by towns, villages, cities, counties, ~~school districts, boards of education,~~ vocational, technical and adult education districts and all other local public bodies, boards, commissions, departments or agencies except school districts and boards of education; devise, prescribe and at the request of any town, village, city, county, ~~school district, board of education,~~ vocational, technical and adult education districts or other local public body, board, commission, department or agency except school districts and boards of education, install a system of accounts which is as nearly uniform as practicable and when so installed the system shall be retained in use and at the request of school districts and boards of education, install accounting systems which conform to the uniform financial accounting system prescribed by s. 115.28 (13); and audit the books of the town, village, city, county, school district, board of education, vocational, technical and adult education districts or other local public body, board, commission, department or agency upon the request of the governing board, council, commission or body thereof, or upon its own motion. ~~Nothing herein shall in this subsection may~~ be construed to be exclusive and prevent a local governing body from employing an auditor of its own choice duly licensed under ch. 442.

SECTION 95. 76.13 (2a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.13 (2a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, taxes levied under this section shall be paid to the department in semiannual instalments, on ~~June~~ May 10 and November 10, on a partially estimated basis. Companies assessed under s. 76.07 (1) in calendar year 1976 on or before June 15, 1976, and thereafter shall adjust the remaining semiannual payment made on November 10 so as to properly reflect and pay the total amount of tax assessed. Companies assessed under s. 76.07 (1) in calendar year 1976 on or before August 15, 1976, and thereafter shall adjust the remaining semiannual payment made on November 10 so as to properly reflect and pay the total amount of tax assessed. The semiannual instalments may be reduced by a pro rata share of the property tax credit provided by s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and any difference between the credit certified under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and the total tax credit reductions in prior semiannual payments for the year shall be added to or subtracted from the November 10 payment in each year. If any company fails to make semiannual payments, prior to the assessment date, of at least 50% of either the total tax ~~paid~~ assessed less tax credit ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the previous calendar year or 80% of the ~~actual tax computed~~ assessed before applying the tax credit ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the current calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid. The ~~semiannual~~ payment of 25% of the tax of any company due on November 10, 1976, and on every November 10 thereafter may, if the company has brought an action in the Dane county circuit court under s. 76.08, be made without delinquent interest as provided in s. 76.14 any time prior to the date upon which ~~the time for filing an appeal in such action has expired~~ such appeal becomes final, but any part thereof ultimately required to be paid shall bear interest from the original due date to the date on which the time for filing an appeal has expired at the rate of 6% per annum and at one percent per month thereafter until paid.

SECTION 95m. 76.24 (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.24 (3) Of taxes paid by any light, heat and power company, conservation and regulation company or pipeline company, defined by s. 76.02, except taxes on property valued separately under s. 76.16, 83%, except that beginning July 1, 1974, and thereafter 93.3%, before reduction by the credit provided in s. 79.10 (1a) (b), shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. To the extent that the shared tax supplement, under s. 20.835 (1) (aa), must be increased because of any delayed utility tax payments under this section, such delayed payments, when received, shall be entered in the general fund rather than in the shared tax account. For purposes of distributions to municipalities and counties in July and November 1976 and subsequent years under subch. I of ch. 79, the allocation under this subsection to the municipal and county shared tax account shall be determined by applying the 93.3% to the amount of taxes such companies would have paid to the state if the provision for semiannual payments under s. 76.13 (2a) had not been enacted.

SECTION 96. 76.38 (3a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.38 (3a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, the license fees prescribed by this section shall be paid to the department on an estimated basis. Payment of the first instalment for one-half of the total estimated liability of the May 1, 1977, assessment is due on or before ~~June~~ May 10, 1976, and payment of semiannual instalments of the total estimated liability for the year 1977 shall be due on or before ~~June~~ May 10, 1976, and November 10, 1976. Thereafter, remittances of semiannual instalments of the

total estimated payments for the then current calendar year shall be due on or before ~~June~~ May 10, and November 10 of the current year. With respect to the May 1, 1977, license fee assessment ~~pursuant to~~ under sub. (3) and each May 1 assessment thereafter each telephone company shall on ~~June~~ May 10, 1977, and each May 10 thereafter pay or be credited an amount which is equal to the difference between the May 1 assessment and the sum of the semiannual instalment payments made in the preceding calendar year. Such additional amount shall be added to the semiannual instalment due on ~~June~~ May 10; if there has been an overpayment the amount of ~~the~~ overpayment shall be credited to the semiannual instalment due ~~June~~ May 10. The semiannual instalments may be reduced by a pro rata share of the property tax credits provided by s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and any difference between the credit certified under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and the sum of the property tax credit reductions reflected in the semiannual instalment payments, made the preceding calendar year, shall be added to or subtracted from the semiannual instalment due ~~June~~ May 10. The receipt received by each telephone company with respect to the ~~June~~ May 10, 1977, payment date and each ~~June~~ May 10 payment date thereafter shall constitute the license provided by sub. (3). If any telephone company fails to make semiannual payments of at least 50% of either the total assessed liability less tax credit ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the current calendar year or 80% of the actual assessed liability computed before applying the tax credit ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the subsequent calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid.

SECTION 96m. 76.38 (7) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.38 (7) All telephone license fees shall be deposited in the general fund and 77.5% of the license fees on exchange business shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. To the extent that the shared tax supplement, under s. 20.835 (1) (aa), must be increased because of any delayed utility tax payments under this section, such delayed payments, when received, shall be entered in the general fund rather than in the shared tax account. For purposes of distributions to municipalities and counties in July and November 1976 and subsequent years under subch. I of ch. 79, the allocation under this subsection to the municipal and county shared tax account shall be determined by applying the 77.5% to the amount of fees such companies would have paid to the state if the provision for semiannual payments under sub. (3a) had not been enacted.

SECTION 97. 76.39 (3a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.39 (3a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, tax due under this section shall be paid to the department on an estimated basis. Payments of semiannual instalments of the total estimated liability for the calendar year 1977 and thereafter shall be due on or before ~~June~~ May 10 and November 10 of the year prior to assessment. On ~~June~~ May 10, 1977, and on every May 10 thereafter each railroad company and car line company shall pay any additional amounts due or be credited for any overpayment based upon the actual liability of the current year. If any railroad company or car line company fails to make semiannual payments of at least 50% of either the actual tax liability for the current calendar year or 80% of the actual tax liability for the subsequent calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid.

SECTION 98. 76.48 (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.48 (3) On or before June 1 in each year, the department of revenue shall compute and assess the license fees provided for in sub. (1) and certify the amounts due to the state treasurer and file a duplicate thereof with the department of administration. The state treasurer shall forthwith notify each association of the amount of the license fees so assessed. On or before July 10 in each year, such fees shall be paid to the state treasurer. However for the year 1976 and thereafter the department shall compute and assess such fees on or before May 1 and the fees due for the year 1976 ~~and thereafter~~ shall be paid on or before ~~June~~ May 10, 1976 ~~and every June 10 thereafter~~. Such fees shall become delinquent if not paid when due and when delinquent shall be subject to interest at the rate of one percent per month on the amount of license fee until paid. Such interest shall be collected by the state treasurer and retained by the state. With respect to taxes assessed for the year 1977 and thereafter the payment dates provided for in sub. (3a) shall apply.

SECTION 99. 76.48 (3a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.48 (3a) Beginning with the calendar year 1976, license fees due under this section shall be paid to the state treasurer on an estimated basis. Payment of the first instalment for one-half of the total estimated liability for the year 1977 shall be due on or before ~~June~~ May 10, 1976 and the remaining one-half on November 10, 1976. Thereafter, payments of semiannual instalments of the estimated tax liability for the subsequent year shall be due on or before ~~June~~ May 10 and November 10 of the current year. With respect to the May 1, 1977, license fee assessment ~~pursuant to~~ under sub. (3) and each May 1 assessment thereafter each association shall on ~~June~~ May 10, 1977, and each ~~June~~ May 10 thereafter pay or be credited an amount which is equal to the difference between the May assessment and the sum of the semiannual instalment payments made in the preceding calendar year. Such additional amount shall be added to the semiannual instalment due on ~~June~~ May 10. If there has been an overpayment the amount of the overpayment shall be credited to the semiannual instalment due ~~June~~ May 10. The semiannual instalments may be reduced by a pro rata share of the property tax credits provided by s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and any difference between the credit certified under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) and the sum of the property tax credit reductions reflected in the semiannual instalment payments, made in the preceding calendar year, shall be added to or subtracted from the semiannual instalment due ~~June~~ May 10. If any association fails to make semiannual payments at least 50% of either the actual tax assessed less tax credit ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the current calendar year or 80% of the actual tax assessed before applying the tax credit ~~pursuant to~~ under s. 79.10 (1a) (c) for the subsequent calendar year, it shall be liable in addition to the amount due for interest in the amount of one percent of the amount due and unpaid for each month or part of a month that the amount due together with any interest remains unpaid.

SECTION 99m. 76.48 (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

76.48 (4) All license fees provided in sub. (1) shall be deposited in the general fund and shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. To the extent that the shared tax supplement, under s. 20.835 (1) (aa), must be increased because of any delayed utility tax payments under this section, such delayed payments, when received, shall be entered in the general fund rather than in the shared tax account. For purposes of distributions to municipalities and counties in July and November 1976 and subsequent years under subch. I of ch. 79, the allocation under this subsection to the municipal and county

shared tax account shall be in the amount of the license fees such associations would have paid to the state if the provision for semiannual payments under sub. (3a) had not been enacted.

SECTION 100. 77.51 (11) (c) 2 of the statutes is amended to read:

77.51 (11) (c) 2. Any services that are a part of the sale of tangible personal property, including any fee, service charge, labor charge or other addition to the price charged a customer by the retailer which represents or is in lieu of a tip or gratuity.

SECTION 101. 77.51 (12) (c) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

77.51 (12) (c) 1. Any services that are a part of the sale of tangible personal property, including any fee, service charge, labor charge or other addition to the price charged a customer by the retailer which represents or is in lieu of a tip or gratuity.

SECTION 102. 77.61 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

77.61 (2) In order to protect the revenue of the state, the department may require any person liable to it for the tax imposed by this subchapter to place with it, before or after a permit is issued, such security, not in excess of \$5,000, as the department determines. If any taxpayer fails or refuses to place such security, the department may refuse or revoke such permit. If any taxpayer is delinquent in the payment of the taxes imposed by this subchapter, the department may, upon 10 days' notice, recover the taxes, interest, costs and penalties from the security placed with the department by such taxpayer in the following order: costs; penalties; delinquent interest; delinquent tax. No interest ~~shall~~ may be paid or allowed by the state to any person for the deposit of security.

SECTION 103. 77.62 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

77.62 (1) (intro.) The department of revenue may exercise the powers vested in it by ~~s.~~ ss. 71.13 and 71.135 in connection with collection of delinquent sales and use taxes including, without limitation because of enumeration, the power incorporated by reference in s. 71.13 (3) (i), and the power to:

SECTION 104. 79.04 (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

79.04 (3) During each of the first 4 years after commencement of construction of a production plant described in sub. (1), which the public service commission certifies to the department of revenue will produce a nominal rated capacity of 250 megawatts or more, the county shall receive a payment of \$50,000 and the municipality shall receive a payment of \$100,000 and the county and municipality shall not be subject to the limitations of \$300 multiplied by the population of the county and \$300 multiplied by the population of the municipality. Payments received under this ~~paragraph~~ subsection shall be excluded in determining maximum payments under s. 79.06 (1).

SECTION 105. 79.17 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

79.17 (2) In the case of the allocation for the year 1977 and thereafter, the computed full value rate of the municipality for each of the preceding 3 years shall be averaged and the resulting average shall be multiplied by the municipality's full value of taxable merchants' stock-in-trade, manufacturers' materials and finished products, and livestock for the preceding year as equalized for state tax purposes. ~~The~~ In 1977, ~~the~~ allocable share of each participating municipality in the distribution under sub. (1) shall be the amount determined in this subsection for each municipality multiplied by the lesser of .8 or the factor resulting when the total amount, thus determined, is divided into 107% of the appropriation total actual distribution made in the prior year under s. 20.835 (2) (b) 79.12, 1973 stats., as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975. In 1978 and thereafter the allocable share of each participating municipality shall be the

amount determined in this subsection for each municipality multiplied by the lesser of .8 or the factor resulting when the total amount, thus determined, is divided into 107% of the total actual distribution made in the prior year under this section.

SECTION 105d. 93.24 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 23.35 and amended to read:

23.35 Olympic ice rink. The ~~state fair park board~~ department of natural resources shall manage and supervise all activities in connection with the Olympic ice rink. Operating costs of the Olympic ice rink shall be paid from the appropriation under s. ~~20.115 (4)~~ 20.370 (1) (fp) and (g).

SECTION 106. 101.141 of the statutes is created to read:

101.141 Record-keeping of fires. The department shall maintain records of all fires occurring in this state. Such records shall be open to public inspection during normal business hours.

SECTION 106e. 102.07 (5) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

102.07 (5) (c) A shareholder-employee of a family farm corporation shall be deemed a "farmer" for purposes of this chapter and shall not be deemed an employee of a farmer. A "family farm corporation" means a corporation engaged in farming all of whose shareholders are related as lineal ancestors or lineal descendants, or as spouses, brothers, sisters, uncles, aunts, cousins, sons-in-law, daughters-in-law, fathers-in-law, mothers-in-law, brothers-in-law or sisters-in-law of such lineal ancestors or lineal descendants.

SECTION 106m. 111.91 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

111.91 (1) (d) The employer shall not be required to bargain on matters related to employe occupancy of houses or other lodging provided by the state.

SECTION 106p. 115.28 (13) of the statutes is created to read:

115.28 (13) **UNIFORM FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING.** Prescribe a uniform financial accounting system which provides for the recording of all financial transactions inherent in the management of schools and the administration of the state's school aid programs.

SECTION 106r. 115.30 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.30 (1) The department shall prepare for the use of school officers suitable forms for making reports, and suitable outlines as aids in conducting school meetings. With the exception of changes due to statute or rule revision, the department shall give school districts a one-year advance notice of any changes to be made to the forms and reports. School district officers and employes shall maintain a uniform recording of accounting as prescribed by the department and make such reports to the department as will enable it to distribute state school fund appropriations and state educational appropriations to the schools and persons entitled thereto, and to properly discharge the other duties of the department.

SECTION 107. 115.34 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

115.34 (2) The department shall make payments to school districts for school lunches served to children in the prior year as determined by the state superintendent. Payments to school districts shall equal the state's matching obligation under the national school lunch act, P.L. 79-396, as amended. Payments in the current year shall be determined by prorating the state's matching obligation based on the number of school lunches served to children in the prior year.

SECTION 108. 115.84 of the statutes is amended to read:

115.84 Local report. The school board, board of control or county handicapped children's education board maintaining special education programs or other services shall report annually to the department, and at such other times as it directs, such information as it requires. The report shall include the number of pupils instructed or provided service, their residence and the period of time each was instructed or otherwise served during the school year. Annually, on or before August 15, each board shall submit to the department an itemized statement on oath of all receipts and disbursements on account of such special education programs or other services during the preceding school year.

SECTION 108b. 115.88 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.88 (1) PROGRAM AID. (intro.) If, upon receipt of the report under s. 115.84, the state superintendent is satisfied that the special education program has been maintained during the preceding school year in accordance with law, ~~he~~ the superintendent shall certify to the department of administration in favor of each county, cooperative educational service agency and school district maintaining such special education program a sum equal to 70% of the amount expended by the county, agency and school district during the preceding year for special books and equipment used in programs under this subchapter, salaries of personnel enumerated in s. 115.83 (1), except as provided in pars. (a) and (b), and other expenses approved by the state superintendent. The department of administration shall pay such amounts to the county, agency and school district from the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (d). The amount of aid paid to any county, agency or school district under this subsection shall be reduced by any amounts received by that county, cooperative educational service agency or school district under ~~sub. (7)~~ s. 115.88 (7), 1973 stats. for the same school year.

SECTION 108d. 115.88 (7) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 108h. 115.881 of the statutes is created to read:

115.881 Proration of state aid. If the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (d) in any one year is insufficient to pay the full amount of aid under ss. 115.88 and 118.255 state aid payments shall be prorated among the school districts entitled thereto.

SECTION 108s. 120.14 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

120.14 (2) The school board may request the department of revenue in accordance with s. 73.10 (5) to audit the school district accounts, install a system of accounts compatible with the uniform financial accounting system prescribed in s. 115.28 (13) and advise and make recommendations concerning ~~existing systems of accounts current financial practices and procedures.~~

SECTION 108w. 120.18 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

120.18 Annual school district report. (intro.) Annually at such times as the department prescribes but on or before August 15, the school district clerk of a common or union high school district shall file a verified annual school district report with the department, on forms supplied by the department. At the beginning of the school term, the school district clerk shall send a copy of the annual school district report to the school district administrator and shall notify the person in charge of each school in the school district that the reports are on file in the school district clerk's office. Accounting and financial information provided by the school district in the annual report shall be prepared from the system of accounts prescribed by the department. If the school district clerk neglects to make the annual report, ~~he~~ the clerk shall be liable to the school district for the whole amount of money lost by the school district because of ~~his~~ such neglect. The annual report shall contain:

SECTION 108x. 121.05 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.05 (1) (c) The estimated budget for the current school year which shall be based upon the uniform accounting system prescribed by the department.

SECTION 108y. 121.09 (5) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

121.09 (5) If a district is not eligible to receive state aid under s. 121.08 (4), it shall not receive payment under this section.

Vetoed in Part SECTION 109a. 121.79 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:
~~121.79 (1) (e) Beginning in the 1977-78 fiscal year for claims incurred in the 1976-77 school year for children of parents employed at and residing on the grounds of land owned by the department of natural resources.~~

SECTION 109b. 121.91 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is renumbered 121.91 (2) (a).

SECTION 109d. 121.91 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

121.91 (2) (b) After the initial decision to determine its allowable shared cost budget under sub. (1) or par. (a) school districts budgeting on a calendar year basis shall employ the same 12-month period in the computation of each succeeding allowable shared cost budget.

SECTION 109f. 121.91 (4) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

121.91 (4) (c) Districts computing their allowable shared cost budgets under sub. (2) shall employ the same current and prior year's memberships as districts computing their allowable shared cost budgets under sub. (1).

SECTION 109m. 121.91 (5) (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

121.91 (5) (c) Prevent the full implementation of a comprehensive plan to eliminate racial imbalance in the school district by a stated date; or

SECTION 109p. 121.91 (5) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

121.91 (5) (d) Affect compliance by the school district with the specific order of a court or a state or federal agency, with the exception of orders issued by the department of public instruction, directing that school district to take an action not required by the order of all other school districts.

Partial Veto Overruled

SECTION 109q. 121.91 (5a) of the statutes is created to read:
121.91 (5a) In addition to any amounts determined under sub. (5), the state superintendent may determine that a school district may exceed its allowable shared cost budget as set forth in subs. (1) and (2) by any documented inflationary increase in the costs of heat for buildings and electricity which exceeds 9.5% of the prior year's expenditures for heat for buildings and electricity.

SECTION 109r. 121.91 (5m) of the statutes is created to read:

121.91 (5m) (a) After determining that it has reached the maximum amount allowable under sub. (1) or (2), a school board may file a request with the state superintendent for an adjustment of its prior year per pupil shared cost, along with such evidence as required by the state superintendent. The state superintendent may adjust the prior year per pupil shared cost of the school district for the purpose of computing the allowable shared cost budget for any of the following:

1. A cost that was payable in the prior year, but paid in the current year, and only where costs payable in the current year are not retroactive obligations.
2. A receipt received in the current year which was receivable in the prior year.
3. A change in the classification of receipts and expenditures that is uniformly applied to all districts.

(b) Any decision by the state superintendent under this subsection shall be supported by clear, convincing and substantial evidence.

(c) The state superintendent shall initiate an adjustment of the prior year per pupil shared cost in order to carry out par. (a) 2.

SECTION 111. 121.92 of the statutes, as created by chapter 80, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

121.92 Adjustment for principal and interest. In addition to the allowable increase in shared cost per pupil computed under s. 121.91, a school district may increase its allowable shared cost budget by an amount equal to ~~109.5%~~ 9.5% multiplied by the amount excluded under s. 121.90 (1) for principal and interest payments on long-term indebtedness.

SECTION 111c. 133.01 (3) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

133.01 (3) Whoever violates sub. (1) may be fined not more than \$100,000 if a corporation. Any person other than a corporation who violates sub. (1) may be imprisoned not less than 30 days nor more than 5 years and fined not more than \$50,000.

SECTION 111m. 139.03 (2n) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

139.03 (2n) The rate of such tax, effective November 5, 1971, and thereafter, is 19.5 cents per wine gallon on wine containing 14% or less of alcohol by volume, and 39 cents per wine gallon on wine containing more than 14% of alcohol by volume, but not in excess of 21% of alcohol by volume.

SECTION 112. 143.15 (6) and (7) of the statutes are created to read:

143.15 (6) Laboratories required to apply to the department under sub. (2) shall not operate without a certificate of approval. Any lab which operates without a certificate of approval shall be fined not less than \$100 nor more than \$1,000. Each day such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense.

(7) The department may promulgate rules establishing a fee schedule to offset the cost of the certification of laboratories, the fee to be determined by the category of the facility to be certified, and may promulgate rules establishing a fee collection procedure.

SECTION 112m. 144.76 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.76 (title) Wisconsin citizens environmental council.

SECTION 112p. 144.76 (2), (3) and (4) of the statutes are renumbered 144.76 (1), (2) and (3), and 144.76 (1) and (2) (intro.), (a) and (d), as renumbered, are amended to read:

144.76 (1) The ~~natural beauty~~ Wisconsin citizens environmental council shall employ, under the classified service, such staff as is necessary to perform ~~clerical~~ administrative [clerical] duties. **Vetoed in Part**

(2) (intro.) The ~~over-all~~ overall objectives of the council shall be to plan, ~~co-ordinate~~ coordinate, educate and motivate both public and private agencies and persons to preserve and enhance Wisconsin's ~~natural beauty environment~~ [natural beauty]. To this end the council shall: **Vetoed in Part**

(a) Serve as a general information center and catalytic agent on all matters affecting the ~~natural beauty of Wisconsin~~ Wisconsin's environment [the natural beauty of Wisconsin]. **Vetoed in Part**

(d) ~~Co-ordinate and stimulate the natural beauty activities of county councils and~~ Assist [Coordinate and stimulate the natural beauty activities of county councils and] other public and private ~~environmental protection~~ organizations, and such activities of the federal government as apply to this state. **Vetoed in Part**

SECTION 113. 146.50 (9) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 37, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

146.50 (9) (a) The department may ~~conduct~~, arrange for or approve courses of instructional programs within or without this state as sufficient to meet the education and training requirements of this section and shall make such courses available to the residents of this state and to persons holding a provisional license. The courses shall be free of charge to any person who holds an ambulance attendant license, an ambulance service provider license or a provisional license and who is employed by a county, city, village or town. If the department determines that an area or community need exists, such courses shall be offered at vocational, technical and adult education schools in such area or community. Initial priority shall be given to the training of ambulance attendants serving the rural areas of the state.

SECTION 113m. 146.60 of the statutes is created to read:

146.60 Prospective hospital rates. (1) The department may enter into a contract with the Wisconsin hospital association and associated hospital services for the purpose of setting hospital rates prospectively.

(2) DEFINITIONS. In this section:

(a) "Hospital" means any health care institution approved under ss. 140.23 to 140.29 and hospitals established under ss. 46.21, 49.16 and 142.05.

(b) "Rates" means the fees, charges and rates of reimbursement payable to a hospital for patient health care, including, but not limited to, those made for space, equipment, materials and services.

(c) "Contract" means the policies and procedures governing the hospital rate review program, which agreement is mutually based involving the Wisconsin hospital association, associated hospital services, and the department of health and social services.

SECTION 114. 158.03 (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

158.03 (4) No person ~~shall~~ may engage in teaching or instructing apprentices in any school or college teaching barbering unless he ~~or she~~ holds a Wisconsin master barber's license, is a graduate from an approved high school or its equivalent as determined by examination by the board of vocational, technical and adult education ~~or the extension division of the university of Wisconsin extension~~ and has passed an examination for an instructor's certificate in barbering conducted by the examining board. Such certificate shall expire on June 1 next succeeding issuance and be renewed on or before the expiration date at a renewal fee ~~of \$20 specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$25.~~ After that date an additional fee of \$10 shall be paid. The examination shall cover such subjects as are usually taught in barber schools and colleges in practical work and theory. The examination fee for instructors shall be specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$50.

SECTION 115. 158.09 (6) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

158.09 (6) Each application for an apprentice's permit shall be accompanied by a fee ~~of \$15 specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$25.~~

SECTION 116. 158.10 (2) and (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

158.10 (2) Each application for a journeyman's license other than a renewal shall be in writing and accompanying the application shall be an examination fee ~~of \$20 specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$50.~~ The fee for the license, if granted, shall be \$10 specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$25.

Issuance of a journeyman's license shall entitle the applicant to practice barbering under a licensed shop manager in this state for a period of one year from the date of the license. After expiration of this license it must be renewed and such journeyman must take the first examination for a master barber's license given in his or her respective locality, ~~provided if he or she~~ has served one year as a journeyman in this state.

(4) Any barber ~~from out of the state~~ who is at least 20 years of age, of good moral character and temperate habits and has an active license or certificate as a practicing barber or eligibility therefor with 4 years' experience from another state which has substantially the same requirements as this state may be granted a journeyman license upon passing an examination consisting of a written test and practical examination. The fee for the examination ~~is \$30~~ shall be specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$50. The application blank and fee must be filed with the examining board at least 10 days previous to the examination. ~~Permission to work pending an examination shall not be granted~~ The examining board shall not permit the applicant to work as a journeyman or a barber pending the examination.

SECTION 117. 158.11 (2) and (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

158.11 (2) The fee to be paid by an applicant for an examination to determine his or her fitness to receive a master barber's license shall be \$30 specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$50 and ~~the fee~~ for the issuance of the master barber's license ~~\$45~~ shall be specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$25.

(3) All master barber licenses shall expire on June 1 of the license year. A renewal license for the ensuing year shall be issued to any licensed master barber on payment of a renewal fee of ~~\$15~~ providing specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$25 if the application, together with the fee, is filed before the beginning of the next license year. In case the application, together with the fee, is filed after the close of the license year the renewal fee shall be ~~\$25~~ specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$50.

SECTION 118. 158.12 (2) (b), (3) and (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, are amended to read:

158.12 (2) (b) Who has satisfactorily passed an examination conducted by the examining board to determine his or her fitness in managing a shop. The fee for examination for a shop manager's license shall be \$30 specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$50. The application blank and fee for such examination must be received by the examining board at least 10 days ~~previous~~ prior to the examination.

(3) The fee to be paid upon application for the issuance of a shop manager's license shall be \$45 specified by the examining board, but shall not exceed \$25. When application is made by more than one qualified person for a license covering the same shop such license may be issued in the name of all applicants. Any person seeking a shop manager's license for more than one shop shall pay a separate fee for each shop.

(4) All shop manager licenses shall expire on June 1 of the license year. A renewal license for the ensuing year shall be issued to any licensed shop manager on payment of a renewal fee of ~~\$15~~ providing specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$25 if the application, together with the fee, is filed before the beginning of the next license year. ~~In case~~ If the application, together with the fee, is filed after the close of the license year the renewal fee shall be ~~\$25~~ specified by the examining board,

but shall not exceed \$50.

SECTION 119. 158.124 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

158.124 (1) A manager previously licensed in ~~Wisconsin~~ this state who fails to renew his or her license may, on application, if filed within 3 years after the expiration of his or her last license, secure a license without examination by payment of a fee of ~~\$25~~ specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$50 for each year not licensed or by examination and payment of the fees as required for compliance with s. 158.12. A shop manager who fails to renew his or her license within 3 years after the expiration of his or her last license may secure a license only by examination and payment of the fees as required for compliance with s. 158.12. The time limitations prescribed in this subsection shall not include the service period of the shop manager as an active member of the U.S. armed forces.

SECTION 120. 160.03 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

160.03 (7) (a) The department shall not grant a permit to a person intending to operate a new hotel, tourist rooming house or restaurant or to a person intending to be the new operator of an existing hotel, tourist rooming house or restaurant without a preinspection.

(b) The preinspection fee for a restaurant or a hotel shall be \$25.

(c) The preinspection fee for a tourist rooming house shall be \$10.

(d) This subsection shall not apply to a "temporary restaurant" as defined by rule of the department.

SECTION 121. 165.55 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 165.55 (2).

SECTION 122. 165.55 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 123. 165.58 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 124. 165.59 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 125. 180.787 of the statutes is amended to read:

180.787 Survival of remedy after dissolution. The dissolution of a corporation shall not take away or impair any remedy available to or against such corporation, its directors, officers or shareholders, for any right or claim existing or any liability incurred, prior to such dissolution if action or other proceeding thereon is commenced within 2 years after the date of such dissolution, except that notice of an additional assessment under ch. 71 shall be given within the time prescribed under s. 71.11 (21). Any such action or proceeding by or against the corporation may be prosecuted or defended by the corporation in its corporate name, except that if an additional assessment is made under s. 71.11 (21n), such assessment shall be defended in the name of the person named in the matter. The shareholders, directors and officers ~~shall have power to~~ may take such corporate or other action as is appropriate to protect such remedy, right or claim. If such corporation was dissolved by the expiration of its period of duration, such corporation may amend its articles of incorporation at any time during such period of 2 years so as to extend its period of duration.

SECTION 125m. 200.26 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39, 98 and _____ (Senate Bill 17), laws of 1975, is repealed.

SECTION 126. 203.24 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

203.24 (5) Upon the completion of each adjustment, a report thereof shall be made and signed by each adjuster participating therein and by the insured or someone authorized thereto by ~~him~~ the insured, and shall be filed with the ~~state fire marshal~~ department of industry, labor and human relations and a duplicate thereof shall be filed with the chief of the fire department, if any, ~~provided that reports.~~ Reports of

adjustment under ~~subsection (15) of section s. 201.04 (15)~~ need not be filed unless the adjustment involves a fire loss, and then only as to such fire loss.

SECTION 126a. 204.31 (3) (am) 2 of the statutes, as created by chapter 98, laws of 1975, is repealed.

SECTION 126ag. 204.321 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 39, 98 and _____ (Senate Bill 17), laws of 1975, is repealed.

SECTION 126ar. 204.325 of the statutes, as created by chapter 98, laws of 1975, is repealed.

SECTION 126b. 227.01 (5) (w) of the statutes is created to read:

227.01 (5) (w) Establishes rental policies for state-owned housing approved by the joint committee on finance under ss. 13.101 (10) and 16.004 (8).

SECTION 126d. 231.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

231.02 (2) The authority shall appoint an executive director and associate executive director who shall not be members of the authority and who shall serve at the pleasure of the authority. They shall receive such compensation as the authority fixes, except that the compensation of any employe of the authority shall not exceed the maximum of the executive salary group range established under s. 20.923 (1) for positions assigned to executive salary group 3. The executive director or associate executive director or other person designated by resolution of the authority shall keep a record of the proceedings of the authority and shall be custodian of all books, documents and papers filed with the authority, the minute book or journal of the authority and its official seal. The executive director or associate executive director or other person may cause copies to be made of all minutes and other records and documents of the authority and may give certificates under the official seal of the authority to the effect that such copies are true copies, and all persons dealing with the authority may rely upon such certificates.

SECTION 126f. 234.02 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

234.02 (3) The authority shall elect a chairman and vice-chairman. The authority shall employ an executive director, legal and technical experts and such other officers, agents and employes, permanent and temporary, as it may require, and shall determine their qualifications, duties and compensation, all notwithstanding subch. II of ch. 16, except that s. 16.35 shall apply, and except that the compensation of any employe of the authority shall not exceed the maximum of the executive salary group range established under s. 20.923 (1) for positions assigned to executive salary group 3. The authority may delegate to its agents or employes any of its powers or duties.

SECTION 126m. 252.075 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

252.075 (1) POWERS. Retired supreme court justices and retired circuit judges serving temporarily as circuit judges or county judges at the request of the chief justice of the supreme court may exercise all of the jurisdiction of the circuit court or county court in which they serve.

SECTION 127. 252.075 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

252.075 (2) COMPENSATION. The retired justices and judges serving temporarily as circuit or county judges shall receive a per diem of ~~\$80 until June 30, 1973, \$85 until June 30, 1974, and \$90 thereafter~~ \$95 and while serving outside the county in which they reside shall also receive actual and necessary expenses incurred in the discharge of judicial duties. This per diem compensation is not subject to s. 41.11 (12) but ~~in no event shall~~ the combined amount of this compensation and any other judicial compensation together with retirement annuities under the Wisconsin retirement fund, the Milwaukee county retirement fund and other state, county, municipal, or other Wisconsin governmental retirement funds, social security or other

federal retirement funds received by him or her during any one calendar year shall not exceed compensation paid by the state and the counties to any circuit judge. This compensation shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.625 (1).

SECTION 127m. 252.076 of the statutes, as affected by supreme court order dated February 17, 1975, and effective January 1, 1976, is amended to read:

252.076 Retired judges; service and practice. A justice or judge retired under the provisions of Art. VII, Sec. 24, of the constitution, who shall serve temporarily as a circuit or county judge ~~pursuant to under~~ that section and s. 252.075, shall not appear as an attorney nor act of counsel in any contested matter in any court in the county in which he or she has so served for a period of one year after such service. Neither the act of serving as circuit or county judge in another county, nor the performance of conciliation or pretrial duties ~~pursuant to under~~ s. 807.09 shall affect his or her eligibility to engage in the practice of law.

SECTION 128. 253.195 of the statutes is amended to read:

253.195 Retired judges, service. Any person who has served 4 or more years as a county judge, and who was not defeated at the most recent time he or she sought reelection but is no longer a county judge, may serve temporarily on appointment by the chief justice of the supreme court or by any associate justice designated by the supreme court, acting through the administrative director of courts, as a judge of any circuit or county court. ~~He~~ Such person shall receive from the state a per diem of ~~\$80, until June 30, 1973, \$85 until June 30, 1974, and \$90 thereafter, \$95~~ for each day on which he or she actually serves and, while serving outside the county in which he or she resides, his or her actual and necessary expenses. This per diem compensation is not subject to s. 41.11 (12) but ~~in no event shall~~ the combined amount of this compensation and any other judicial compensation together with retirement annuities under the Wisconsin retirement fund, the Milwaukee county retirement fund and other state, county, municipal, or other Wisconsin governmental retirement fund, social security or other federal retirement funds received by him or her during any one calendar year shall not exceed compensation paid by the state and the counties to any circuit judge. This compensation shall be paid from the appropriations provided in s. 20.625 (1).

SECTION 128m. 255.25 of the statutes is amended to read:

255.25 Juror's fees and mileage. Every grand and petit juror summoned upon any venire shall receive an amount, not less than \$4 ~~nor more than \$16~~, as fixed by the county board, for each day's actual attendance upon any circuit or county court, and an amount determined by the county board for each mile actually traveled each day in going and returning by the most usual route; but shall be paid for no day when the court is not in session unless specially ordered by the presiding judge.

SECTION 129. 289.14 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 147, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

289.14 (1) All contracts with the state involving \$2,500 or more and all other contracts involving \$500 or more for the performance of labor or furnishing materials when the same pertains to any public improvement or public work shall contain a provision for the payment by the prime contractor of all claims for labor performed and materials furnished, used or consumed in making the public improvement or performing the public work, including, without limitation because of ~~specific~~ enumeration, fuel, lumber, building materials, machinery, vehicles, tractors, equipment, fixtures, apparatus, tools, appliances, supplies, electric energy, gasoline, motor oil, lubricating oil, greases, state imposed taxes, premiums for worker's compensation insurance and contributions for unemployment compensation. A contract shall not be made unless the prime contractor gives a bond issued by a surety

company licensed to do business in this state. The bond shall carry a penalty of not less than the contract price, and shall be conditioned for the faithful performance of the contract and the payment to every person entitled thereto of all the claims for labor performed and materials furnished under the contract, to be used or consumed in making the public improvement or performing the public work as provided in the contract and ~~as above specified this subsection.~~ The bond shall be approved in the case of the state by the state official authorized to enter such contract, of a county by its district attorney, of a city by its mayor, of a village by its president, of a town by its chairman, of a school district by the director or president and of any other public board or body by the presiding officer thereof. No assignment, modification or change of the contract, or change in the work covered thereby, or any extension of time for the completion of the contract ~~shall~~ may release the sureties on the bond. Neither the invitation for bids, nor the person having power to approve the prime contractor's bond, ~~shall~~ may require that such bond be furnished by a specified surety company or through a specified agent or broker.

SECTION 130. 289.15 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 147, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

289.15 (1) Any person furnishing labor or materials to be used or consumed in making public improvements or performing public work, including fuel, lumber, machinery, vehicles, tractors, equipment, fixtures, apparatus, tools, appliances, supplies, electrical energy, gasoline, motor oil, lubricating oil, greases, state imposed taxes, premiums for worker's compensation insurance and contributions for unemployment compensation, to any prime contractor, except in cities of the 1st class, shall have a lien on the money or bonds or warrants due or to become due the prime contractor therefor, if the lienor, before payment is made to the prime contractor, gives written notice to the debtor state, county, town or municipality of ~~his~~ the claim. The debtor shall withhold a sufficient amount to pay the claim and, when it is admitted by the prime contractor or established under sub. (3), shall pay the claim and charge it to the prime contractor. Any officer violating the duty hereby imposed shall be liable on his or her official bond to the claimant for the damages resulting from the violation. There shall be no preference between the lienors serving the notices.

SECTION 130c. 347.44 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 121, laws of 1975, is repealed and recreated to read:

347.44 (2) (a) School busses having a passenger carrying capacity of 7 or more but fewer than 10 persons, including the operator, as determined by dividing the total seating space measured in inches by 20, in use prior to January 1, 1976, may, but need not, comply with sub. (1).

(b) School busses having a passenger carrying capacity of fewer than 7 persons, including the operator, as determined by dividing the total seating space measured in inches by 20, may, but need not, comply with sub. (1).

(c) School busses under par. (b) shall at no time transport more passengers, including the operator, than the passenger carrying capacity of such vehicle.

SECTION 130cd. 350.12 (4) (a) 4 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

350.12 (4) (a) 4. Law enforcement aids to counties as appropriated under s. 20.370 (3) (vp). On or before February 1, a county may file with the department on forms prescribed by the department a detailed statement of the costs incurred by the county in the enforcement of this chapter in the preceding year. The department shall audit the statements and determine the county's net costs for enforcement of this chapter. The department shall compute the state aids on the basis of 100% of such net costs and shall pay such aids on or before April 1. If the state aids payable to counties

exceed the moneys available for such purpose, the department shall prorate the payments.

SECTION 130m. 442.04 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

442.04 (4) On and after ~~July 1, 1968, the effective date of this act (1975)~~ applicants sitting for the first time for the examination leading to the certificate to practice as a certified public accountant shall present to the examining board a bachelor's or higher degree, with a resident major in accounting, from a degree granting campus of the university of Wisconsin system or from another reputable institution approved and recognized by the examining board ~~as having standards of education and training substantially equivalent to those of the school of commerce of the university of Wisconsin for a resident major in accounting.~~ Before approving and recognizing any such institution, if sufficient information is not otherwise available, but without shifting the burden of proof from such institution to the examining board, the latter may conduct an investigation, and if it does so, shall hold a public hearing during the course thereof, with notice to all interested parties, at which any person may be heard. The examining board may designate an agent, including one or more examining board members, to conduct a portion or all of such investigation to determine the facts upon which the examining board shall make its findings. The findings and any action taken by the examining board with reference to approval or recognition of any such institution may be reviewed under ch. 227.

SECTION 130p. 450.077 of the statutes, as created by chapter _____ (Assembly Bill 469), laws of 1975, is amended to read:

450.077 Labeling of drugs and drug products. Every prescription drug or prescription drug product delivered to any pharmacist, medical practitioner or hospital shall bear a label containing the generic name of the drug or drug product, its brand name if any, and the name and address of the distributor and the manufacturer of the drug or drug product.

SECTION 131. 452.05 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

452.05 (2) (a) In determining competency, the examining board shall require proof that the applicant for a real estate broker's or salesman's license has a fair knowledge of the English language, a fair understanding of the general purposes and general legal effect of deeds, mortgages, land contracts of sale, leases, bills of sale, chattel mortgages, conditional sales contracts, the provisions of the bulk sales law and a general and fair understanding of the obligations between principal and agent, as well as of this chapter. An applicant receiving a failing grade, as established by rules of the board, on any examination given under this section shall be denied a license, but any applicant may review his or her examination results in a manner established by rules of the board.

SECTION 132. 452.11 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

452.11 (1) No order denying or revoking a license or registration shall be made until after a public hearing held before the examining board, or before any member thereof, or before any duly authorized ~~employe~~ person whose report the examining board has adopted. No public hearing may be required for an order denying a license to an applicant who receives a failing grade on an examination as established under s. 452.05 (2). The hearing shall be held in the county ~~wherein~~ where the applicant for a license or registration or the broker complained of or whose salesman is complained of has his or her place of business. If the broker, salesman or cemetery salesman is a nonresident the hearing shall be held at such place as the examining board designates.

SECTION 133. 459.05 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

459.05 Issuance of license. (intro.) The department shall register each applicant who passes an examination as provided in s. 459.06, and ~~upon the applicant's payment of \$75,~~ shall issue to the applicant a certificate of license signed by the secretary of regulation and licensing. The certificate of license shall be effective until January 30th of the year following the year in which it is issued.

SECTION 134. 459.06 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

459.06 (4) Applications for examinations shall be submitted to the examining board at least 10 days before the date set for the examination and shall be accompanied by an examination fee specified by the examining board, not to exceed \$100.

SECTION 134m. 499.02 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

499.02 (3) The authority shall elect a chairman and vice-chairman. The authority shall employ an executive director, legal, financial and technical experts and such other officers, agents and employes, permanent and temporary, as it may require, and shall determine their qualifications, duties and compensation, all notwithstanding subch. II of ch. 16 except that s. 16.35 shall apply, and except that the compensation of any employe of the authority shall not exceed the maximum of the executive salary group range established under s. 20.923 (1) for positions assigned to executive salary group 3. The authority may delegate to its agents or employes any of its powers or duties. The total number of employes of the authority shall not exceed 40 positions.

SECTION 134q. 613.02 (1) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter _____, laws of 1975 (Senate Bill 17), is amended to read:

613.02 (1) (b) Except as otherwise specifically provided, service insurance corporations organized or operating under this chapter are subject to ss. 204.315, 204.335, 209.04, and 610.43, ~~632.86, 632.87, 632.89 and 632.90~~ and chs. 207, 600, 601, 617, 620, 625, 632 and 645 and to no other insurance laws.

SECTION 134t. 632.89 (1) (a) and (d), (2) (a) (intro.), (b) and (d) and (3) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter _____, laws of 1975 (Senate Bill 17), are amended to read:

632.89 (1) (a) "Outpatient treatment facility" means a facility licensed or approved by the department of health and social services whose outpatient services meet the standards established in s. 51.42 (12) and which provides at a minimum those services, except inpatient services, enumerated in s. 51.42 (5) (b) to (d) for the prevention and amelioration of mental disabilities, including but not limited to mental and nervous disorders; alcoholism and drug abuse.

(d) "Outpatient ~~treatment~~ services" means services, medications, equipment and supplies performed or furnished by or under the supervision of or on referral from a physician at a hospital or outpatient treatment facility to a patient who is not a bed patient of the hospital or outpatient treatment facility.

(2) (a) (intro.) *Scope.* Each group disability policy, joint contract or contract providing hospital treatment coverage shall include coverage for:

(b) *Exclusions in coverage.* Except as provided in par. (c), coverages under ~~par. (a) and (d)~~ par. (a) and (d) may not be subject to exclusions or limitations which are not generally applicable to other conditions covered under the policy or contract.

(d) *Outpatient treatment.* Every contract or joint contract issued by an ~~organization and insurer subject to this section~~ providing coverage for outpatient treatment shall provide coverage for outpatient services for mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse including but not limited to partial hospitalization services, prescribed drugs and collateral interviews with patients' families, relating to diagnosed alcoholism, drug abuse, or mental and nervous disorders

of the patient, in an amount not less than the first \$500 in any 12-month period calendar year for any alcoholism or drug abuse services, or for outpatient services provided by or under contract for a board established under s. 51.42, and \$500 for any other outpatient services for mental and nervous disorders. ~~No contract or joint contract written in combination with major medical coverage shall be required to provide coverage under this paragraph for more than \$500 for any combination of disabilities required to be covered under this paragraph.~~ The department of health and social services may by rule promulgated under ch. 227 adjust this amount at 2-year intervals to reflect changes in the cost of medical care.

(3) (title) ~~ADDITIONAL REQUIRED COVERAGE FOR CORPORATIONS SUBJECT TO CH. 613. (intro.) Any corporation or other organization subject to ch. 613 is subject to sub. (2) and in addition its group disability policies, joint contracts or contracts which provide for hospital treatment or outpatient treatment shall provide:~~

SECTION 134w. 632.91 of the statutes is created to read:

632.91 Coverage of newborn infants. (1) No policy of disability insurance whether under subch. II of ch. 40, or otherwise, which provides coverage for a member of the insured's family may be issued unless it provides that benefits applicable for children shall be payable with respect to a newly born child of the insured from the moment of birth.

(2) Coverage for newly born children required under this section shall consider congenital defects and birth abnormalities as an injury or sickness under the policy and shall cover functional repair or restoration of any body part when necessary to achieve normal body functioning, but shall not cover cosmetic surgery performed only to improve appearance.

(3) If payment of a specific premium or subscription fee is required to provide coverage for a child, the policy may require that notification of the birth of a child and payment of the required premium or fees shall be furnished to the insurer within 60 days after the date of birth. The insurer may refuse to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period if such notification is not received, unless within one year after the birth of the child the insured makes all past-due payments and in addition pays interest on such payments at the rate of 5 1/2% per annum.

(4) If payment of a specific premium or subscription fee is not required to provide coverage for a child, the policy or contract may request notification of the birth of a child but may not deny or refuse to continue coverage if such notification is not furnished.

(5) This section applies to all policies issued or renewed after the effective date of this act (1975) and to all policies in existence on June 1, 1976. All policies issued or renewed after June 1, 1976 shall be amended to comply with the requirements of this section.

SECTION 135. 655.017 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 37 and 79, laws of 1975, is amended to read:

655.017 (title) Triennial training requirement. No medical or osteopathic physician ~~shall~~ may be afforded the protection provided under this chapter unless, in each 3rd year at the time of renewing a certificate of registration under s. 448.07, ~~he~~ has such physician presents to the medical examining board evidence of having completed at least 45 45 hours of continuing education in programs or courses of study approved by the medical examining board within the 3 calendar year years immediately preceding such application. The medical examining board shall notify the commissioner and the department of all physicians who have met the requirements of this section. The examining board may waive these requirements if it finds that

exceptional circumstances such as prolonged illness, disability or other similar circumstances have prevented a physician from meeting the requirements.

SECTION 136. 806.115 of the statutes is created to read:

806.115 Filing of duplicate copy of warrant. The department of revenue may file in any county a duplicate copy of a warrant filed under s. 71.11 (23) or 71.13 (3) and the clerk shall enter such duplicate copy on the delinquent income tax docket as provided in s. 806.11, and upon entry therein the duplicate copy shall have the same legal effect as the warrant filed under s. 71.13 (3).

SECTION 137. 806.13 of the statutes, as affected by the supreme court order dated February 17, 1975 and effective January 1, 1976, is amended to read:

806.13 Judgments docketed in other counties. When a judgment is docketed as provided in ss. 806.10, 806.12 and 806.24, or a warrant is docketed as provided in ~~ss. s.~~ 108.22 (2) ~~and 806.11~~, it may be docketed in like manner in any other county, upon filing with the clerk of court thereof a transcript from the original docket, certified to be a true copy therefrom by the clerk of the original court having custody thereof.

SECTION 138. **Authorized state building program changes.** In chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 715m, the following changes shall be made in the authorized state building program for 1975-77, and the appropriate totals in that SECTION shall be adjusted accordingly.

(1) In section 715m (1) (a), the following authorization shall be added to the university of Wisconsin system projects to be funded from residual general fund supported borrowing:

Projects to be financed by borrowing - residual general fund supported authority	
Madison field house update	<u>\$718,000</u>
Total residual general fund supported borrowing	\$718,000

(2) In section 715m (1) (a), the authorization for the Madison field house update project under the university of Wisconsin system projects funded by self-amortizing supported borrowing in the amount of \$718,000 is eliminated.

(2a) In section 715m (1) (a), the authorization for university of Wisconsin system projects financed by building trust funds is amended to read:

Projects financed by building trust funds	
System minor projects	7,346,000 <u>7,236,000</u>

(2b) In section 715m (1) (a), the following authorization shall be added to the university of Wisconsin system projects to be financed by building trust funds:

Projects financed by building trust funds	
McCardle cancer laboratory improvements (total project all funding sources \$506,700 including \$10,700 of unprogrammed surplus Building Trust Funds)	110,000

(2c) In section 715m (1) (a), the following authorization shall be added to the university of Wisconsin system projects to be financed by gifts, grants or other agency receipts.

McCardle cancer laboratory improvements (total project all funding sources \$506,700)	386,000
---	---------

(3) In section 715m (1) (b), the authorization under the department of health and social services projects financed by general fund supported borrowing for the three colonies intermediate care health facilities code compliance is amended to read:

Three colonies centers for the developmentally disabled intermediate care health facilities code compliance planning	\$ 225,000	<u>\$ 1,225,000</u>
---	-----------------------	---------------------

(4) In section 715m (1) (i), the following authority shall be added to the department of industry, labor and human relations for projects financed by gifts, grants or other agency receipts:

Projects financed by gifts, grants or other agency receipts.	
Ashland area job security district building	<u>\$ 425,000</u>
Total gifts, grants and agency receipts	<u>\$ 425,000</u>

(5) Section 715m (1) (m) is renumbered 715m (1) (n).

(6) Section 715m (1) (m) is created to read:

(1) (m) Department of business development Projects financed by segregated highway funds.	
LaCrosse Tourist Information Center (total project all funding sources \$821,300)	<u>\$96,400</u>
Total segregated highway funds	<u>\$96,400</u>
Projects financed by gifts, grants and agency receipts.	
LaCrosse Tourist Information Center (total project all funding sources \$821,300)	<u>724,900</u>
Total gifts, grants and agency receipts	<u>\$724,900</u>

SECTION 139. Chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 715m (8) is created to read:

(Chapter 39, laws of 1975) Section 715m (8) In addition to the enumerated authority under sub. (1) (b) for the 3 centers for the developmentally disabled intermediate care health facilities code compliance, the building commission is authorized to approve the use of not more than \$3,600,000 of general fund supported residual borrowing authority appropriated under section 20.866 (2) (v) of the statutes in order to comply with intermediate care health facility codes at the 3 centers for the developmentally disabled.

SECTION 140. Chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 718 (11) (b) is amended to read:

(Chapter 39, laws of 1975) Section 718 (11) (b) After affirmative action of the joint committee on finance, ~~\$853,700~~ up to \$400,000 shall be released for expenditure for development of a medicaid management information system. The department of administration and the current fiscal agents of the medical assistance program may present recommendations to the joint committee on finance, no later than ~~two~~ 2 months after the effective date of this act, for the purpose of analysis of requirements and capabilities for development and operation of the medicaid management information system. The joint committee on finance shall consider the above recommendations and may consider other approaches, including the advisability of directing the department to solicit bids from qualified third parties. Upon review of the recommendations, the joint committee on finance may approve a specific approach and authorize release of funds for development of a medicaid management information system. Funds provided for the development of the medicaid management information system may be carried over and expended in fiscal year 1976-77.

SECTION 141. Chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 718 (1), (2), (20) and (28) are repealed.

SECTION 141m. Chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 728 (4) is repealed.

SECTION 142. **Transitional provisions.** (1) DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION. All records associated with the functions formerly performed by the department of administration under section 16.295 of the statutes shall be transferred to the department of local affairs and development within one month after the effective date of this act.

SECTION 144. **Youthful offender disposition: conditions.** Disposition of youthful offenders shall be in accord with this SECTION effective July 1, 1976. Prior to July 1, 1976, disposition of youthful offenders shall be in accord with law existing prior to July 1, 1976. During a transition period from July 1, 1976, to June 30, 1977, the department may temporarily comingle youthful offenders and criminal offenders during the process of transfer of criminal offenders from the designated youthful offender institution to correctional institutions for criminal offenders and the phase-in of youthful offenders at the youthful offender institution. On or before July 1, 1977, all criminal offenders shall be removed from the designated youthful offender institution and entirely separated from youthful offenders.

SECTION 145. **University of Wisconsin system.** (1) ADDITIONAL ACADEMIC POSITIONS. (a) Beginning in 1976-77, 130 additional unclassified positions are authorized in the university of Wisconsin system. If the board of regents declares a state of financial emergency under Wis. Adm. Code UWS 5 in the university of Wisconsin system all faculty members shall retain their rights under Wis. Adm. Code UWS 5, however, no additional general purpose revenue may be provided to the university of Wisconsin system for termination year compensation for the first 130 positions terminated under Wis. Adm. Code UWS 5.

(b) These positions shall be allocated to meet specific problems in providing instruction and instructional support which have arisen because of workload increases and existing overloads at the campus level.

(c) From among the positions allocated to the university of Wisconsin-Madison, the university may allocate positions to the law school.

SECTION 145a. **Administration.** (1) STATE-OWNED STAFF HOUSING. The department of administration shall implement the plan for improving efficiency in the utilization of staff housing contained in the report submitted to the joint committee on finance on December 12, 1975, as required by chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 716 (5), as it relates to uniform policies for designation of categories of occupancy and for rental rates for state-owned staff housing to be effective for the period from July 1, 1976, to July 1, 1978.

(2) STUDY OF BUILDING CODE ENFORCEMENT. The department of administration, in cooperation with the departments of health and social services and industry, labor and human relations, shall examine building code enforcement activities. Such examination shall include, but is not limited by enumeration, identification of conflicting or overlapping provisions in administrative codes and statutes relating to buildings, including inspection provisions, plumbing, fire inspection and waste disposal systems. The department shall develop a plan of action for resolution of any such conflicts and for more timely approval of building plans, plumbing, fire inspection, and waste disposal systems. It shall be the intent of this study to facilitate the execution of state requirements in the construction of buildings. The findings of and recommendations resulting from the study shall be submitted to the joint committee on finance no later than September 1, 1976.

(3) STUDY OF UW SYSTEM ACADEMIC STAFF APPOINTMENTS. The director of the bureau of personnel in the department of administration shall review academic staff appointments in the university of Wisconsin system to determine if any of these

appointments should more appropriately be made in the classified service and if the university of Wisconsin system's procedures for classifying positions are consistent with the state's civil service classification system. The director shall submit the results of the review, including any recommendations, to the legislature by ~~January 10, 1977~~.

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 145c. Board of commissioners of public lands. (a) *Loans from trust funds.* Notwithstanding the treatment of section 25.01 (4) of the statutes by this act, loans sought by school districts, boards of education and municipalities shall be supplied so far as practicable before any other loan or investment authorized under section 25.01 of the statutes is made if applications for such loans have been approved and authorized under section 25.05 (2), (3) or (4) of the statutes prior to the effective date of this act.

SECTION 145d. Business development: Tourist information center construction. From the moneys available under section 20.135 (2) (q) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, the department may spend not more than \$28,600 in 1975-76 for the construction of a tourist information center near LaCrosse.

SECTION 145f. Additional employe 1976-77 pay plan increases. (1) **UW FACULTY AND ACADEMIC EMPLOYEES.** For fiscal year 1976-77 all faculty and academic staff employes under sections 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m) of the statutes, shall receive an across the board economic salary increase equal to one percent of base salary. This increase shall be in addition to any other compensation improvement for 1976-77 approved prior to February 1, 1976, by the joint committee on employment relations under section 16.086 (3) (e) of the statutes, and shall be paid from the appropriation under section 20.865 (1) ~~(c)~~ of the statutes.

Vetoed
in Part

(2) **NONREPRESENTED STATE EMPLOYEES.** For fiscal year 1976-77, all employes whose compensation is determined under s. 16.086 or 20.923 or who are otherwise eligible to receive a pay adjustment under s. 20.865 (1) (c), shall receive an across-the-board economic salary increase equal to one percent of the individual's base pay, except that employes under ss. 16.08 (2) (d) and 20.923 (5) and (6) (m) and ~~except that employes whose salaries are specified under s. 20.923 (2) and (3) shall not be eligible for the increase under this subsection.~~ The pay schedules established under ss. 16.086 and 20.923 shall also be increased by an equal amount. This increase shall be in addition to any other compensation improvement for 1976-77 approved ~~prior to February 1, 1976,~~ by the joint committee on employment relations prior to February 1, 1976, under s. 16.086 (3) (b) and shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.865 (1) ~~(c)~~.

Vetoed
in Part

SECTION 145h. Health and social services. (1) **AFDC PAYMENT STUDY.** The department of health and social services shall study and make recommendations to the joint committee on finance and the governor by July 1, 1976, or 30 days after the effective date of this act, whichever is later, regarding payment adjustments for those AFDC recipients who have no shelter costs. The "one-third reduction" policy utilized by the social security administration in administering the supplemental security income program shall specifically be considered by the department in formulating its recommendations.

(2) **MANAGEMENT STAFF.** The secretary may transfer ~~from existing funds and positions within the department of health and social services 10 positions and the funds to implement such transfers to the office of the secretary in order to accomplish reorganization of the department and to increase productivity.~~

Vetoed
in Part

(3) **FOSTER CARE.** The department of health and social services shall, ~~by September 1, 1976,~~ present to the legislature a report which reviews all foster care programs operated by its various divisions, county social service departments and other agencies receiving state support. This report shall include a review of means by which

Vetoed
in Part

children are placed in foster homes, levels and means of reimbursement of foster parents, training of foster parents, provision of insurance liability coverage for foster parents and other related matters. Based on this review, the department shall, by ~~January 1, 1977~~, present a report to the legislature which includes a plan for the development of a single statewide foster care system. This plan shall identify means of strengthening and stabilizing foster care throughout the state in general, and in the northwestern region of the state, in particular. **Vetoed in Part**

~~(4) PROGRAMS FOR CHILDREN. The department of health and social services shall by October 1, 1976, present to the legislature a report which identifies minimum and uniform standards for all programs in community-based facilities and residential treatment institutions which provide services to children. Based on the standards identified in this report, the department shall, by January 1, 1977, present a report to the legislature which includes a plan for the development of a coordinated system of community programs and services designed to prevent a child's unnecessary removal from home and unnecessary institutionalization and to promote a child's successful reintegration into the community following institutionalization. The department shall enlist the support of other state, local and private agencies in the development of this plan.~~ **Vetoed in Part**

~~(5) COORDINATOR OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES. The secretary shall designate an employe of the department as coordinator of children's services.~~

(6) JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL SYSTEM. The department of health and social services shall, by ~~September 1, 1977~~, present to the joint committee on finance a report which reviews the system by which services are currently provided to children who have been adjudicated delinquent or in need of supervision and which evaluates the role and effectiveness of the juvenile correctional subsystem as a component of this larger system of provision of services to such children. **Vetoed in Part**

(7) CHILD PLACEMENT STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES. The department of health and social services shall, by ~~January 1, 1977~~, present to the legislature a report which reviews current procedures by which all out-of-home placements of children are made. This report shall include consideration of the development of uniform standards and procedures for such placements, the feasibility of creating voluntary county placement boards charged with the responsibility of initially recommending such placements and the provision of hearings for children who have been recommended for placement in private facilities with secure arrangements. **Vetoed in Part**

(8) EDUCATIONAL SERVICES. The departments of health and social services and public instruction shall, by ~~September 1, 1976~~, present a report to the joint committee on finance which reviews the feasibility of local school districts providing educational services for children, who may be considered truants, drop-outs, disrupters and low achievers. **Vetoed in Part**

(9) ADDITIONAL URBAN CORRECTIONAL FACILITIES. Of the amount appropriated under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, \$250,000 in 1976-77 shall be withheld subject to the determination by the joint committee on finance of the actual realization of projected adult correctional institutional populations and of the need for opening one or more additional urban correctional facilities. **Vetoed in Part**

(10) MENDOTA MENTAL HEALTH INSTITUTE — FEMALE YOUTHFUL OFFENDER FACILITY. The department of health and social services shall designate a section of Mendota mental health institute to be a female youthful offender facility for fiscal year 1976-77.

(11) UNION GROVE CAMP. The correctional camp at Union Grove shall continue to be operated until June 30, 1976, at which time it shall be closed.

(12) MEDICAID MANAGEMENT STUDY. (a) The secretary of health and social services, with the advice of a 3-member medicaid management advisory council, shall investigate the nature and extent of management problems under medicaid; determine the degree and type of abuses in the program; make a thorough analysis of the causes of both management problems and abuses; and make comprehensive recommendations to the governor and the legislature for management improvements, and legislative changes or program alterations that the secretary determines are necessary. The council shall be appointed by the governor.

(b) All staff for the study hired by the secretary shall be in the unclassified civil service.. Cost of the study shall be paid from the appropriations under section 20.435 (8) (b) and (p) of the statutes.

Vetoed in Part (c) The secretary shall report the findings and recommendations of the study to the governor and the legislature prior to May 1, 1977. The study ~~shall~~ terminate on May 1, 1977.

(13) FUEL AND UTILITY PAYMENT STUDY. The governor shall appoint a committee to study and evaluate fuel and utility payment problems and potential long-range options and solutions. The committee shall report its findings to the governor and the legislature by December 1, 1976. Members of the committee shall include, but not be limited to, representatives from the department of health and social services, department of local affairs and development, emergency energy office, public service commission, county welfare directors, public assistance organizations, utility companies and community action agencies.

(14) NURSING HOME RESIDENTS PERSONAL ALLOWANCES. The department of health and social services shall conduct a study of the feasibility of granting stratified personal allowances to nursing home residents under the medicaid program. Such study shall include, but not be limited to: the development of data as to whether residents could be categorized in terms of their ability to benefit from varied allowance levels; the examination of procedures and cost of such procedures necessary to administer a stratified allowance system; and the exploration of questions of legality and federal restrictions on a system of multiple allowance levels. The department shall report its findings to the Governor, the joint committee on finance, the assembly committee on health and social services, and the senate committee on agriculture, human services, labor and taxation no later than December 1, 1976.

Partial Veto Overruled (15) MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES — LONG-TERM CARE. When a s. 51.42 board's cost of care for the long-term mentally ill in fiscal year 1976-77 exceeds 5% of the board's calendar year 1976 expenditures from general purpose revenue for all programs except those for developmental disabilities, the department shall fund, within the limits of the amount provided under section 150 (14) (du) of this act, 75% of such costs beyond the first 5% of total mental health costs, not including costs for developmental disabilities, for care of the long-term mentally ill. The number of long-term mentally ill in any board's jurisdiction shall be determined by the department of health and social services.

(16) LONG-TERM MENTAL ILLNESS. In an effort to stimulate the development of appropriate community-based treatment programs for individuals suffering from long-term or recurrent mental illness, the department of health and social services shall:

(a) By March 1, 1977, develop a model contract or procedure for use between boards designed to assure both clinical safeguards and continued fiscal liability for patients placed by a board in facilities or programs physically located in the jurisdiction of another board.

(b) By July 1, 1977, review the rules under section 146.30 of the statutes and recommend modifications, where necessary.

SECTION 145j. Legislature. (1) **PROCEDURE IN THE EVENT OF REDUCED FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING FUNDS.** (a) If the state is to receive less federal revenue sharing funds during the first 2 quarters of calendar year 1977, than the \$28,322,700 projected for the first 2 quarters of calendar year 1977, the governor shall submit to the joint committee on finance, for its approval, a recommendation to adjust the appropriations under chapter 20 of the statutes to account for such reduction of federal revenue sharing funds for 1976-77. Upon receipt of such recommendation the committee shall meet and consider the recommendation in accordance with the procedures specified under section 13.101 (6) of the statutes. Any recommendation approved under this provision shall be implemented by the department of administration under section 16.50 (2) of the statutes.

(b) If the status of federal revenue sharing funds is not known by the last working day in October 1976, the governor, with the approval of the joint committee on finance, may extend the date of certification contained within section 120.12 (3) of the statutes to November 15 for 1976.

SECTION 145L. Public instruction. (1) **1975-76 COST CONTROL ADJUSTMENT.** In determining its 1975-76 allowable shared cost budget under subchapter IV of chapter 121 of the statutes, any school district which experienced an employe work stoppage during the 1974-75 school year may appeal to the state superintendent to have its 1974-75 per pupil shared cost adjusted for salary amounts budgeted but not paid because of the employe work stoppage. Any decision by the state superintendent shall be based upon clear, convincing and substantial evidence.

(2) **HANDICAPPED AID ATTORNEY.** The department of public instruction shall convert an existing vacant position from within any of the department's divisions except the division of financial aids or the division for handicapped children to an attorney position to work in the area of implementation of special education programs under subchapter IV of chapter 115 of the statutes.

SECTION 145m. Medical college of Wisconsin, inc. (1) **RESIDENT TUITION.** The tuition charge by the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. in 1976-77 to Wisconsin residents in their first and second year of undergraduate medical education shall be \$750 less than the tuition set for nonresident medical students. A student's qualification as a resident of this state shall be determined by the higher educational aids board using the same procedure established under section 39.46 (4) of the statutes, so far as applicable.

SECTION 145q. Transportation. (1) **COMPUTERIZED DECENTRALIZED REGISTRATION FEASIBILITY STUDY.** The department of transportation shall conduct a study of and make recommendations regarding various alternative methods of preparing and issuing vehicle titles and registrations including the feasibility of utilizing remote computer systems. The report, including the findings of the study and specific recommendations, shall be submitted to the legislature not later than September 1, 1976.

SECTION 145r. Referendum directed on proposed constitutional amendment. In order to prescribe the time and manner to submit to the people the proposed amendment to sections 7 (2) (a) and 10 of the article VIII of the constitution, relating to internal improvements for transportation facilities, as agreed to by a majority of the members elected to each of the 2 houses of the 1973 legislature (1973 Assembly Joint Resolution 133, Enrolled 1973 Joint Resolution 37) and as agreed to by a majority of the members elected to each of the 2 houses of the 1975 legislature (1975 Assembly Joint Resolution 2, Enrolled 1975 Joint Resolution 2), the legislature directs that the said amendment to the constitution be resubmitted to a vote of the people at the general election to be held in November 1976; and, further directs that

the question of the ratification of the foregoing amendment be again stated on the ballot, as it was stated in the 1975 spring election, as follows:

“Shall article VIII, section 7 (2) (a) and section 10 of the constitution be amended to broaden the existing authority under which state funds may be appropriated for highways, for airports and for port facilities to apply, generally, to the development, improvement and construction of transportation facilities?”

The legislature further directs that if a majority of the voters voting thereon approve the foregoing question, the amendment to section 7 (2) (a) of article VIII shall be deemed an amendment of section 7 (2) (a) 1 as provided by the final resolve of 1975 Assembly Joint Resolution 1 (1975 Enrolled Joint Resolution 3) which was ratified by the people in the 1975 spring election, and the amendment of section 10 of article VIII shall be incorporated into the constitution as shown by 1975 Assembly Joint Resolution 2 (1975 Enrolled Joint Resolution 2).

SECTION 145x. Shared taxes. (1) SPECIAL DISTRIBUTION OF SHARED TAXES.

(a) The shared tax portion of taxes collected in 1975 under chapter 76 of the statutes and received by the state treasurer on or before November 12, 1975, which portion was not included in the 1975 distribution of shared taxes under section 79.03 of the statutes, shall be distributed by the department of administration to municipalities and counties of this state as a special distribution of shared taxes within 30 days after the effective date of this act, upon certification by the department of revenue of the amount, if any, to be paid to each municipality and county, as provided in par. (b). Such distribution shall be included as part of 1975 shared taxes for computing future shared tax payments.

(b) The shared tax portion of taxes referred to in par. (a) shall be added to the amount in the shared tax account under section 79.01 of the statutes which was distributed in 1975 under subchapter I of chapter 79 of the statutes. The resulting total amount shall be allocated by the department of revenue to municipalities and counties pursuant to the method prescribed in subchapter I of chapter 79 of the statutes. To the extent that such amount allocated to each municipality and county exceeds the amount distributed to each of them in 1975 under subchapter I of chapter 79 of the statutes, such excess shall be certified by the department of revenue as the amount each municipality and county is entitled to under the special distribution provided by par. (a). To the extent such allocation reduces the supplement under section 79.06 of the statutes, such reduction shall revert to the state general fund.

(c) The 1976 shared tax supplement, provided for in section 20.835 (1) (aa) of the statutes, shall not be affected by the amount of the special distribution provided by this act.

SECTION 145z. Veterans affairs. (1) ALCOHOL REPORT. The department of veterans affairs shall submit a report to the joint committee on finance not later than December 1, 1976, concerning all aspects of the alcohol treatment program at the Wisconsin veterans home.

(2) SELF-AMORTIZING MORTGAGE LOANS. The department of veterans affairs may commit to making mortgage loans and disburse such loan funds under section 45.79 of the statutes in an amount not to exceed \$340,000,000 through December 31, 1976. Thereafter, loan commitments and disbursements under section 45.79 of the statutes may not exceed the amount authorized in section 20.866 (2) (zn) of the statutes.

SECTION 145za. Victims of crime compensation. If 1975 Senate Bill 233 is enacted, section 949.03 (1) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter _____, laws of 1975 (Senate Bill 139), is amended by substituting “940.225 (1) to (3)” for “944.01, 944.02, 944.10, 944.11”.

SECTION 146. Cross reference changes. In the sections listed below in column A, the cross references shown in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

<u>A</u> Statute Section	<u>B</u> Old Cross Reference	<u>C</u> New Cross Reference
49.52	20.435 (4) (pm)	20.435 (4) (kk)
86.32	20.395 (1) (qa)	20.395 (1) (qf)
185.981 (6), as affected by chapter 98, laws of 1975	204.325	632.91
185.983 (1) (intro.), as affected by chap- ter 98, laws of 1975	204.325	632.91

SECTION 146m. Name changes. (14) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. (a) *Taycheedah correctional institution.* Wherever the term "Wisconsin home for women" appears in the following sections of the statutes, the term "Taycheedah correctional institution" is substituted: 46.22 (5) (am), 46.36, 53.06 and 973.01 (3).

SECTION 147. Program responsibilities. (17) INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS. (a) *Fire marshal.* In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of industry, labor and human relations under section 15.221 (intro.) of the statutes, reference to section "203.24 (5)" is inserted.

(22) LOCAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT. (a) *County civil service system.* In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of local affairs and development under section 15.281 of the statutes, reference to section "59.07 (20)" is inserted.

SECTION 148m. Reconciliation clause. If 1975 Senate Bill 642 becomes law, either before or after the effective date of this act, the treatment of section 613.02 (1) (b) of the statutes by that act shall be valid and the treatment of such section by this act shall be void.

SECTION 150. Appropriation changes. (1) ADMINISTRATION. (a) *Special and executive committees.* The appropriation under section 20.505 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$100,000 in 1975-76 as reimbursement for expenses of the commission on state-local relations and financing policy.

(3) AGRICULTURE. (a) *Grade A milk inspection.* The appropriation under section 20.115 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$338,200 in 1976-77 to provide funding for the 22 additional positions and related expenses necessary to accommodate the workload increase caused by Chicago's probable termination of its milk inspection program. The funding and positions are contingent upon termination by the Chicago board of health of their grade A milk inspection program and subsequent approval by the department of administration releasing the funding and approving the positions needed.

(5) BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT. (a) *Tourist information centers.* The appropriation under section 20.135 (2) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$21,900 in 1976-77 to provide additional funding for operation of tourist information centers.

(9) ELECTIONS BOARD. (a) *Administration of elections.* The appropriation under section 20.510 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$35,800 in 1976-77 to provide increased funding for the general program operations of the elections board.

(13) EXECUTIVE OFFICE. (a) *Council on criminal justice matching funds.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.525 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.525 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$46,400 in 1976-77 to provide state matching funds for additional federal funds.

(14) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. (am) *Nursing home enforcement legal services.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$25,000 in 1976-77 for one attorney and a half-time clerical position for the nursing home enforcement program.

(b) *Public health services — tuberculosis aids.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$70,000 in 1976-77 due to a reestimate of expenditures for tuberculosis aids.

(bm) *Public health services — emergency medical services.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$17,500 from 1975-76 to 1976-77 for one additional position for emergency medical services activities.

(bs) *Public health services — emergency medical services.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$20,000 in 1975-76 to reduce funding for emergency medical services.

(c) *Public health services — long-term care information system.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$29,500 in 1976-77 for one additional position for the development and operation of a computerized long-term care information system.

(d) *Mental health services — aids for community mental health services.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$1,206,700 in 1975-76 and increased by \$1,206,700 in 1976-77 to reflect actual allocations to community mental health boards.

(dm) *Mental health services — central administration.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,800 in 1976-77 to provide one position to inspect and certify community programs.

**Vetoed
in Part** (dc) ~~*Mental health services — alternate placements.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$25,000 in 1976-77 to fund alternate placements of individuals previously residing in nursing homes.~~

(du) *Mental health services — long term care.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$2,400,000 in 1976-77 to fund programs for the treatment of the long-term mentally ill.

(e) *Mental health services — increased costs of food.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$138,700 in 1976-77 for increased costs of food at state mental health institutions.

(ef) *Mental health services — Wisconsin treatment institution.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$489,900 in 1976-77 for the operations of the Wisconsin treatment institution at central state hospital.

(eu) *Mental health services — repair and maintenance.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (aa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$13,000 in 1976-77 for the repair and maintenance of facilities associated with the Wisconsin treatment institution.

(f) *Corrections — field services caseload adjustment.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$657,700 in 1976-77 to delete 51 positions in the bureau of probation and parole to reflect lower than expected field services caseload.

(fm) *Corrections — increased costs of food.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$250,500 in 1976-77 for increased costs of food at state prisons.

(g) *Corrections — increased population variable costs in state prisons.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$436,400 in 1976-77 for population variable costs associated with increased populations in the state prisons.

(gm) *Corrections — operation of the dormitory at the Waupun state prison.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$54,400 in 1976-77 to fund 18 positions and reduce overtime staffing for operation of the dormitory at the Waupun state prison.

(hm) *Corrections — adult basic education program at the Waupun state prison.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$84,000 in 1976-77 to provide 2 positions and equipment for the establishment of an adult basic education program at the Waupun state prison.

(i) *Corrections — increased funding of programs authorized in chapter 39, laws of 1975.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$251,200 in 1976-77 to provide full funding for corrections programs authorized in chapter 39, laws of 1975.

(im) *Corrections — state matching for federal funds.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$31,900 in 1976-77 to provide state matching funds for available federal law enforcement assistance administration funds.

(jf) *Corrections — vacant positions.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$25,800 in 1976-77 for the elimination of 2 vacant positions in the administrator's office.

(jm) *Corrections — additional space requirements.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$432,500 in 1976-77 for the creation of additional spaces associated with increased adult populations in the state prisons.

(ju) *Corrections — repair and maintenance.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (aa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,500 in 1976-77 for the repair and maintenance of additional spaces associated with increased adult populations in the state prisons.

(jw) *Corrections — transfer of funds.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$217,500 in 1975-76 and increased by \$217,500 in 1976-77 to create additional adult correctional institution spaces.

(k) *Family services — social services information system.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$37,000 in 1976-77 for 2 additional positions for the development and operation of a computerized information system for social services under Title XX of the social security act.

(km) *Family services — computer reporting network.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$39,500 in 1976-77 for 3 additional positions for the development and operation of the computer reporting network.

(ko) *Family services — food stamp program.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$42,200

in 1976-77 for one existing and one additional position for the coordination and management of the food stamp program.

**Vetoed
in Part** (ks) *Family services — generic drug pricing.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$30,000 for 1.5 additional ~~limited term~~ positions for the implementation of a generic drug pricing program. ~~These funds shall be placed in unallotted reserve for release upon enactment of chapter (1975 Assembly Bill 469), laws of 1975.~~

(m) *Family services — computer reporting network.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (am) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$62,400 in 1976-77 to reflect alternate funding in other appropriations.

(n) *Family services — medical assistance quality control.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$81,400 in 1976-77 for 6 positions for the quality control functions under the Title XIX program.

(nm) *Family services — alternate placements.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dh) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$113,900 in 1976-77 for the purpose of funding alternate placements of individuals previously in nursing homes.

(om) *Family services — postage rate increase.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,300 in 1976-77 for postage rate increases.

(q) *Services to the aged — continued staffing level.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (6) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$2,000 in 1976-77 to provide continuation of staff necessary for the administration of the older Americans act title III programs.

(r) *Health policy and planning — emergency medical services policy coordination and plan development.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$20,000 in 1976-77 for one position for emergency medical services policy coordination, staffing the emergency medical services committee of the health policy council, plan development and pursuit of federal funds.

(rm) *Health policy and planning — health data coordination committee expenses.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.440 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$2,000 in 1976-77 for expenses of the health data coordination committee of the health policy council.

(s) *Health policy and planning — prospective rate determination standards development.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.440 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, \$39,500 in 1976-77 for 2.5 positions and the appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,000 in 1976-77 for prospective rate review standards development.

(sm) *Health policy and planning — certificate of needs.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$28,300 in 1976-77 for 2.5 certificate of need positions.

(t) *General administration — executive assistant and legislative liaison.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$78,700 in 1976-77 to provide continued funding in 1976-77 for

an unclassified executive assistant position and new funding in 1976-77 for an additional position for liaison with the state legislature.

(tm) *General administration — social services information system.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$10,000 in 1976-77 for 3 positions for the development and operation of a computerized information system for social services under Title XX of the social security act.

(u) *General administration — long-term care information system.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$120,600 in 1976-77 for 3 positions for the development and operation of a computerized long-term care information system.

(um) *General administration — computer reporting network.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$333,800 in 1976-77 for 17 positions for the development and operation of the computer reporting network.

(ut) *General administration — computer reporting network.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$400,000 from 1975-76 to 1976-77 for the development and operation of the computer reporting network.

(v) *General administration — health care coordinator position.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$33,500 in 1976-77 for 9 months' funding for one physician position to administer a central office of health care services to be located within the office of the secretary of health and social services. This position shall be responsible for the administration and coordination of all health care services, including mental health care, in the state correctional institutions.

Vetoed
in Part

(15) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD. (a) *Handicapped aids.* The appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (fe) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$17,500 in 1975-76 and by \$12,300 in 1976-77 to reflect revised estimates as to the need for aid for visually handicapped, deaf and hard of hearing students.

(b) *Inflationary adjustment.* The appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (fe) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$62,500 in 1976-77 to reflect revised estimates as to the impact of inflation on student budgets.

(16) HISTORICAL SOCIETY. (a) *Electricity.* The appropriation under section 20.245 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$24,000 in 1975-76 and is decreased by \$24,000 in 1976-77 to reflect revised needs for 1975-76 and to reflect deletion of the separate electricity funding for the Madison facilities from general program operations in 1976-77. If 1975-76 actual electricity costs are less than \$48,000, the difference between the actual costs and \$48,000 shall lapse to the general fund.

(b) *Old world Wisconsin.* The appropriation under section 20.245 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$29,400 in 1975-76 and by \$50,200 in 1976-77 to provide for 4 additional positions and associated costs for security and fire protection for the old world Wisconsin historical site. The amount provided for 1976-77 shall be repaid to the general fund by December 1, 1977.

(17) INDUSTRY, LABOR, AND HUMAN RELATIONS. (a) *Fire loss statistics.* The appropriation in section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$5,800 in 1976-77 for .3 positions to transfer fire loss statistics reporting from the department of justice to the department of industry, labor and human relations.

(b) *Inflationary costs.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$56,300 in 1976-77 to provide funds for inflationary cost increases.

(d) *Physically handicapped safety.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$18,800 in 1976-77 to provide funds for one position for the plan review activity to handle increased workload due to additional code requirements related to the physically handicapped.

(e) *Worker's compensation fees.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$5,700 in 1976-77 to fund one-half position for administrative duties related to the collection of fees from insurance companies for worker's compensation administrative code purposes.

(f) *Fees from government agencies.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$12,600 in 1976-77 for one position for collection of fees from government agencies for the services of the safety and buildings division.

(18) INSURANCE. (a) *Administration of state property insurance fund.* The appropriation under section 20.145 (3) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$4,300 in 1975-76 and \$7,800 in 1976-77 to provide funding for the pay plan increases for the 1975-77 biennium.

(b) *Administration of state life insurance fund.* The appropriation under section 20.145 (4) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$3,000 in 1975-76 and \$5,600 in 1976-77 to provide funding for the pay plan increases for the 1975-77 biennium.

(20) JUSTICE. (a) *Turnover restoration.* The appropriation under section 20.455 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$43,800 in 1976-77, and section 20.455 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$35,100 in 1976-77 to reduce the personnel turnover factor to 1.5% in the legal services and the criminal investigation divisions.

(c) *Fire loss statistics transfer.* The appropriation under section 20.455 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$5,800 in 1976-77 to reflect the transfer of the responsibility for the collection of fire loss information from the department of justice to the department of industry, labor and human relations.

(d) *Elimination of bonding requirement.* The appropriation under section 20.455 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$600 in 1976-77 as a result of eliminating the bonding requirement for the state fire marshal.

(21) LEGISLATURE. (a) *Revisor of statutes.* The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$2,400 in 1976-77 to provide funding for office supplies, equipment and services for the revisor of statutes.

(b) *Legislative reference bureau.* The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$3,500 in 1976-77 to provide funding for remodeling of the microfilm vault for the legislative reference bureau.

(c) *Legislative fiscal bureau.* The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$33,800 in 1976-77 to provide funding for 2 unclassified positions in the legislative fiscal bureau to perform duties presently provided by limited-term employes and by one position funded by federal funds in 1975-76.

(d) *Legislative audit bureau.* The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$177,300 in 1976-77 of

which \$87,300 is for 5 auditor positions and 1 clerical position, \$15,000 is for consultant services and \$75,000 is for audits as stipulated in section 46.21 (10) of the statutes.

(22) LOCAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT. (a) *Transfer of contract services function.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.545 (4) (a), as affected by the laws of 1975, \$43,500 in 1976-77 to provide funding for 2 positions for contract services activities.

(am) *Winterization matching funds.* The appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$151,000 on the effective date of this act to reflect the reduction in state matching funds for federal winterization programs.

(b) *Transfer of contract services function.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.545 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.545 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$12,200 in 1976-77 to provide funding for one position for contract services activities.

(c) *Miscellaneous personnel transfers.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.545 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$44,600 in 1976-77 and from the appropriation under section 20.545 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$4,200 in 1976-77 to the appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (a) of the statutes in 1976-77 to provide funding for positions transferred among the divisions of state-local affairs, housing and administrative services.

(d) *Replacement of fleet cars.* The appropriation under section 20.545 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is reduced by \$12,500 in 1975-76 and is increased by \$12,500 in 1976-77 to provide for the replacement of state cars in 1976-77 which had been scheduled to be replaced in 1975-76.

(23) MEDICAL COLLEGE OF WISCONSIN. (a) *Foreign medical student transfer program.* The appropriation under section 20.250 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$75,000 in 1976-77 to provide funding for the development and implementation of a program in the medical college of Wisconsin, inc., involving the transfer of residents of this state from foreign medical schools after their second year of study or involving a year of clerkship following their graduation from a foreign medical school.

Partial
Veto
Overruled

(24) MILITARY AFFAIRS. (a) *National guard operations.* The appropriation under section 20.465 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$24,500 in 1976-77 to provide increased funding for the general program operations of the Wisconsin national guard due to a change in state-federal matching ratios for the air national guard and funds for utilization of a complex at Mendota mental health institute by the army national guard.

(b) *State service flags.* The appropriation under section 20.465 (1) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$200 in 1976-77 to provide increased funding for the purchase of state service flags.

(c) *Fuel and utilities.* The appropriation under section 20.465 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$128,600 in 1976-77 to reflect the payment of utilities costs under a sum sufficient appropriation.

(25) MINNESOTA-WISCONSIN BOUNDARY AREA COMMISSION. (a) *Commission operations.* The appropriation under section 20.315 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$14,600 in 1976-77 to provide funds for operating expenses of the commission.

(26) NATURAL RESOURCES. (a) *Youth camp.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is decreased by \$200 in 1975-76 to reduce funding for youth camps.

(am) *Park operations.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$23,100 in 1976-77 to provide funds to operate new park properties.

(b) *Land acquisition.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$2,900,000 in 1976-77 to provide funds for fish, wildlife and forestry land acquisition.

(c) *Forest tax unit.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$10,000 in 1976-77 to provide for limited-term employe assistance in the forest tax unit to handle increased workload.

(d) *Truck purchases.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$31,000 in 1976-77 for the purchase of trucks to be used in the forest management program.

(e) *Laboratory supplies.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$15,000 in 1976-77 to provide for laboratory supplies.

(f) *Information specialist.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$10,800 in 1976-77 to provide funding for one position at the southeast district office.

(g) *Milwaukee office rent correction.* There is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, from the appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, \$33,300 in 1976-77 and there is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, from the appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, \$17,000 in 1976-77 to correct the source of funding for rent payments at the Milwaukee district office.

(h) *Ernie Swift youth camp conversion.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$40,000 in 1976-77 for the conversion of the Ernie Swift youth camp to a coeducational facility.

(i) *Youth camp operations.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,000 in 1975-76 and by \$52,600 in 1976-77 to provide funds for required wage increases for counselors and campers in the youth camp program.

(j) *Mackenzie center operations.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$10,000 in 1976-77 to provide for operating expenses at the Mackenzie environmental center.

(k) *Mackenzie center building repairs.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$32,000 in 1976-77 to provide funds for the repair of buildings and animal displays at the old Mackenzie center complex.

(m) *Engineering draftsman.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$12,600 in 1976-77 for one draftsman position in the bureau of engineering for additional lake mapping.

(n) *License account audits.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$27,100 in 1976-77

to provide for one position and limited-term employe assistance in auditing license accounts.

(o) *Office services funding.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$30,000 in 1976-77 to continue funding granted by the joint committee on finance for 3 positions in the bureau of office services.

(p) *Repairs and maintenance.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (v) of the statutes, as created by this act, \$70,000 in 1976-77 to consolidate existing and newly authorized moneys for repairs and maintenance of district and area structures and buildings.

(q) *Native American coordinator.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$25,800 in 1976-77 to provide for the position of native American coordinator.

(r) *Solid waste travel.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$10,000 in 1976-77 to provide for additional travel funds for the solid waste program.

(s) *Kinnickinnic watershed study.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$18,000 in 1976-77 and the appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$18,000 in 1976-77 to provide state matching funds for the Kinnickinnic watershed study.

(t) *Fox Lake aerator.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$9,000 in 1976-77 for the repair and maintenance of the Fox Lake aerator.

(v) *Inflationary cost increases.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by ~~\$40,000 in 1975-76~~ and \$115,100 in 1976-77 for inflationary cost increases. The appropriation under section 20.370 (3) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by ~~\$25,900 in 1975-76~~ and \$60,100 in 1976-77 for inflationary cost increases. The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by ~~\$16,000 in 1975-76~~ and \$40,100 in 1976-77 for inflationary cost increases. The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by ~~\$7,500 in 1975-76~~ and \$48,200 in 1976-77 for inflationary cost increases.

Vetoed
in Part

(27) PUBLIC INSTRUCTION (c) *Agency school committee supplement.* There is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, in 1975-76, from the appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (a) of the statutes for 1975-76, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$22,700 to provide a supplement for the 1974-75 overrun in agency school committee expenses as approved by the joint committee on finance in October, 1975.

(d) *Residential schools.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$97,000 in 1976-77 to reflect the addition of 6.5 child care counselors and 3.0 support personnel for the residential schools.

(e) *Handicapped aids.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, increased by \$7,751,300 in 1976-77 to reflect increased program costs.

(30) REVENUE. (a) *Levy limits.* There is transferred \$30,300 in 1975-76 from the appropriation under section 20.566 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of

1975, to the appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes in 1976-77, as affected by the laws of 1975, and, in addition, the appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$16,800 in 1976-77 to fund 3 positions to administer the levy limits program.

(b) *Tax incremental financing.* There is transferred \$44,000 in 1975-76 from the appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, in 1976-77 to fund 3 positions for the administration of the tax incremental finance program.

(bp) *Tax incremental financing.* There is transferred \$6,000 in 1975-76 from the appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.566 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, in 1976-77 for the administration of the tax incremental finance program.

(c) *Equalization.* The appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$144,500 in 1976-77 to fully fund 9 positions, authorized prior to adoption of this act for the equalization program.

(d) *Postage.* There is transferred \$112,700 in 1975-76 and \$60,000 in 1976-77 from the appropriation under section 20.566 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, to the appropriation under section 20.566 (3) (a) of the statutes in 1976-77, as affected by the laws of 1975, to meet the increased cost of postage.

(e) *Postage.* The appropriation under section 20.566 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$22,300 in 1976-77 to meet the increased cost of postage.

(32) SECRETARY OF STATE. (a) *Inflationary cost increases.* The appropriation under section 20.575 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$7,300 in 1976-77 to provide funding for inflationary cost increases for the office of the secretary of state.

(b) *Transfers for inflationary cost increases and service contract fees.* There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.575 (1) (a) of the statutes in 1975-76 \$7,200 to the appropriation under section 20.575 (1) (a) of the statutes in 1976-77 for funding of service contract fees, miscellaneous inflationary cost increases and a one-time purchase of microfilm equipment from savings in 1975-76.

(33) SECURITIES. (a) *Securities regulation auditor.* The appropriation under section 20.185 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,300 in 1976-77 to provide funding for an auditor and related expenses necessary for the regulation of securities and franchise investments.

(34) TRANSPORTATION. (a) *Increased postal costs.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (2) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$375,000 in 1976-77 to provide funding for increased postal costs in the division of motor vehicles.

(ab) *Reimbursement of counties providing registration services.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (2) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$13,500 in 1975-76 and by \$27,000 in 1976-77 to reimburse counties providing registration services.

(b) *Vocational, technical and adult education driver training aids.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (1) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$77,500 in 1975-76 which amount shall be allocated to the appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (u) of the statutes, for payments by the board on vocational, technical and adult education for driver training education to provide for

payments that were not made under section 20.292 (1) (u) of the statutes in 1974-75 because of an accounting error.

(c) *Reallocation of driver licensing position.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (2) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$22,400 for .7 positions in 1976-77 to eliminate plans to consolidate drivers' licensing examination facilities in the Waupaca area and is increased by \$22,400 for .7 positions in 1976-77 to provide expanded drivers' licensing examination facilities for Stevens Point.

(d) *Urban mass transit assistance capital grant program.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (7) (ua) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$14,600 in 1976-77 to provide funding for a position to handle increased workload in the urban mass transit assistance capital grant program.

(35) TREASURER. (a) *Purchase of equipment.* The appropriation under section 20.585 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$17,000 in 1976-77 to provide for purchase of equipment for the office of the state treasurer.

(36) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM. (a) *Additional work study matching funds.* There is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes from the appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (ab) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$539,000 in 1976-77 to provide for additional work study state matching funds.

(b) *Public patients appropriation.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$300,000 in 1975-76 and \$500,000 in 1976-77 to reflect a revised estimate of the public patient costs.

(c) *Family medicine and practice.* 1. The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (fc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$464,800 in 1976-77 to reflect continuation of 1975-76 funding levels and to support the completion of the Northeast Clinic in Madison and to initiate the family practice program at Waukesha.

2. In addition to subd. 1, there is transferred to the 1976-77 appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (fc) of the statutes from the appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, \$70,000 from the amounts appropriated for 1975-76 and \$70,000 from the amounts appropriated for 1976-77 for student minimum wage adjustments to support completion of the Northeast Clinic in Madison and to initiate the family practice program at Waukesha.

~~(d) *Encephalitis surveillance.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$76,500 in 1976-77 to fund 4 additional positions at the university of Wisconsin medical school to conduct encephalitis surveillance. Such funds shall be released only if the secretary of administration determines that federal funding for this program is unavailable.~~

Vetoed
in Part

(e) *Foreign medical student transfer program.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$29,200 in 1975-76 and increased by \$70,800 in 1976-77 to provide funding for the development and implementation of a program in the center for health sciences of the university of Wisconsin-Madison involving the transfer of residents of this state from foreign medical schools after their second year of study or involving a year of clerkship following their graduation from a foreign medical school.

Partial
Veto
Overruled

(37) VETERANS AFFAIRS. (a) *Wisconsin veterans home — supplies and services.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$87,000 in 1976-77 to reflect that \$87,000 in utility costs will be paid under section 20.485 (1) (c) of the statutes.

(b) *Wisconsin veterans home — supplies and services.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$32,700 in 1976-77 for inflationary adjustment for supplies and services expenditures for the Wisconsin veterans home.

(c) *G.A.R. memorial hall.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (2) (v) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$8,200 in 1976-77 for the deletion of the superintendent position at the G.A.R. memorial hall.

(d) *Direct home loan program — clerical staff.* There are authorized 3 clerical positions and one accounting position to be funded from the appropriation under section 20.485 (3) (s) of the statutes for the direct home loan program.

(e) *Wisvet outreach.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (2) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$10,500 in 1976-77 to continue the previously authorized salary adjustment.

(f) *Alcohol counselor.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is increased by \$7,100 in 1976-77 for one limited term alcohol counselor position at the Wisconsin veterans home.

(g) *Part-time study grants.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (2) (um) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 39, laws of 1975, is increased by \$152,300 in 1975-76 to provide payment of part-time study grants under section 45.396 of the statutes, as created by this act.

(38) VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION. (c) *Educational approval board — increased fee authority.* The appropriation under section 20.292 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1975, is decreased by \$5,000 in 1976-77 to reduce funding which will be offset by increased program revenue as a result of anticipated increases in fees for solicitor's permits and school and course approvals.

SECTION 151. **Effective dates.** (7) COURTS. (a) *Per diem.* The treatment of section 252.075 (2) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(b) *County court per diem.* The treatment of section 253.195 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(9) ELECTIONS BOARD. (a) *Administration of elections.* The treatment of section 20.510 (1) (a) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(14) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. (a) *Aid to unborn.* The treatment of section 49.19 (4) (g) of the statutes by this act shall take effect retroactively to January 1, 1976.

(b) *Children treatment services.* The treatment of section 46.042 (3) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(c) *Youthful offenders.* The treatment of section 54.17 (6) of the statutes and of chapter 39, laws of 1975, section 718 (1) and (2) and SECTION 144 of this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(d) *Fee for licensing or approving facilities.* The treatment of section 51.44 of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1977.

(e) *Milwaukee county children's home.* The treatment of section 48.58 (2) of the statutes by this act shall take effect retroactively to January 1, 1976, for care provided on and after such date.

(f) *Mental health services — long-term care.* The treatment of section 51.42 (8) (e) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(g) *Emergency medical services.* The treatment of sections 150 (14) (bm) and (bs) of this act shall take effect 2 days after publication of this act.

(h) *Medicaid management study*. The treatment of sections 20.435 (8) (b) and (p) of the statutes by this act and the creation of section 145h (12) of this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(15) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD. (a) The treatment of section 39.30 of the statutes by this act shall take effect August 1, 1976.

(16) HISTORICAL SOCIETY. (a) *Heating*. The treatment of section 20.245 (1) (c) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(20) JUSTICE. (a) *State fire marshal*. The treatment of sections 101.141, 165.55 (2) (a) and (b), 165.58, 165.59 and 203.24 (5) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(21) LEGISLATURE. (a) *Legislative reference bureau*. The treatment of section 20.765 (3) (b) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(b) *Legislative fiscal bureau*. The treatment of section 20.765 (3) (d) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(c) *Legislative audit bureau*. The treatment of section 13.94 (1) (b) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(d) *Joint committee on finance membership and chairing of joint committees*. The treatment of sections 13.09, 13.45 (4), 13.45 (4m), 13.47 (2) and (3), 13.50 (1m), 13.52 (1m) and (5) (b), 13.56 (1) and 13.90 (7) of the statutes by this act shall take effect beginning with the 1977 session.

(23) MEDICAL COLLEGE OF WISCONSIN, INC. (a) *Tuition and capitation*. The treatment of section 39.155 (1) and (2) of the statutes by this act shall take effect on July 1, 1976.

(24) MILITARY AFFAIRS. (a) *Fuel and utilities*. The treatment of section 20.465 (1) (f) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(26) NATURAL RESOURCES. (a) *Park land acquisition and development*. The treatment of section 20.370 (1) (em) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(b) *Repair and maintenance*. The treatment of section 20.370 (5) (v) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(27) PUBLIC INSTRUCTION. (b) *Handicapped aids appropriation*. The treatment of sections 20.255 (1) (d) and 115.881 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(c) *Advance payment of aids*. The treatment of section 115.88 (1) (intro.) and (7) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(d) *Cost control appeal*. The treatment of section 121.91 (5a) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

Partial
Veto
Overruled

(29) REGULATION AND LICENSING. (a) *Barbers*. The treatment of sections 158.03 (4), 158.09 (6), 158.10 (2) and (4), 158.11 (2) and (3), 158.12 (2) (b), (3) and (4) and 158.124 (1) of the statutes shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(b) *Hearing aid dealers*. The treatment of section 459.06 (4) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(30) REVENUE. (a) *Insurance company federal tax deduction*. The treatment of section 71.01 (4) (a) 11 of the statutes by this act shall be effective with respect to the reporting of Wisconsin taxable income for the calendar year 1976 and thereafter.

(b) *Reference to internal revenue code*. The treatment of section 71.02 (2) (b) of the statutes by this act shall be effective with the reporting of Wisconsin taxable income for the calendar year 1976 or the corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(c) *Legislators' tax home.* Section 71.03 (2) (e) of the statutes, as created by this act, shall be effective with respect to the determination of income tax due for each year open to an income tax adjustment on the effective date of this act and for the calendar year 1976 or the corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(em) *Exemption for dividends from subsidiaries.* The treatment of section 71.03 (2) (f) of the statutes by this act shall be effective with respect to the reporting of Wisconsin taxable income for the calendar year 1976 or the corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(f) *Income from revocable trust.* The treatment of section 71.07 (7) (d) of the statutes by this act shall apply to income received beginning with the calendar year 1976 or corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(g) *Corporations gains and losses.* The treatment of sections 71.04 (2), 71.06 and 71.07 (1m) of the statutes by this act shall be effective with respect to the reporting of Wisconsin taxable income, for the calendar year 1976 or corresponding fiscal year and thereafter.

(32) SECRETARY OF STATE. (a) *Certified copies.* The treatment of section 14.38 (9) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(36) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN. (am) *Expenditure of program revenue.* The treatment of section 20.285 (2) (f) 1 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(ar) *U.W. system athletic tickets.* The treatment of section 36.39 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976, with respect to tickets for all athletic events other than football; and January 1, 1977, with respect to football tickets.

(b) *Graduate assistant's health insurance coverage.* The treatment of sections 40.165, 41.02 (12) (o), 42.35 (5) and 42.49 (16) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(37) VETERANS AFFAIRS. (a) *Fuel and utilities.* The treatment of section 20.485 (1) (c) of the statutes by this act shall take effect April 1, 1976.

(38) VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION. (a) *Postsecondary and vocational-adult programs.* The treatment of sections 38.24 (1) and 38.26 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(c) *Driver education, local assistance.* The treatment of section 20.292 (1) (u) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.

(d) *Adjustment for equalization formula.* The treatment of section 38.28 (2) (b) 4 of the statutes by this act shall be effective for the payment of 1975-76 state aids and thereafter.

(e) *Educational approval board — increased fee authority.* The treatment of section 38.51 (8) (b) and (10) (b) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1976.
